
UN



4jp



Vt ik p1 to 99 ion

tor x0ci 1w trmp orr 9N
nd ri 010 vL on rgrwLLw pin lo

pr vi wr qr ot he niiro rn nt on ato of

LI flO fir pie

p1 rn uffi ci

gciertingrn rn ow in

onhn th nhlrtonntionylwhlo Cr

hioyoTe pir unti orn ny
dh uitdi

ne ny dou in ow nv 1w pant fr rndhon

00 biflion 010 .1 ompiete det on pi

p1 UI urn yon

runnq cv on rut rai pHt tUnd

prj ihno wy ndiswn bond inord tor ov

th forhi uldwg rj
hv w1i td Ut

100 uflionwn wan La ndh fH dtor ddii mW
nnU oxw tey 40 wiiO

went wergowhhsciowd buiw Iv

001 roycUir tioi hU wjoy.n ur

wwdIow hnAi nooni

00 to lo ga1 ov yw Urin tnil

kdooa how

ontin to on ovidin rk envinonw nd

onn 01Uw ioin fy di on

in uwbined yI 1h n.y .trwrkoroUp ah

cro vd 60000 wok hoU 1w iOJU
fr it

.y
work 0000 wod UI i0JUI

wdU ro UN th mdi

no owwit

OHpw 011BiUhI wiU 1w rw ord fdir

hvwo ho ci cl nrrtirwn1

nv orh orHn 004 rdhmv xpon inhUdity

wdiryha twndU tW hnkdmf hi om

NO

ow .000110 lo dl wA

Ic ion owp ny on 1w hr hol .H7\4.Vt1H1t H3tHHtHHJJiu
c7AoI 011A1 no Iw odor tototh bo

lU 77 /1fl77 .7 Ut
.Hfi HV 77777 14 14 Hfi

Aprdm hr UiJ vi pr md nWihh tin 73.H1H7tHH .77 17777 HtHH

to of dwdlncr to iv wh HflHHIHfiJ14 .Hfl ttUt

7UttH H/Ht Hi IV77HH

en pr nd of ol mon H7H iIU vr H2HUHHHIHI

on OUI nroy .0u 0LH nhi wpiw
with 01 HJI Pow .101 74 Ui hi hid lOon

HI H7 JHH fir tHH LHI H7i.cHHI HIt

HuIfitH.HH \HH 14 rLt HUH
olet hwi mw wn wn donr

H77UUH Ut 7tH .17H NH HI77H77.H
tn ci nd geen dir or 100 UI7 HHHHUIi

.H 7HH iv it3 .1 HH14 177

2111 rLH vHDL ri 1414 Ui LU
HI Ii fit 77L H7 1H 14H

HH HI .77H7 3OIitri .7 H7tIUIH1 HUH

UHLH 7fr bHH.H .47771
7.7 Lnr UH3 HI 72 7770

Iy



P0 ver tesaurces anaged tm 15 tS5tOfl p13 tnng cry tmeolal

ip lie and development of iery nat kett ig As cc pres0e

oeretattrr hem tog in 1995 Jttoo to current role

as preso of Blark Huts Nonthegatated Ho og ias been

ovo ved to he Co Istruct 01 nt and co merctm devetout leA

of
ieja vat lenerat on octudt 19 natura gasJtreo oa

ired aid renewabk oower genera on lo racatved Ba heto

or Sc cc Che
sty frorr outh Dasota Srhoo of res and

icc inotogy 1974

Brad
jot

ted Emp 9dB as staf4 gi te ai he Rtverto

Povver Pta it He he vartous posttto is It dt to rector of

oaucdoo pta otrg
3d 140 atton ar dsecto strateg

an it August 1999 to Feb ary 2091 Brad worked or

Baca Veatth ao eoiecriig Co rudo mT Km sat

Oty Fe rc uroed Emre ebruar 200 las elected vtce

prestde ie gv supot to Aprtt 2001 0cc pres de tt and COO

ectrtc tr June 2006 exac dv vice preside and COO tectrtc

Febtua 2gb ano exccuttse tee pre tdeot to cb ua 201 Brad

graduated ftorr Ka isas State Or tversty wito Bacbelo of rteoce

degree Chea ca Engireertog He 15 egts ered prafessiora

cog icer in the Stae of ansas

On 31 20 mt re as restdeit and CEO Emp but

wttt stan ir rwetectn thr Apr Cr

BraJ it trto the rote of prestdeot and EO

have rae fort late base wooderfm yea areer mtth

noire betteve tF Co ip ny ts postttooad fo Qrcat tare

Brad Ieaas ta ted ser anagement tea ann brtght aid

caotb vvo kfo cad take your Coapary tat rex Ic



AlarDpr oi dau ampyio Hartnta
hv vvakd lyh pa teay with ih ipanD in

1h wi ep ii

hi rom pir uim an th ma tim

man ampay hi ary uaa hi aurw uldr

in iaa yleaiia aletha fcivlyda ldh

afthe amp ay

iP ai fa an ad waivered aa matter the

eq Be it in aci rk itiple
ice starms

sir pid qai ma ah rv ly
lu uatiagfuelprices

ill lyl wh aR wta

Fe ilyl rsaa ak Wa Ia adl atarW

will via Bill ia th ffi
ily

bu piPa

widalar el iaahbai Wwhhm
te tiahisr

aa the ly al ausayaan mp yh

Lw apravid utmr dqu rehbl aar afp ver

am bla dmixa an hay awarkmaaa

urmgr bihy

Ai pt arh ilitymit ivdabbd pr iaauha

tip h0 Umilliaape rtar ay bgmaiagm

almprav aadsi aaurdhvry la aa iaa

ach hiw aaia aim Im at ur gia wakfar l0aad

by lduahd ai ehana rmaiag ragramtaprp

ax ar aafiaima

by hid am aur iawih heMi

bu vi mi iaa ucai ur evalu

mirra aai aulaiaa mp Abuy pa NI

iaa tegie lt ddr ibility
af raay wa

aa Uat lx ambia uait

oP jooi 1113 00 OTIOOThTnl oPon 0T

110 nA oOool

voonoToo uFI TI

13TS 13 TOIS er no rjnHTtor3nunoT in 13 no

1013- nnnnI pS oronri 10 xb pn sin

ICTTIO TO in iFTTTtTIO0T

any ny 310 iO 01 131 nOn 13

An opflKn3T 0CFT 30k aSP 0100T3

FT IT CT

We are warkiag ta remaia ia campliaace with staadards established

by the Narth Americaa Electric Reliability Carparatiaa regardiag

cyher security We are alsa actively iavalved vvith the Sauthwest

Pawer Paal ta easure adequate traasmissiaa resaurces are

available aad that the praper cast ailacatiaa is utilized ta pratect aur

custamers

the gas aperatiaas area we caatiaue Ta ersure safe rehable

nervice as we wark ta graw that segment af yaur Campaay Ta that

cad we have caatiaued nsita au gas
liae replacemeat pragiam

ia the Braakfieid Missauri cammuaity aad this year exteaded

service ta Camp Clark ia the Nevada Missauri area



We nnetoealuatta arefi et eeeybusiesss oejcs

go usto rve ia foa edon goakt arouse

LNC2 UL srdnIoes Ic efec ey meetig

omer eioct

rest gnfLrayfoi Bodout atoncoargsto

crs smoof tr stioi tf ira agcrert In

ad mye Iso u5 tan CPU nffsctve ne 20

taPs iI en ent tho oodrd so aecte5 KahyWa reps use

pres dent ae erm IC off eIact sort

res sblt slatoyaffarirl ePaimer cc
issmn arc oroo es aro aror Pnn

nvrraoparassir hcsJ an
on Fabrnrv 2u o- so elected Bla lends

ernrny oopy Acceje 011 tofi

1d Pg CoIg rat nc oi Apr 30 201

is team no fo ad to tha opoortuaties and

cale 1ar1 sai SeC pe stctL rcCor



Iat pvthng 102 th gaw tt of ap city mpir custom rn 2OO nd dethcatd
by

Missouri by rnor Jay Non au mb 010 Th gw ft fr plant johi owned by

mpire oun Jrn MunIcipaJ ect1c Utility Comrnsson Kw rk Power Copera and

City Paw 1iht Comp ny lak fia nd ply



Between 2004 and 2007 we secured two onç-terr contracts

with wmd-generation developes The first purchases the

output at the 50-megawatt Elk Rnier Wmdfarm and the

second secures 105 megawat from the Mer dia Way nd

Farm These projects provide pnce stab
lity

reduce exposure

to more costvolatile natural gas and ovide di to

our generation resourcc mix We began our ty mto the

wnd generation ena before any renewable mandates we
enacted it was the smart economical choice

In fir ance thnse prnPctc we compleec nec cmmn 5tjr

issua ces of 566 mill on 2006 56g ilkon ii 200/ and

120 mi lion fioii January 200 through June 2010 We so

ssued first mortgage bonds in the amount of $80 iii ion in

2007 5gB nIl 01 in 2008 and 575 millior in 200g

If is past year we issued 65% first rr ortgage bonds th

principal amount of $100 mil ion Proceeds were ed

to redeem Empires 81/2% trust preferred secur and to

reaay short-term debt that was ncurred in part to fund ne

repayment at maturity of Empires 652% rst mortgae

bonds due 2010

We aso esued $50 million principa amount of zO% first

ii ortgage bonds in /010 Funds from this issuance we used

to redeem Empires Senor Notes 7.05% series due 2022

and to epay shoit-te debt which was incurred part to

fund the corstruction program.Tbis refinancng allowed us to

reducc ou annuai interest costs by $3.8 nillion



BuIlding to Meet Customer Needs
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ver ngreemelt froc Plum Po nL tha car be ronve ted to ar owiersi position in 2015 Plum Point completed all in-servicT

cr1 era Auoust ard vTas put irto commercal opeNtior September 2010 Empires share of costs for This project through

OcceiT oe 2010 apprnx irately $862 rndlior cxc udirg allowance for funds used during constructon AFUDC which otaled

SS ior

ov dco for the plan aoproved uy the SC sic ente ed intu an agree rent to co-owner of latan hgh efficie
icy

coal

frd oATr pla To captalze efficierc es frorr an exiii site the plant is adjacent to latan of whici we own percent

ad iclona 12 gercer arc of Ia an Ii provide T1 ir customers aoprox mately 102 megawatts of capacity latan began

irer al operation or Decembsr 2010 Our sI are of The latan oect costs expected to be in
range

of $237 mi lion to

20 ci lior nxcluding /109 costs through ccc iiber 2010 are $2289 rillion plus AEUDC of $1 91 million

rr p0 aut pa of our clan is ensure tr at our cx stir faciities cont nue to pros ide economical energy
while meet ng

ali

rviior mertal staidards fhs eq ired the comoet on of upg ades at hot the Asbuiy and latan power ants AtAsbury we istalled

31 illion Se ective Cata
ytic

Reduction system to reduce iltrous ox des 2009 $59 million upgrade that included an SCR

ue ga desulph rzation rontroll ng sulfur dioxides and bag louce dust tratinn system was co Tipleted at latan



Recovering Costs
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Outages Due to Vegetation in Primary Distribution Lines

OJr enhanced tree
trimming initiative is also helping to ensure reliability

It is showing big results as the numbr of vegetation-caused outages
has plummeted
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain matters discussed in this quarterly report are forward-looking statements intended to

qualify for the safe harbor from liability established by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of

1995 Such statements address or may address future plans objectives expectations and events or

conditions concerning various matters such as capital expenditures earnings pension and other costs

competition litigation our construction program our generation plans our financing plans potential

acquisitions rate and other regulatory matters liquidity and capital resources and accounting matters

Forward-looking statements may contain words like anticipate believe expect project

objective or similar expressions to identify them as forward-looking statements Factors that could cause

actual results to differ materially from those currently anticipated in such statements include

weather business and economic conditions and other factors which may impact sales volumes and

customer growth

the amount terms and timing of rate relief we seek and related matters

the cost and availability of purchased power and fuel and the results of our activities such as

hedging to reduce the volatility of such costs

the results of prudency and similar reviews by regulators of costs we incur including capital

expenditures fuel and purchased power costs and Southwest Power Pool SPP regional

transmission organization RTO expansion costs

the costs and other impacts resulting from natural disasters such as tornados and ice storms

matters such as the effect of changes in credit ratings on the availability and our cost of funds

costs and effects of legal and administrative proceedings settlements investigations and claims

interruptions or changes in our coal delivery gas transportation or storage agreements or

arrangements

our exposure to the credit risk of our hedging counterparties

operation of our electric generation facilities and electric and gas
transmission and distribution

systems including the performance of our joint owners

volatility in the credit equity and other financial markets and the resulting impact on our short term

debt costs and our ability to issue debt or equity securities or otherwise secure funds to meet our

capital expenditure dividend and liquidity needs

the periodic revision of our construction and capital expenditure plans and cost and timing

estimates

legislation and regulation including environmental regulation such as NOx SO2 mercury ash and

C02 and health care regulation

the timing of accretion estimates and integration costs relating to completed and contemplated

acquisitions and the performance of acquired businesses

rate regulation growth rates discount rates capital spending rates terminal value calculations and

other factors integral to the calculations utilized to test the impairment of goodwill in addition to

market and economic conditions which could adversely affect the analysis and ultimately negatively

impact earnings

competition including the regional SPP energy imbalance market

electric utility restructuring including ongoing federal activities and potential state activities



changes in accounting requirements including the potential consequences of International

Financial Reporting Standards being required for U.S SEC registrants rather than U.S GAAP

the performance of our pension assets and other post employment benefit plan assets and the

resulting impact on our related funding commitments

other circumstances affecting anticipated rates revenues and costs

All such faclors are difficult to predict contain uncertainties that may materially affect actual results

and may be beyond our control New factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible for

management to predict all such factors or to assess the impact of each such factor on us Any forward-

looking statemeii speaks only as of the date on which such statement is made and we do not undertake

any obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on

which such statement is made

We caution you that any forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and

involve known and unknown risk uncertainties and other factors which may cause our actual results

performance or achievements to differ materially from the facts results performance or achievements we
have anticipated in such forward-looking statements



PART

ITEM BUSINESS

General

We operate our businesses as three segments electric gas
and other The Empire District Electric

Company EDE Kansas corporation organized in 1909 is an operating public utility engaged in the

generation purchase transmission distribution and sale of electricity in parts of Missouri Kansas

Oklahoma and Arkansas As part of our electric segment we also provide water service to three towns in

Missouri The Empire District Gas Company EDG is our wholly owned subsidiary engaged in the

distribution of natural gas in Missouri Our other segment consists of our fiber optics business

Our gross operating revenues in 2010 were derived as follows

Electric segment sales 89.6%

Gas segment sales 9.4

Other segment sales 1.0

Sales from our electric segment include 0.3% from the sale of water

The territory served by our electric operations embraces an area of about 10000 square miles located

principally in southwestern Missouri and also includes smaller areas in southeastern Kansas northeastern

Oklahoma and northwestern Arkansas The principal economic activities of these areas include light

industry agriculture and tourism Of our total 2010 retail electric revenues approximately 88.9% came

from Missouri customers 5.3% from Kansas customers 3.0% from Oklahoma customers and 2.8% from

Arkansas customers

We supply electric service at retail to 120 incorporated communities as of December 31 2010 and to

various unincorporated areas and at wholesale to four municipally owned distribution systems The largest

urban area we serve is the city of Joplin Missouri and its immediate vicinity with population of

approximately 157000 We operate under franchises having original terms of twenty years or longer in

virtually all of the incorporated communities Approximately 49% of our electric operating revenues in

2010 were derived from incorporated communities with franchises having at least ten years remaining and

approximately 21% were derived from incorporated communities in which our franchises have remaining

terms of ten years or less Although our franchises contain no renewal provisions
in recent years we have

obtained renewals of all of our expiring electric franchises prior to the expiration dates

Our electric operating revenues in 2010 were derived as follows

Residential
42.4%

Commercial 30.3

Industrial
14.4

Wholesale on-system
4.0

Wholesale off-system
4.7

Miscellaneous sources 2.6

Other electric revenues 1.6

primarily public authorities

Our largest single on-system wholesale customer is the city of Monett Missouri which in 2010

accounted for approximately 3% of electric revenues No single retail customer accounted for more than

2% of electric revenues in 2010

Our gas operations serve customers in northwest north central and west central Missouri We provide

natural gas distribution to 44 communities and 314 transportation customers as of December 31 2010 The



largest urban area we serve is the city of Sedalia with population of over 20000 We operate under

franchises having original terms of twenty years
in virtually all of the incorporated communities Seventeen

of the franchises have 10 years or more remaining on their term Although our franchises contain no

renewal provisions since our acquisition we have obtained renewals of all our expiring gas franchises prior

to the expiration dates

Our gas operating revenues in 2010 were derived as follows

Resider tial 63.4%

Commercial 26.2

Industrial 1.6

Other 8.8

No single retail customer accounted for more than 3% of gas revenues in 2010

Our other segment consists of our fiber optics business As of December 31 2010 we have 92 fiber

customers

Electric Generating Facilities and Capacity

At December 31 2010 our generating plants consisted of

Capacity
Plant megawatts Primary Fuel

Asbury 207 Coal

Riverton 286 Coal and Natural Gas
latan 112% ownership 85 Coal

latan 12% owriership 102 Coal

Plum Point Energy Station 7.52% ownership 50 Coal

State Line Combined Cycle 60% ownership 300 Natural Gas

Empire Energy Center 267 Natural Gas

State Line Unit No 96 Natural Gas

Ozark Beach 16 Hydro

TOTAL 1409

Based on summer rating conditions as utilized by Southwest Power Pool

Capacity reflects our allocated shares of the capacity of these plants

See Item Properties Electric Segment Facilities for further information about these plants

We and most other electric utilities with interstate transmission facilities have placed our facilities

under the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission FERC regulated open access tariffs that provide all

wholesale buyers and sellers of electricity the opportunity to procure transmission services at the same

rates that the utilities provide themselves We are member of the Southwest Power Pool Regional

Transmission Organization SPP RTO See Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations Competition

We currently supplement our on-system generating capacity with purchases of capacity and energy

from other sources in order to meet the demands of our customers and the capacity margins applicable to

us under current pooling agreements and National Electric Reliability Council rules The SPP requires its

members to maintain minimum 12% capacity margin Our long-term contract with Westar Energy for the

purchase of 162 megawatts of capacity and energy ended May 31 2010 In order to replace this 162

megawatts of capacity and energy we entered into contracts to add 202 megawatts of power to our system

This energy is from two new plants that became operational in 2010 with 100 megawatts from the new



Plum Point Energy Station 50 megawatts of owned capacity and 50 megawatts of purchased power and

102 megawatts from the new latan generating facility each of which is described below

The Plum Point Energy Station is new 665-megawatt coal-fired generating facility near Osceola

Arkansas which met its in-service criteria on August 13 2010 and entered commercial operation on

September 2010 We own through an undivided interest 50 megawatts of the projects capacity The

estimated total cost is approximately $88.0 million excluding allowance for funds used during construction

AFUDC and our share of the Plum Point costs through December 31 2010 was $86.9 million In

addition to the amounts noted above we have recorded $16.5 million of AFUDC for the Plum Point

construction since its inception We also have long-term 30 year purchased power agreement for an

additional 50 megawatts of capacity and have the option to purchase an undivided ownership interest in

the 50 megawatts covered by the purchased power agreement in 2015

We also purchased an undivided ownership interest in the coal-fired latan generating facility

operated by Kansas City Power Light Company KCPL and located at the site of the existing latan

Generating Station latan near Weston Missouri We own 12% or approximately 102 megawatts of the

850-megawatt unit which met its in-service criteria on August 26 2010 and entered commercial operation

on December 31 2010 Our share of the latan construction costs is expected to be in range of

approximately $237 million to $240 million excluding AFUDC Our share of the latan costs through

December 31 2010 was $228.9 million Current projections estimate $11.1 million being spent
in 2011 for

our share of expected expenditures for latan In addition to the amounts noted above we recorded

$19.1 million of AFUDC for the latan construction since its inception

We have 20-year purchased power agreement which began on December 15 2008 with Cloud

County Windfarm LLC owned by Horizon Wind Energy Houston Texas to purchase the energy

generated at the approximately 105-megawatt Phase Meridian Way Wind Farm located in Cloud County

Kansas which commenced commercial operation on December 15 2008 We also have 20-year contract

with Elk River Windfarm LLC owned by IBERDROLA RENEWABLES Inc formerly known as PPM

Energy to purchase the energy generated at the 150-megawatt Elk River Windfarm located in Butler

County Kansas The windfarm was declared commercial on December 15 2005 We do not own any

portion of either windfarm

The following chart sets forth our purchase commitments and our anticipated owned capacity in

megawatts during the indicated years The capacity ratings we use for our generating units are based on

summer rating conditions under SPP guidelines The portion of the purchased power that may be counted

as capacity from the Elk River Windfarm LLC and the Cloud County Windfarm LLC is included in this

chart Because the wind power is an intermittent non-firm resource SPP rating criteria does not allow us

to count substantial amount of the wind power as capacity See Item Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources

Purchased Anticipated

Power Owned Total

Contract Year
Commitment Capacity Megawatts

2010 106 1409 1515

2011 65 1409 1474

2012 65 1409 1474

2013 65 1409 1474

2014 65 1409 1474

Includes an estimated megawatts for the Elk River Windfarm LLC and megawatts for the Cloud

County Windfarm LLC



The
year

2010 included an additional 41 megawatts of purchased power capacity through contract

with Merrill Lynch to address the expected in-service delays of Plum Point and latan The costs

under that contract were immaterial

The maximum hourly demand on our system reached record high of 1199 megawatts on January

2010 Our previous winter peak of 1100 megawatts was established on December 22 2008 Our maximum

hourly summer demand of 1173 megawatts was set on August 15 2007 Our previous summer record peak

of 1159 megawatts was established on July 19 2006

Gas Facilities

At December 31 2010 our principal gas utility properties consisted of approximately 87 miles of

transmission mai and approximately 1126 miles of distribution mains

The following table sets forth the three pipelines that serve our gas customers

Service Area Name of Pipeline

South Southern Star Central Gas Pipeline

North Panhandle Eastern Pipe Line Company
Northwest ANR Pipeline Company

Our all-time peak of 73280 mcfs was established on January 2010 replacing the previous record of

70820 mcfs whici was set on January 2010

Construction Program

Total property additions including construction work in
progress

but excluding AFUDC for the

three years ended December 31 2010 amounted to $440.6 million and retirements during the same period

amounted to $398 million Please refer to Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources for more information

Our total capital expenditures excluding AFUDC and
expenditures to retire assets were

$101.2 million in 2010 and for the next three years are estimated for planning purposes to be as follows

Estimated Capital Expenditures

amounts in millions

2011 2012 2013 Total

New electric generating facilities

latan 12.6 $12.6
Riverton Unit 12 combined cycle conversion 6.7 6.7

Additions to exisling electric generating facilities

Asbury 1.6 3.7 6.2 11.5

Environmental upgrades Asbury 3.6 38.9 76.7 119.2

Environmental upgrades latan 3.3 3.3

Other 13.2 10.2 15.8 39.2

Electric transmission facilities 9.8 15.3 22.1 47.2

Electric distribution system additions 37.6 41.6 43.4 122.6

Non-regulated additions 1.5 1.5 1.5 4.5

General and other additions 19.5 12.4 14.2 46.1

Gas system additions 3.6 3.9 2.3 9.8

TOTAL $106.3 $127.5 $188.9 $422.7



Construction expenditures for additions to our transmission and distribution systems to meet

projected increases in customer demand and environmental upgrades at Asbury constitute the majority of

the projected capital expenditures for the three-year period listed above

Estimated capital expenditures are reviewed and adjusted for among other things revised estimates

of future capacity needs the cost of funds necessary for construction and the availability and cost of

alternative power Actual capital expenditures may vary significantly from the estimates due to number of

factors including changes in customer requirements construction delays changes in equipment delivery

schedules ability to raise capital environmental matters the extent to which we receive timely and

adequate rate increases the extent of competition from independent power producers and cogenerators

other changes in business conditions and changes in legislation and regulation including those relating to

the energy industry See Regulation below and Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations Competition

Fuel and Natural Gas Supply

Electric Segment

Our total system output for 2010 based on kilowatt-hours generated was as follows

Steam generation units
41.5%

Combustion turbine generation units 24.5

Hydro generation
1.4

Purchased power windfarms 13.6

Purchased power other 19.0

Approximately 62.3% of the total fuel requirements for our generating units in 2010 based on

kilowatt-hours generated were supplied by coal and approximately 37.4% supplied by natural gas with fuel

oil and tire-derived fuel TDF which is produced from discarded passenger car tires providing
the

remainder The amount and percentage of electricity generated by natural gas
increased in 2010 as

compared to 2009 while the amount of energy we purchased decreased primarily reflecting that it was

more economical to produce gas-fired generation than to purchase power during this period

Our Asbury Plant is fueled primarily by coal with oil being used as start-up fuel and TDF being used

as supplement fuel In 2010 Asbury burned coal blend consisting of approximately 87.9% Western coal

Powder River Basin and 12.1% blend coal on tonnage basis Our average coal inventory target at

Asbury is approximately 60 days As of December 31 2010 we had sufficient coal on hand to supply

anticipated requirements at Asbury for 56-70 days as compared to 52-95 days as of December 31 2009

depending on the actual blend ratio within this range

Our Riverton Plant fuel requirements are primarily met by coal with the remainder supplied by

natural gas petroleum coke and oil Riverton Unit 12 Siemens V84.3A2 gas combustion turbine

installed in 2007 and three other smaller units are fueled by natural gas During 2010 Riverton Units

and burned an estimated blend of approximately 87.1% Western coal Powder River Basin and 12.9%

petroleum coke on tonnage basis Our average coal inventory target at Riverton is approximately 60 days

Riverton Unit requires minimum amount of blend fuel to operate while Riverton Unit can burn

100% Western coal or mix of Western and blend fuel Based on these assumptions we had sufficient coal

as of December 31 2010 to run 40 days on both units as compared to 36 days as of December 31 2009



The following table sets forth the percentage of our anticipated coal requirements we have secured

through combiration of contracts and binding proposals for the following years

Percentage secured

2011 100%

2012 65%
2013 61%
2014 31%

All of the Western coal used at our Asbury and Riverton plants is shipped to the Asbury Plant by rail

distance of approximately 800 miles under six and one-half
year contract with the Burlington Northern

and Santa Fe Railway Company BNSF and the Kansas City Southern Railway Company which began on

June 30 2010 Th overall delivered price of coal is expected to be higher in 2011 than in 2010 as we incur

the increased rail costs that went into effect in July of 2010 Riverton receives its Western inventory from

the coal transported by train to the Asbury Plant which is then transported by truck to Riverton We

currently lease one aluminum unit train full time and second set is leased on part-time basis to deliver

Western coal to the Asbury Plant

Unit and unit at the latan Plant are coal-fired generating units which are jointly-owned by

KCPL subsidiary of Great Plains Energy Inc and us with our share of ownership being 12% in each

plant KCPL is the operator of these plants and is responsible for arranging their fuel supply KCPL has

secured contracts for low sulfur Western coal in quantities sufficient to meet 80% of latans requirements

for 2011 and apprDximately 40% for 2012 35% for 2013 and 20% for 2014 The coal is transported by rail

under contract with BNSF Railway which expires on December 31 2013

The Plum Point Energy Station is new 665-megawatt coal-fired generating facility built by Plum

Point Energy Associates PPEA near Osceola Arkansas We own through an undivided interest 50

megawatts of the projects capacity North America Energy Services is the operator of this plant Plum

Point Services Company LLC PPSC the project management company acting on behalf of the joint

owners is responsible for arranging its fuel supply PPSC has secured contracts for low sulfur Western coal

in quantities sufficient to meet 83% of Plum Points requirements for 2011 and approximately 84% for

2012 82% for 2013 and 92% for 2014 During the third
quarter of 2009 we entered into 15 year lease

agreement for 54 railcars for our ownership share of Plum Point which began commercial operation on

September 2010 In December 2010 we entered into another 15-year lease agreement for an additional

54 railcars associated with our Plum Point purchased power agreement

Our Energy Center and State Line combustion turbine facilities not including the State Line

Combined Cycle SLCC Unit which is fueled 100% by natural gas are fueled primarily by natural gas

with oil also available for use primarily as backup Based on kilowatt hours generated during 2010 Energy

Center generation was 98.6% natural gas with the remainder being fuel oil and essentially all of the State

Line Unit generation came from natural gas As of December 31 2010 oil inventories were sufficient for

approximately days of full load operation on Units No and at the Energy Center and days of

full load operation for State Line Unit No As typical oil usage is minimal these inventories are

sufficient for our current requirements Additional oil will be purchased as needed

We have firm transportation agreements with Southern Star Central Pipeline Inc with original

expiration dates ol July 31 2016 for the transportation of natural gas to the SLCC This date is adjusted

for periods of contract suspension by us during outages of the SLCC This transportation agreement can

also supply natural
gas

to State Line Unit No.1 the Energy Center or the Riverton Plant as elected by us

on secondary basis We also have precedent agreement with Southern Star which provides additional

transportation capability until 2022 This contract provides firm transport to the sites listed above that

previously were only served on secondary basis We expect that these transportation agreements will

serve nearly all of our natural
gas transportation needs for our generating plants over the next several
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years Any remaining gas transportation requirements although small will be met by utilizing capacity

release on other holder contracts interruptible transport or delivered to the plants by others

The majority of our physical natural gas supply requirements will be met by short-term forward

contracts and
spot

market purchases Forward natural gas commodity prices and volumes are hedged

several years into the future in accordance with our Risk Management Policy in an attempt to lessen the

volatility in our fuel expenditures and gain predictability In addition we have signed an agreement with

Southern Star to purchase one million Dths of firm gas storage service capacity for period of five years

beginning in April 2011 The reservation charge for this storage capacity is approximately $1.1 million

annually This storage capacity will enable us to better manage our natural gas commodity and

transportation needs for our electric segment

The following table sets forth comparison of the costs including transportation and other

miscellaneous costs per million Btu of various types of fuels used in our electric facilities

Fuel 1pe Facility 2010 2009 2008

Coallatan 1.193 1.186 1.070

Coal Asbury 1.877 1.763 1.577

Coal Riverton 1.833 1.768 1.724

Natural Gas 6.061 7.376 6.909

Oil 15.443 14.318 16.721

Weighted average cost of fuel burned per kilowatt-hour generated 2.9936 3.1698 3.1307

Gas Segment

In June 2007 we acquired 10000 MMBtus per day of firm transportation from Cheyenne Plains

Pipeline Company so that up to 75% of our natural gas purchases going forward could come from the

Rocky Mountain gas area Cheyenne Plains interconnects with all of the interstate pipelines
listed below

that feed our market area

We have agreements with many of the major suppliers in both the Midcontinent and Rocky Mountain

regions that provide us with both supply and price diversity We expanded our supplier base in 2008 and

will continue to do so to enhance supply reliability as well as provide for increased price competition

The following table sets forth the current costs including storage transportation and other

miscellaneous costs per mcf of gas used in our gas operations

Service Area Name of Pipeline 2010 2009 2008

South Southern Star Central Gas Pipeline $6.7068 $7.8475 $8.9898

North Panhandle Eastern Pipe Line Company 6.1151 7.4055 8.3207

Northwest ANR Pipeline Company 5.3216 7.1160 8.0716

Weighted average cost per mcf $6.3745 $7.6395 $8.6964

Employees

At December 31 2010 we had 750 full-time employees including 52 employees of EDG 338 of the

EDE employees are members of Local 1474 of The International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers

IBEW On May 2007 the Local 1474 IBEW voted to ratify new five-year agreement effective

retroactively to November 2006 the expiration date of the last contract At December 31 2010 34 EDG

employees were members of Local 1464 of the IBEW In June 2009 Local 1464 of the IBEW ratified new

four-year agreement with EDG effective June 2009
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ELECTRIC OPERATING STATISTICS

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Electric Operating Revenues 000s
Residential 204900 180404 179293 174584 159381
Commercial 146310 135800 132888 129035 115059
Industrial 69684 65983 67353 67712 64820
Public authorities2 12099 11411 10876 9933 8892
Wholesale on-system 19254 18199 19229 18444 17561
Miscellaneous3 7573 6814 6976 5703 4605

Interdepartmental 199 178 154 123 101

Total system 460019 418789 416769 405534 370419

Wholesale off-system 22891 14344 29697 19627 12234

Total electric operating revenues4 482910 433133 446466 425161 382653

Electricity generated and purchased 000s of kWh
Steam 2650042 2259304 2228716 2074323 2.589360

Hydro 88104 76733 32601 71360 22673
Combustion turbine 1566074 926934 1480729 1427298 955856

Total generated 4304220 3262971 3742046 3572981 3567889
Purchased 2085550 2516702 2440246 2373282 2065991

Total generated and purchased 6389770 5779673 6182292 5946263 5633880

Interchange net 1716 568 436 940 173

Total system output 6388054 5779105 6181856 5945323 5633707
Transmission by other 1osses5 5688

Total system input 6382366 5779105 6181856 5945323 5633707

Maximum hourly system demand Kw 1199000 1085000 1152000 1173000 1159000

Owned capacity end cf period Kw 1409000 1257000 1255000 1255000 1102000
Annual load factor 53.17 55.38 54.29 53.39 52.50

Electric sales 000s of kWh
Residential 2060368 1866473 1952869 1930493 1898846
Commercial 1644917 1579832 1622048 1610814 1547077
Industrial 1007033 992165 1073250 1110328 1145490
Public authorities2 124554 121816 122375 115109 111204
Wholesale

on-systerri 355807 332061 344525 342347 337658

Total system 5192679 4892347 5115067 5109091 5040275
Wholesale off-system 798084 515899 688203 459665 303493

Total Electric Sales 5990763 5408246 5803270 5568756 5343768

Company use 000s of kWh6 9598 9088 9209 9369 9324
kWh losses 000s of kWh 382005 361771 369377 367198 280615

Total System Input 6382366 5779105 6181856 5945323 5633707

Customers average number
Residential 141693 141206 140791 139840 137689
Commercial 24505 24412 24532 24330 24035
Industrial 358 355 361 362 370

Public authorities2 2003 1995 1935 1927 1907
Wholesale on-syster

Total System 168563 167972 167623 166463 164005
Wholesale off-system 22 19 22 20 20

Total 168585 167991 167645 166483 164025

Average annual sales per residential customer kWh 14541 13218 13871 13805 13791

Average annual revenue per residential customer 1446 1278 1273 1248 1158

Average residential revenue per kWh 9.94 9.67 9.18 9.04s 8.39c

Average commercial rvenue per kWh 8.89 8.604 8.19 8.01 7.44

Average industrial revnue per kWh 6.92w 6.65 6.28 6.104 5.66

See Item Selected Financial Data for additional financial information regarding Empire

Includes Public Street Highway Lighting and Public Authorities

Includes transmission service revenues late payment fees renewable energy credit sales rent etc

Before intercom any eliminations

Energy provided in-kind to third party transmission providers to compensate for transmission losses associated with delivery of

capacity and energy under their transmission tariffs

Includes kWh med by Company and Interdepartmental
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GAS OPERATING STATISTICS

2010 2009 2008 2007 20062

Gas Operating Revenues 000s
Residential $32245 $36176 $39639 $39205 $15957

Commercial 13336 15552 17416 16588 7127

Industrial 812 2066 5069 752 356

Public authorities 342 365 416 373 161

Total retail sales revenues 46735 54159 62540 56918 23601

Miscellaneous3 436 221 231 206 93

Transportation revenues 3714 2934 2667 2753 1451

Total Gas Operating Revenues 50885 57314 65438 59877 25145

Maximum Daily Flow mci 73280 70046 66005 68379 60890

Gas delivered to customers 000s of mci sales4

Residential 2675 2687 2949 2835 1101

Commercial 1265 1278 1397 1304 559

Industrial 108 218 553 76 32

Public authorities 33 30 35 30 12

Total retail sales 4081 4213 4934 4245 1704

Transportation sales 4829 4330 4059 4300 2150

Total gas operating
and transportation sales 8910 8543 8993 8545 3854

Company use4

Transportation
sales cash outs

56 56

Mci losses 70 36 140 70

Total system sales 8984 8582 9137 8611 3840

Customers average number
Residential 38277 38621 39159 40315 40673

Commercial 4968 5038 5119 5208 5399

Industrial 26 25 26 24 26

Public authorities 137 131 127 124 128

Total retail customers 43408 43815 44431 45671 46226

Transportation customers 313 296 272 270 252

Total gas customers 43721 44111 44703 45941 46478

See Item Selected Financial Data for additional financial information regarding Empire

2006 revenues and mci sales represent the months of June through December 2006

Primarily includes miscellaneous service revenue and late fees

Includes mcf used by Company and Interdepartmental mci
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Executive Officers and Other Officers of Empire

The names of our officers their ages and years of service with Empire as of December 31 2010

positions held during the past five years and effective date of such positions are presented below All of our

officers have been employed by Empire for at least the last five years

Age at With the Officer

Name 12/31/10 Positions With the Company Company Since Since

William Gipsori 53 President and Chief Executive Officer 2002 1981 1997

Bradley Beechcr2 45 Executive Vice President 2011 Executive 2001 2001

Vice President and Chief Operating

Officer Electric 2010 Vice President

and Chief Operating Officer Electric

2006
Harold Colgin3 61 Vice President Energy Supply 2006 1972 2006

General Manager Energy Supply 2006
Ronald Gatz 60 Vice President and Chief Operating Officer 2001 2001

Gas 2006
Gregory Knapp 59 Vice President Finance and Chief Financial 2002 2002

Officer 2002
Michael Palmr4 54 Vice President Transmission Policy and 1986 2001

Corporate Services 2011 Vice President

Commercial Operations 2001
Kelly Walters5 45 Vice President and Chief Operating Officer 2001 2006

Electric 2011 Vice President

Regulatory and Services 2006
Blake Mertens6 33 Vice President Energy Supply 2011 2001 2011

General Manager Energy Supply 2010
Director of Strategic Projects Safety and

Environmental Services 2010 Assistant

Director of Strategic Projects 2009
Manager of Strategic Projects 2006

Martin Penning7 55 Vice President Commercial Operations 1980 2011

2011 Director of Commercial Operations

2006
Janet Watson 58 Secretary Treasurer 1995 1994 1995

Laurie Delano 55 Controller Assistant Secretary and Assistant 2002 2005

Treasurer and Principal Accounting Officer

2005

William Gipson will retire from his position as President and Chief Executive Officer effective

May 31 2011

Bradley Beecher will become President and Chief Executive Officer effective June 2011 Effective

February 2011 Mr Beecher has been elected executive vice president

Harold Colgin will retire from his position as Vice President Energy Supply effective April 30
2011

Michael Palmer was elected Vice President Transmission Policy and Corporate Services effective

February 2011

Kelly Waters was elected Vice President and Chief Operating Officer Electric effective

February 2011

Blake Mertens was elected Vice President Energy Supply effective May 2011

Martin Penning was elected Vice President Commercial Operations effective February 2011
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Regulation

Electric Segment

General As public utility our electric segment operations are subject to the jurisdiction of the

MPSC the State Corporation Commission of the State of Kansas KCC the Corporation Commission of

Oklahoma 0CC and the Arkansas Public Service Commission APSC with respect to services and

facilities rates and charges regulatory accounting valuation of property depreciation and various other

matters Each such Commission has jurisdiction over the creation of liens on property located in its state to

secure bonds or other securities The KCC also has jurisdiction over the issuance of all securities because

we are regulated utility incorporated in Kansas Our transmission and sale at wholesale of electric energy

in interstate commerce and our facilities are also subject to the jurisdiction of the FERC under the

Federal Power Act FERC jurisdiction extends to among other things rates and charges in connection with

such transmission and sale the sale lease or other disposition of such facilities and accounting matters

See discussion in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations Competition

During 2010 approximately 89.7% of our electric operating revenues was received from retail

customers Sales subject to FERC jurisdiction represented approximately 9.1% of our electric operating

revenues during 2010 with the remaining 1.2% being from miscellaneous sources The percentage of retail

revenues derived from each state follows

Missouri 88.9%

Kansas 5.3

Oklahoma 3.0

Arkansas 2.8

Rates See Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations Rate Matters for information concerning recent electric rate proceedings

Fuel Adjustment Clauses Typical fuel adjustment clauses permit the distribution to customers of

changes in fuel costs without the need for general rate proceeding Fuel adjustment clauses are presently

applicable to our retail electric sales in Missouri Oklahoma and Kansas and system wholesale

kilowatt-hour sales under FERC jurisdiction We have an Energy Cost Recovery Rider in Arkansas that

adjusts for changing fuel and purchased power costs on an annual basis

Gas Segment

General As public utility our gas segment operations are subject to the jurisdiction of the MPSC

with respect to services and facilities rates and charges regulatory accounting valuation of property

depreciation and various other matters The MPSC also has jurisdiction over the creation of liens on

property to secure bonds or other securities

Purchased Gas Adjustment PGA The PGA clause allows EDG to recover from our customers

subject to routine regulatory review the cost of purchased gas supplies including costs associated with our

use of natural gas financial instruments to hedge the purchase price of natural gas and related carrying

costs This PGA clause allows us to make rate changes periodically up to four times throughout the year

in response to weather conditions and supply demands rather than in one possibly extreme change per

year

Environmental Matters

See Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements for information regarding environmental

matters
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Conditions Respecting Financing

Our EDE Iflleflture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of September 1944 as amended and

supplemented the EDE Mortgage and our Restated Articles of Incorporation Restated Articles

specify earnings coverage and other conditions which must be complied with in connection with the

issuance of additional first mortgage bonds or cumulative preferred stock or the incurrence of unsecured

indebtedness The principal amount of all series of first mortgage bonds outstanding at any one time under

the EDE Mortgage is limited by terms of the mortgage to $1 billion Substantially all of the property plant

and equipment of The Empire District Electric Company but not its
subsidiaries is subject to the lien of

the EDE Mortgage Restrictions in the EDE mortgage bond indenture could affect our liquidity The EDE
Mortgage contains requirement that for new first mortgage bonds to be issued our net earnings as
defined in the EIE Mortgage for any twelve consecutive months within the fifteen months preceding

issuance must be two times the annual interest requirements as defined in the EDE Mortgage on all first

mortgage bonds then outstanding and on the prospective issue of new first mortgage bonds Our earnings

for the year ended December 31 2010 would permit us to issue approximately $362.3 million of new first

mortgage bonds based on this test at an assumed interest rate of 6.0% In addition to the interest coverage

requirement the EDE Mortgage provides that new bonds must be issued against among other things

retired bonds or 60% of net property additions At December 31 2010 we had retired bonds and net

property additions which would enable the issuance of at least $634.0 million principal amount of bonds if

the annual interest requirements are met As of December 31 2010 we believe we are in compliance with

all restrictive covenants of the EDE Mortgage

Under our Restated Articles cumulative preferred stock may be issued only if our net income

available for interest and dividends as defined in our Restated Articles for specified twelve-month

period is at least times the sum of the annual interest requirements on all indebtedness and the annual

dividend requirements on all cumulative preferred stock to be outstanding immediately after the issuance

of such additional shares of cumulative preferred stock and so long as any preferred stock is

outstanding the amount of unsecured indebtedness outstanding may not exceed 20% of the sum of the

outstanding secured indebtedness plus our capital and surplus We have no outstanding preferred stock

Accordingly the restriction in our Restated Articles does not currently restrict the amount of unsecured

indebtedness that we may have outstanding

The EDG Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of June 2006 as amended and

supplemented the EDG Mortgage contains requirement that for new first mortgage bonds to be issued

the amount of suh new first mortgage bonds shall not exceed 75% of the cost of property additions

acquired after the date of the Missouri Gas acquisition The principal amount of all series of first mortgage

bonds outstanding at any one time under the EDG Mortgage is limited by terms of the mortgage to

$300 million Substantially all of the property plant and equipment of The Empire District Gas Company
is subject to the lien of the EDG Mortgage The mortgage also contains limitation on the issuance by

EDG of debt including first mortgage bonds but excluding short-term debt incurred in the ordinary

course under working capital facilities unless after giving effect to such issuance EDGs ratio of EBITDA

defined as net income plus interest taxes depreciation amortization and certain other non-cash charges
to interest charges for the most recent four fiscal quarters is at least 2.0 to As of December 31 2010 this

test would allow us to issue approximately $8.3 million principal amount of new first mortgage bonds

See Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our Web Site

We maintain web site at www.empiredistrict.com Our annual report on Form 10-K quarterly

reports on Form 10-0 current reports on form 8-K and related amendments are available free of charge

through our web site as soon as reasonably practicable after such
reports are filed with or furnished to the

SEC electronically Our Corporate Governance Guidelines our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics our
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Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officer the charters for our Audit

Committee Compensation Committee and Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee our

Procedures for Reporting Complaints on Accounting Internal Accounting Controls and Auditing Matters

our Procedures for Communicating with Non-Management Directors and our Policy and Procedures with

Respect to Related Person Transactions can also be found on our web site All of these documents are

available in print to any interested party
who requests them Our web site and the information contained in

it and connected to it shall not be deemed incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

Investors should review carefully the following risk factors and the other information contained in this

Form 10-K The risks we face are not limited to those in this section There may be additional risks and

uncertainties either currently unknown or not currently believed to be material that could adversely

affect our financial position results of operations and liquidity

Readers are cautioned that the risks and uncertainties described in this Form 10-K are not the only

ones facing Empire Additional risks and uncertainties that we are not presently aware of or that we

currently consider immaterial may also affect our business operations Our business financial condition or

results of operations including our ability to pay dividends on our common stock could suffer if the

concerns set forth below are realized

Any reduction in our credit ratings could materially and adversely affect our business financial

condition and results of operations

Currently our corporate credit ratings and the ratings for our securities are as follows

Fitch Moodys Standard Poors

Corporate Credit Rating n/r Baa2 BBB

EDE First Mortgage Bonds BBB A3 BBB
Senior Notes BBB Baa2 BBB

Commercial Paper F2 P-2 A-3

Outlook Stable Stable Stable

Not rated

The ratings indicate the agencies assessment of our ability to pay the interest and principal of these

securities rating is not recommendation to purchase sell or hold securities and each rating should be

evaluated independently of any other rating The lower the rating the higher the interest cost of the

securities when they are sold In addition downgrade in our senior unsecured long-term debt rating

would result in an increase in our borrowing costs under our bank credit facility If any of our ratings fall

below investment grade investment grade is defined as Baa3 or above for Moodys and BBB or above

for Standard Poors and Fitch our ability to issue short-term debt commercial paper or other securities

or to market those securities would be impaired or made more difficult or expensive Therefore any such

downgrades could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of

operations In addition any actual downgrade of our commercial paper rating from Moodys or Fitch may

make it difficult for us to issue commercial paper To the extent we are unable to issue commercial paper

we will need to meet our short-term debt needs through borrowings under our revolving credit facilities

which may result in higher costs

We cannot assure you that any of our current ratings will remain in effect for any given period of time

or that rating will not be lowered or withdrawn entirely by rating agency if in its judgment

circumstances in the future so warrant
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We are exposed increases in costs and reductions in revenue which we cannot control and which

may adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations

The primary drivers of our electric operating revenues in any period are rates we can charge our

customers weather customer growth and general economic conditions Of the factors driving

revenues weather has the greatest short-term effect on the demand for electricity for our regulated

business Mild weather reduces demand and as result our electric operating revenues In addition

changes in customer demand due to downturns in the economy could reduce our revenues

The primary drivers of our electric operating expenses in any period are fuel and purchased power

expenses maintenance and repairs expense including repairs following severe weather and plant

outages taxe and non-cash items such as depreciation and amortization expense Although we

generally recover these expenses through our rates there can be no assurance that we will recover all or

any part of such increased costs in future rate cases

The primary drivers of our gas operating revenues in any period are rates we can charge our

customers weather customer growth the cost of natural gas and interstate pipeline

transportation charges and general economic conditions Because natural gas is heavily used for

residential and ccmmercial heating the demand for this product depends heavily upon weather patterns

throughout our natural gas service territory and significant amount of our natural gas revenues are

recognized in the first and fourth quarters related to the heating seasons Accordingly our natural gas

operations have historically generated less revenues and income when weather conditions are warmer in

the winter

The primary driver of our gas operating expense in any period is the price of natural gas

Significant increases in electric and gas operating expenses or reductions in electric and
gas operating

revenues may occur and result in material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results

of operations

We are exposed to factors that can increase our fuel and purchased power expenditures including

disruption in dliveries of coal or natural gas decreased output from our power plants failure of

performance by purchased power counterparties and market risk in our fuel procurement strategy

Fuel and purchased power costs are our largest expenditures Increases in the price of coal natural

gas or the cost of purchased power will result in increased electric operating expenditures

We depend upon regular deliveries of coal as fuel for our Riverton Asbury latan and Plum Point

plants Substantially all of this coal comes from mines in the Powder River Basin of Wyoming and is

delivered to the plants by train Production problems in these mines railroad transportation or congestion

problems or unavailability of trains could affect delivery cycle times required to maintain plant inventory

levels causing us to implement coal conservation and supply replacement measures to retain adequate

reserve inventories at our facilities These measures could include some or all of the following reducing

the output of our coal plants increasing the utilization of our higher-cost gas-fired generation facilities

purchasing power from other suppliers adding additional leased trains to our supply system and

purchasing locally mined coal which can be delivered without using the railroads Such measures could

result in increased fuel and purchased power expenditures

With the addition of the Missouri fuel adjustment mechanism effective September 2008 we now
have fuel cost

recovery mechanism in all of our jurisdictions which significantly reduces our net income

exposure to the impact of the risks discussed above However cash flow could still be impacted by these

increased expenditures We are also subject to prudency reviews which could negatively impact our net

income if regul tory commission would conclude our costs were incurred imprudently

We have also established risk management practice of purchasing contracts for future fuel needs to

meet underlying customer needs and manage cost and pricing uncertainty Within this activity we may
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incur losses from these contracts By using physical and financial instruments we are exposed to credit risk

and market risk Market risk is the exposure to change in the value of commodities caused by fluctuations

in market variables such as price The fair value of derivative financial instruments we hold is adjusted

cumulatively on monthly basis until prescribed
determination periods At the end of each determination

period which is the last day of each calendar month in the period any realized gain or loss for that period

related to the contract will be reclassified to fuel expense and recovered or refunded to the customer

through our fuel adjustment mechanisms Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty might fail to fulfill its

obligations under contractual terms

We may be unable to recover increases in the cost of natural gas from our natural gas utility

customers or may lose customers as result of any price increases

In our natural gas utility business we are permitted to recover the cost of gas directly from our

customers through the use of purchased gas adjustment provision Our purchased gas adjustment

provision is regularly reviewed by the MPSC In addition to reviewing our adjustments to customer rates

the MPSC reviews our costs for prudency as well To the extent the MPSC may determine certain costs

were not incurred prudently it could adversely affect our gas segment earnings and cash flows In addition

increases in natural gas costs affect total prices to our customers and therefore the competitive position
of

gas
relative to electricity and other forms of energy Increases in natural gas costs may also result in lower

usage by customers unable to switch to alternate fuels Such disallowed costs or customer losses could have

material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

We are subject to regulation in the jurisdictions in which we operate

We are subject to comprehensive regulation by federal and state utility regulatory agencies which

significantly influences our operating environment and our ability to recover our costs from utility

customers The utility commissions in the states where we operate regulate many aspects
of our utility

operations including the rates that we can charge customers siting and construction of facilities pipeline

safety and compliance customer service and our ability to recover costs we incur including capital

expenditures and fuel and purchased power costs

The FERC has jurisdiction over wholesale rates for electric transmission service and electric energy

sold in interstate commerce Federal state and local agencies also have jurisdiction over many of our other

activities

Information concerning recent filings requesting increases in rates and related matters is set forth

under Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations Rate Matters

We are unable to predict the impact on our operating results from the regulatory activities of any of

these agencies Despite our requests these regulatory commissions have sole discretion to leave rates

unchanged grant
increases or order decreases in the base rates we charge our utility customers They have

similar authority with respect to our recovery of increases in our fuel and purchased power costs If our

costs increase and we are unable to recover increased costs through base rates or fuel adjustment clauses

or if we are unable to fully recover our investments in new facilities our results of operations could be

materially adversely affected Changes in regulations or the imposition of additional regulations could also

have material adverse effect on our results of operations

Operations risks may adversely affect our business and financial results

The operation of our electric generation and electric and gas
transmission and distribution systems

involves many risks including breakdown or failure of expensive and sophisticated equipment processes

and personnel performance operating limitations that may be imposed by equipment conditions

environmental or other regulatory requirements fuel supply or fuel transportation reductions or

19



interruptions transmission scheduling constraints and catastrophic events such as fires explosions severe

weather or other similar occurrences

We have implemented training preventive maintenance and other programs but there is no assurance

that these programs will prevent or minimize future breakdowns outages or failures of our generation

facilities In those cases we would need to either produce replacement power from our other facilities or

purchase power from other suppliers at potentially volatile and higher cost in order to meet our sales

obligations

These and other operating events may reduce our revenues increase costs or both and may
materially affect cur results of operations financial position and cash flows

Financial market disruptions may increase financing costs limit access to the credit markets or cause

reductions in irtvestment values in our pension plan assets

We estimate our capital expenditures to be $106.3 million in 2011 Although we believe it is unlikely

we will have difficulty accessing the markets for the capital needed to complete these projects if such

need arises financing costs could fluctuate Market conditions have positively impacted the return on our

pension plan and Other Postretirement Benefits OPEB assets However our costs also increased

resulting in $0.7 million increase in our 2009 net pension and OPEB liability During 2010 our net

pension and OPEI3 liability increased $8.8 million We expect to fund approximately $23.1 million in 2011

for pension and OPEB liabilities Future market declines could result in increased pension and OPEB
liabilities and funding obligations

The cost and schedule of construction projects may materially change

Our capital expenditure budget for the next three years is estimated to be $422.6 million This includes

expenditures for new generating facilities additions to our existing facilities and additions to our

transmission and distribution systems There are risks that actual costs may exceed budget estimates delays

may occur in obtaining permits and materials suppliers and contractors may not perform as required

under their contracts there may be inadequate availability productivity or increased cost of qualified craft

labor start-up activities may take longer than planned the scope and timing of projects may change and

other events beyond our control may occur that may materially affect the schedule budget cost and

performance of projects To the extent the completion of projects is delayed we expect that the timing of

receipt of increase in base rates reflecting our investment in such projects will be correspondingly delayed
Costs associated with these projects will also be subject to prudency review by regulators as part of future

rate case filings and all costs may not be allowed recovery

We are subject to environmental laws and the incurrence of environmental liabilities which may
adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations

We are subject to extensive federal state and local regulation with regard to air and other

environmental matters Failure to comply with these laws and regulations could have material adverse

effect on our results of operations and financial position In addition new environmental laws and

regulations and new interpretations of existing environmental laws and regulations have been adopted
and may in the future be adopted which may substantially increase our future environmental expenditures

for both new facilities and our existing facilities Compliance with current and future air emission

standards such as those limiting emission levels of sulfur dioxide SO2 and nitrogen oxide NOx and
potentially carbon dioxide CO2 has required and may in the future require significant environmental

expenditures Although we have historically recovered such costs through our rates there can be no

assurance that we will recover all or any part of such increased costs in future rate cases The incurrence

of additional material environmental costs which are not recovered in our rates may result in material

adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations
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ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM PROPERTIES

Electric Segment Facilities

At December 31 2010 we owned generating facilities with an aggregate generating capacity of

1409 megawatts

Our principal electric baseload generating plant is the Asbury Plant with 207 megawatts of generating

capacity The plant located near Asbury Missouri is coal-fired generating station with two steam turbine

generating units The plant presently accounts for approximately 14% of our owned generating capacity

and in 2010 accounted for approximately 29.4% of the energy generated by us Routine plant maintenance

during which the entire plant is taken out of service is scheduled once each year normally for

approximately four weeks in the spring Approximately every fifth year the maintenance outage is

scheduled to be extended to total of six weeks to permit inspection of the Unit No turbine The last

such outage took place in the fall of 2007 The Unit No turbine is inspected approximately every

35000 hours of operations and was last inspected in 2001 As of December 31 2010 Unit No has

operated approximately 3300 hours since its last turbine inspection
in 2001 When the Asbury Plant is out

of service we typically experience increased purchased power and fuel expenditures associated with

replacement energy which is now likely to be recovered through our fuel adjustment clauses

Our generating plant located at Riverton Kansas has two steam-electric generating units Units

and with an aggregate generating capacity of 92 megawatts and four gas-fired combustion turbine units

Units 10 11 and 12 with an aggregate generating capacity of 194 megawatts The steam-electric

generating units burn coal as primary fuel and have the capability of burning natural gas We installed

Siemens V84.3A2 combustion turbine Unit 12 at our Riverton plant in 2007 with summer rated

capacity of 150 megawatts It began commercial operation on April 10 2007

We own 12% undivided interest in the coal-fired Unit No and Unit No at the latan Generating

Station located near Weston Missouri 35 miles northwest of Kansas City Missouri as well as 3%

interest in the site and 12% interest in certain common facilities new air permit was issued for the

latan Generating Station on January 31 2006 The new permit covers the entire latan Generating Station

and includes both Unit No and Unit No latan was on maintenance outage from the third quarter of

2008 until the second quarter of 2009 for activities ranging from turbine upgrade and generator rewind to

the tie-in of the new air quality control systems Unit No entered commercial operation on

December 31 2010 We are entitled to 12% of the units available capacity currently 85 megawatts for

Unit No and 102 megawatts for Unit No and are obligated to pay for that percentage of the operating

costs of the units KCPL operates the units for the joint owners

We own 7.52% undivided interest in the coal-fired Plum Point Energy Station located near Osceola

Arkansas We are entitled to 50 megawatts or 7.52% of the units available capacity The Plum Point

Energy Station met its in-service criteria on August 13 2010 and entered commercial operation on

September 2010

Our State Line Power Plant which is located west of Joplin Missouri consists of Unit No

combustion turbine unit with generating capacity of 96 megawatts and Combined Cycle Unit with

generating capacity of 500 megawatts of which we are entitled to 60% or 300 megawatts The Combined

Cycle Unit consists of the combination of two combustion turbines two heat recovery steam generators

steam turbine and auxiliary equipment The Combined Cycle Unit is jointly owned with Westar

Generating Inc subsidiary of Westar Energy Inc which owns the remaining 40% of the unit Westar

reimburses us for percentage of the operating costs per our joint ownership agreement stipulations We

are the operator of the Combined Cycle Unit All units at our State Line Power Plant burn natural
gas as

primary fuel with Unit No having the additional capability of burning oil
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We have four combustion turbine peaking units at the Empire Energy Center in Jasper County

Missouri with an aggregate generating capacity of 267 megawatts These peaking units operate on natural

gas as well as oil

Our hydroelectric generating plant FERC Project No 2221 located on the White River at Ozark

Beach Missouri has generating capacity of 16 megawatts We have long-term license from FERC to

operate this plant which forms Lake Taneycomo in southwestern Missouri As part of the Energy and

Water Development Appropriations Act of 2006 the Appropriations Act new minimum flow was

established with the intent of increasing minimum flows on recreational streams in Arkansas To

accomplish this the level of Bull Shoals Lake will be increased an average of feet The increase at Bull

Shoals will decrease the net head waters available for generation at Ozark Beach by feet and thus

reduce our electrical output We estimate the lost production to be up to 16% of our average annual

energy production for this unit The loss in this facility would require us to replace it with additional

generation from our gas-fired and coal-fired units or with purchased power The Appropriations Act

required the Southwest Power Administration SWPA in coordination with us and our relevant public

service commissions to determine our economic detriment assuming January 2011 implementation

date On June 17 2010 the SWPA posted revised Final Determination that our customers damages were

$26.6 million On September 16 2010 we received $26.6 million payment from the SWPA The

$26.6 million payment will have no material impact on net income as we expect the benefits will flow

through to our customers In addition the SWPA has delayed the implementation of the new minimum

flows until 2016

At December 31 2010 our transmission system consisted of approximately 22 miles of 345 kV lines

441 miles of 161 kV lines 745 miles of 69 kV lines and 81 miles of 34.5 kV lines Our distribution system

consisted of approximately 6923 miles of line

Our electric generation stations other than Plum Point Energy Station are located on land owned in

fee We own 3% undivided interest as tenant in common in the land for the latan Generating Station We

own similar interest in 60% of the land used for the State Line Combined Cycle Unit Substantially all of

our electric transmission and distribution facilities are located either on property leased or owned in

fee over streets alleys highways and other public places under franchises or other rights or over

private property by virtue of easements obtained from the record holders of title Substantially all of our

electric segment property plant and equipment are subject to the EDE Mortgage

We also own and operate water pumping facilities and distribution systems consisting of total of

approximately 87 miles of water mains in three communities in Missouri

Gas Segment Facilities

At December 31 2010 our principal gas utility properties consisted of approximately 87 miles of

transmission mains and approximately 1126 miles of distribution mains

Substantially all of our gas
transmission and distribution facilities are located either on property

leased or owned in fee under streets alleys highways and other public places under franchises or

other rights or under private property by virtue of easements obtained from the record holders of title

Substantially all of our gas segment property plant and equipment are subject to the EDG Mortgage

Other Segment

Our other segment consists of our leasing of fiber optics cable and equipment which we also use in

our own utility operations

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements under Item which description is

incorporated herein by reference
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PART II

ITEM rVLRKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER

MATTERS AND IS SUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange On February 2011 there were 4939

record holders and 34172 individual participants in security position listings The high and low sale prices

for our common stock as reported by the New York Stock Exchange for composite transactions and the

amount per share of quarterly dividends declared and paid on the common stock for each quarter of 2010

and 2009 were as follows

Price of Common Stock
Dividends Paid

2010 2009 Per Share

High Low High Low 2010 2009

First Quarter $19.30 $17.75 $18.51 $11.92 $0.32 $0.32

Second Quarter 20.00 17.57 16.66 14.19 0.32 0.32

Third Quarter 20.41 18.41 19.00 16.44 0.32 0.32

Fourth Quarter 22.50 20.06 19.36 17.78 0.32 0.32

Holders of our common stock are entitled to dividends if as and when declared by the Board of

Directors out of funds legally available therefore subject to the prior rights of holders of any outstanding

cumulative preferred stock and preference stock Payment of dividends is determined by our Board of

Directors after considering all relevant factors including the amount of our retained earnings which is

essentially our accumulated net income less dividend payouts As of December 31 2010 our retained

earnings balance was $5.5 million compared to $10.1 million at December 31 2009 after paying out

$52.0 million in dividends during 2010 reduction of our dividend per share partially or in whole could

have an adverse effect on our common stock price On February 2011 the Board of Directors declared

quarterly dividend of $0.32 per share on common stock payable March 15 2011 to holders of record as of

March 2011

Under Kansas corporate law our Board of Directors may only declare and pay dividends out of our

surplus or if there is no surplus out of our net profits for the fiscal year in which the dividend is declared

or the preceding fiscal year or both Our surplus under Kansas law is equal to our retained earnings plus

accumulated other comprehensive income/loss net of income tax However Kansas law does permit

under certain circumstances our Board of Directors to transfer amounts from capital in excess of par value

to surplus In addition Section 305a of the Federal Power Act FPA prohibits the payment by utility of

dividends from any funds properly included in capital account There are no additional rules or

regulations issued by the FERC under the FPA clarifying the meaning of this limitation However several

decisions by the FERC on specific dividend proposals suggest that any determination would be based on

fact-intensive analysis of the specific facts and circumstances surrounding the utility and the dividend in

question with particular focus on the impact of the proposed dividend on the liquidity and financial

condition of the utility

In addition the EDE Mortgage and our Restated Articles contain certain dividend restrictions The

most restrictive of these is contained in the EDE Mortgage which provides that we may not declare or pay

any dividends other than dividends payable in shares of our common stock or make any other

distribution on or purchase other than with the proceeds of additional common stock financing any

shares of our common stock if the cumulative aggregate amount thereof after August 31 1944 exclusive

of the first quarterly dividend of $98000 paid after said date would exceed the sum of $10.75 million and

the earned surplus as defined in the EDE Mortgage accumulated subsequent to August 31 1944 or the

date of succession in the event that another corporation succeeds to our rights and liabilities by merger

or consolidation On March 11 2008 we amended the EDE Mortgage in order to provide us with more

flexibility to pay dividends to our shareholders by increasing the basket available to pay dividends by
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$10.75 million as described above As of December 31 2010 this restriction did not prevent us from

issuing dividends

During 2010 no purchases of our common stock were made by or on behalf of us

Participants in our Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan may acquire at 3% discount

newly issued common shares with reinvested dividends Participants may also purchase at an averaged

market price newly issued common shares with optional cash payments on weekly basis subject to

certain restrictions We also offer participants the option of safekeeping for their stock certificates

Our shareholders rights plan dated July 26 2000 expired July 25 2010 pursuant to its terms See

Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements under Item for additional information In

addition we have stock based compensation programs which are described in Note of Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements under Item

Our By-laws provide that K.S.A Sections 17-1286 through 17-1298 the Kansas Control Share

Acquisitions Act will not apply to control share acquisitions of our capital stock

See Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements under Item for additional information

regarding our common stock and equity compensation plans
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The following graph and table indicates the value at the end of the specified years of $100

investment made on December 31 2005 in our common stock and similar investments made in the

securities of the companies in the Standard Poors 500 Composite Index SP 500 Index and the

Standard Poors Electric Utilities Index SP Electric Utility The graph and table assume that

dividends were reinvested when received

Total Return Performance
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a-Empire District Electric Company

SP Electric Utilities Index

SP500

12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10

Total Return Analysis 12/31/2005 12/31/2006 12/31/2007 12/31/2008 12/31/2009 12/31/2010

The Empire District Electric Company $100.00 $128.47 $125.10 $103.05 $118.46 $149.96

SP Electric Utilities Index $100.00 $122.92 $151.35 $112.24 $106.03 $120.02

SP 500 Index $100.00 $115.79 $122.16 76.96 97.33 $111.99
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

in thousands except per share amounts

2010 2009 2008 2007 20062

Operating revenues 541276 497168 518163 490160 412171

Operating income 80495 74495 71012 65566 69821

Total allowance for funds used during

construction 10174 14133 12518 7665 4255
Income from continuing operations 47396 41296 39722 33181 40029

Income loss from discontinued

operations net of tax 63 749
Net income 47396 41296 39722 33244 39280

Weighted average number of common
shares outstanding basic 40545 34924 33821 30587 28277

Weighted average number of common
shares outstanding diluted 40580 34956 33860 30610 28296

Earnings from continuing operations

per weighted average share of

common stock basic and diluted 1.17 1.18 1.17 1.09 1.42

Loss from discontinued operations per

weighted average share of common
stock basic and diluted 0.00 0.03

Total earnings per weighted average

share of common stock basic and

diluted 1.17 1.18 1.17 1.09 1.39

Cash dividends per share 1.28 1.28 1.28 1.28 1.28

Common dividends paid as

percentage of net income 109.7% 108.5% 109.0% 117.2% 91.8%

Allowance for funds used during

construction as percentage of net

income 21.5% 34.2% 31.5% 23.1% 10.8%

Book value per common share actual

outstanding at end of year 15.82 15.75 15.56 16.04 15.49

Capitalization

Common equity 657624 600150 528872 539176 468609

Long-term debt 693072 640156 611567 541880 462398
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 2.63x 2.15x 2.19x 2.08x 2.60x

Total assets $1921311 $1839846 $1713846 $1473074 $1319142

Plant in service at original cost $2108115 $1718584 $1586152 $1506234 $1380431

Capital expenditures including

AFUDC3 108157 148804 206405 195568 120171

2006 has been adjusted to show continuing operations reflecting the sale of MAPP and Conversant in

2006 and Fast Freedom in 2007

Includes EDO data for the months of June through December 2006

2006 capital expenditures do not include $103.2 million for the acquisition of the Missouri Gas

operations
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

EXECUTiVE SUMMARY

We operate our businesses as three segments electric gas and other The Empire District Electric

Company EDE is an operating public utility engaged in the generation purchase transmission

distribution and sale of electricity in
parts

of Missouri Kansas Oklahoma and Arkansas As part of our

electric segment we also provide water service to three towns in Missouri The Empire District Gas

Company EDG is our wholly owned subsidiary It provides natural gas distribution to customers in 44

communities in northwest north central and west central Missouri Our other segment consists of our fiber

optics business

During the year ended December 31 2010 our gross operating revenues were derived as follows

Electric segment sales 89.6%

Gas segment sales 9.4

Other segment sales 1.0

Sales from our electric segment include 0.3% from the sale of water

Electric Segment

The primary drivers of our electric operating revenues in any period are rates we can charge our

customers weather customer growth and general economic conditions The utility commissions

in the states in which we operate as well as the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission FERC set the

rates which we can charge our customers In order to offset expenses we depend on our ability to receive

adequate and timely recovery
of our costs primarily fuel and purchased power and/or rate relief We

assess the need for rate relief in all of the jurisdictions we serve and file for such relief when necessary Of

the factors driving revenues weather has the greatest short-term effect on the demand for electricity for

our regulated business Very hot summers and
very

cold winters increase electric demand while mild

weather reduces demand Residential and commercial sales are impacted more by weather than industrial

sales which are mostly affected by business needs for electricity and by general economic conditions

Customer growth which is the growth in the number of customers contributes to the demand for

electricity We expect our annual electric customer growth to range from approximately 0.85% to 1.35%

over the next several years Our electric customer growth for the year ended December 31 2010 was 0.2%

We define electric sales growth to be growth in kWh sales period over period excluding the impact of

weather The primary drivers of electric sales growth are customer growth and general economic

conditions

The primary drivers of our electric operating expenses in any period are fuel and purchased power

expense maintenance and repairs expense including repairs following severe weather and plant

outages taxes and non-cash items such as depreciation and amortization expense Historically fuel

and purchased power costs were the expense items that had the most significant impact on our net income

In our 2007 rate case the Missouri Public Service Commission MPSC authorized fuel adjustment

clause for our Missouri customers effective September 2008 The MPSC established base rate for the

recovery of fuel and purchased power expenses used to supply energy The clause permits the distribution

to customers of 95% of the changes in fuel and purchased power costs above or below the base With the

addition of the Missouri fuel adjustment mechanism we now have fuel cost recovery mechanism in all of

our jurisdictions which significantly reduces the impact of fluctuating fuel and purchased power costs on

our net income
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Gas Segment

The primary drivers of our gas operating revenues in any period are rates we can charge our

customers weather customer growth the cost of natural gas and interstate pipeline

transportation charges and general economic conditions The MPSC sets the rates which we can charge

our customers In order to offset expenses we depend on our ability to receive adequate and timely

recovery
of our costs primarily commodity natural gas and/or rate relief We assess the need for rate

relief and file for such relief when necessary Purchased Gas Adjustment PGA clause is included in our

gas rates which allows us to recover our actual cost of natural
gas

from customers through rate changes

which are made periodically up to four times throughout the
year

in response to weather conditions

natural gas costs and supply demands Weather affects the demand for natural gas Very cold winters

increase demand for gas while mild weather reduces demand Due to the seasonal nature of the gas

business revenues and earnings are typically concentrated in the November through March period which

generally corresponds with the heating season Customer growth which is the growth in the number of

customers contributes to the demand for gas Our gas segment customer contraction for the
year

ended

December 31 2020 was 0.9% which we believe was due to depressed economic conditions The rate of
gas

customer contraction is expected to level out during the next two years
and begin modest growth after

2012 We define gas sales growth to be growth in mcf sales excluding the impact of weather The primary

drivers of gas sales growth are customer growth and general economic conditions

The primary driver of our gas operating expense in any period is the price of natural gas However

because gas purchase costs for our gas utility operations are normally recovered from our customers any

change in gas prices does not have corresponding impact on income unless such costs are deemed

imprudent or cause customers to reduce usage

Earnings

For the year ended December 31 2010 basic and diluted earnings per weighted average share of

common stock were $1.17 on $47.4 million of net income compared to $1.18 on $41.3 million of net income

for the year ended December 31 2009 The primary positive drivers for 2010 as compared to 2009 were

increased electric revenues resulting from rate increases and increased demand in 2010 due to favorable

weather and decreased interest charges The primary negative drivers for 2010 as compared to 2009 were

increased electric operations and maintenance expenses increased depreciation and amortization the

dilutive effect of additional shares of common stock issued mainly due to our equity distribution

program changes in AFUDC amounts and the changes in effective tax rates including the two non-cash

charges in the first quarter of 2010 discussed below

The table below sets forth reconciliation of basic and diluted earnings per share between 2009 and

2010 which is non-GAAP presentation The economic substance behind our non-GAAP earnings per

share EPS measure is to present the after tax impact of significant items and components of the

statement of income on per share basis before the impact of additional stock issuances

We believe this presentation is useful to investors because the statement of income does not readily

show the EPS impact of the various components including the effect of new stock issuances This could

limit the readers understanding of the reasons for the EPS change from previous years This information is

useful to management and we believe this information is useful to investors to better understand the

reasons for the fluctuation in EPS between the prior and current years on per share basis

This reconciliation may not be comparable to other companies or more useful than the GAAP

presentation included in the statements of income We also note that this presentation does not purport to

be an alternative to earnings per share determined in accordance with GAAP as measure of operating

performance or any other measure of financial performance presented in accordance with GAAP

Management compensates for the limitations of using non-GAAP financial measures by using them to

supplement GAAP results to provide more complete understanding of the factors and trends affecting
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the business than GAAP results alone The dilutive effect of additional shares issued included in the table

reflects the estimated impact of all shares issued during the period Similar tables presented in our 2010

Form 10-Q filings also reflected the estimated impact of all shares issued during the applicable periods but

split the impact into two line items dilutive effect of additional shares issued which reflected shares

issued pursuant to the equity distribution program completed in June 2010 and other income and

deductions which reflected all other shares issued during the applicable periods

Earnings Per Share 2009 1.18

Revenues

Electric on-system 0.78

Electric off-system and other 0.18

Gas 0.12

Other 0.01

Expenses

Electric fuel and purchased power 0.33
Cost of natural gas sold and transported

0.17

Regulated electric segment 0.14

Regulated gas segment
0.02

Maintenance and repairs 0.07

Depreciation and amortization 0.14
Other taxes 0.03
Interest charges 0.08

AFUDC 0.07

Change in effective income tax rates 0.15

Dilutive effect of additional shares issued 0.19

Other income and deductions 0.01

Earnings Per Share 2010 1.17

Fourth Quarter Results

Earnings for the fourth quarter of 2010 were $8.5 million or $0.20 per share as compared to

$7.9 million or $0.22 per share in the fourth quarter 2009 Total revenues increased approximately

$11.9 million 9.9% for the fourth quarter
of 2010 as compared to the fourth quarter of 2009 primarily

due to increased sales and rate increases in 2010 Partially offsetting the increase in revenues were

increases in operations and maintenance expenses and depreciation and amortization

2010 Activities

New Construction

On March 14 2006 we entered into contracts to purchase 50 megawatt 7.52% undivided interest in

the Plum Point Energy Station The Plum Point Energy Station met its in-service criteria on August 13

2010 and entered commercial operation on September 2010 We also have long-term 30 year

purchased power agreement for an additional 50 megawatts of capacity and have the option to purchase an

undivided ownership interest in the 50 megawatts covered by the purchased power agreement in 2015

On June 13 2006 we announced we had entered into an agreement with Kansas City Power Light

KCPL to purchase an undivided ownership interest in the coal-fired latan generating facility We own

12% or approximately 102 megawatts of the 850-megawatt unit KCPL reported that latan met its

in-service criteria on August 26 2010 latan entered commercial operation on December 312010
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Regulatory Matters

We filed several rate cases primarily to recover the costs of the completed plants described above

These are described below

stipulated agreement in our 2009 Missouri electric rate case was filed on May 12 2010 calling for

an annual increase of $46.8 million provided the Plum Point Generating Station met its in-service criteria

by August 15 2010 The Plum Point Generating Station completed its in-service criteria testing on

August 12 2010 with an in-service date of August 13 2010 and the new rates were effective September 10
2010

On September 28 2010 we filed rate increase request with the MPSC for an annual increase in base

rates for our Missouri electric customers in the amount of $36.5 million or 9.2% to recover the latan

costs and other cost of service items not included in the recently completed Missouri rate case KCPL
reported that lalan met its in-service criteria on August 26 2010

stipulated agreement in our current Kansas rate case was filed on May 2010 and approved by the

KCC on June 25 2010 calling for $2.8 million or 12.4% increase in base rates effective July 2010

On August 30 2010 we were granted two-phase Capital Reliability Rider CRR by the Oklahoma

Corporation Commission 0CC with the first phase effective September 2010 In total the CRR
revenue has been specifically limited by the 0CC to an overall annual revenue increase of $2.6 million or

27.67% increase On January 28 2011 we requested the approval by the 0CC of the phase rates of the

CRR We requested an additional $1.1 million which brings the total annual revenue under the 0CC to

approximately $2.5 million We will file general rate case within six months of the commercial operation

date of latan which was December 31 2010 to replace the CRR with permanent rates

On August 2010 we filed rate increase request with the Arkansas Public Service Commission

APSC for an annual increase in base rates for our Arkansas electric customers in the amount of

$3.2 million or 27.3% On February 2011 we entered into unanimous settlement agreement with the

parties involved The settlement includes general rate increase of $2.1 million or 19% The settlement

calls for the implementation of new tariff the Transmission Cost Recovery Rider TCR designed to

track changes in the cost of transmission charges from the Southwest Power Pool Inc The existing Energy

Cost Recovery Rider was also modified to include the recovery of the costs associated with certain air

quality control materials hearing on the settlement has been scheduled for March 2011 at the APSC

On March 12 2010 we filed Generation Formula Rate GFR tariffs with the FERC which we

propose to be utilized for our wholesale customers On June 30 2010 three of our on-system wholesale

customers were granted intervention in the GFR rate case On September 15 2010 the parties agreed to

settlement in principle and are now working to finalize the terms of the settlement

In December 2008 the Office of the Public Counsel OPC and intervenors Praxair Inc and Explorer

Pipeline Company filed Petitions for Writ of Review with the Cole County Circuit Court challenging the

tariffs resulting from our 2006 Missouri rate case that went into effect January 2007 The Cole County
Circuit Court issued ruling on December 2009 affirming the Commissions Report and Order OPC
Praxair and Explorer Pipeline filed appeals with the Western District Court of Appeals On October 26

2010 the Western District Court of Appeals affirmed the Commissions Report and Order Praxair Inc

and Explorer Pipeline Company filed with the Western District Court of Appeals Motion for Rehearing
and an Application for Transfer to the Supreme Court On December 2010 the Western District Court

of Appeals overruled the Motion for Rehearing and denied the Application for Transfer to the Supreme
Court Praxair Inc then asked the Missouri Supreme Court to transfer the case to that court On

January 25 2011 the request was denied

On June 2009 we filed request with the MPSC for an annual increase in base rates for our

Missouri gas customers in the amount of $2.9 million or 4.9% On February 24 2010 the MPSC
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unanimously approved an agreement among the OPC the MPSC staff and Empire for an increase of

$2.6 million Pursuant to the Agreement new rates went into effect on April 2010

For additional information see Rate Matters below

latan Coal Investment Tax Credits

December 2009 award from an arbitration panel ordered KCPL to renegotiate with the IRS

previous $125 million advanced coal investment tax credit granted to the latan plant The IRS executed

revised memorandum of understanding MOU on September 2010 which granted us our share

$17.7 million of advanced coal investment tax credits in accordance with the arbitration panels order We
will utilize these credits to reduce our 2010 tax payments and 2010 tax liability The tax credit will have no

significant income statement impact as the credits will flow to our customers as we amortize the tax credits

over the life of the plant See Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements under Item

Financings

On January 28 2011 we filed $400 million shelf registration statement with the SEC covering our

common stock unsecured debt securities preference stock and first mortgage bonds This shelf

registration statement became effective on February 2011 We plan to use proceeds under this shelf to

fund capital expenditures refinancings of existing debt or general corporate needs when needed during the

effective period The issuance of securities under this shelf is subject to the receipt of local regulatory

approvals

On August 25 2010 we issued $50 million principal amount of 5.20% first mortgage bonds due

September 2040 The net proceeds after payment of expenses of approximately $49.1 million were

used to redeem $48.3 million aggregate principal amount of our Senior Notes 7.05% Series due 2022 on

August 27 2010

On May 28 2010 we issued $100 million principal amount of 4.65% first mortgage bonds due June

2020 The net proceeds after payment of expenses of approximately $98.8 million were used to redeem

all million outstanding shares of our 8.5% trust preferred securities totaling $50 million on June 28

2010 and to repay short-term debt which was incurred in part to fund the repayment at maturity of our

6.5% first mortgage bonds due 2010

We successfully completed an equity distribution program during the second quarter of 2010 and used

the net proceeds to repay short-term debt and for general corporate purposes including the funding of our

current construction program During 2010 we issued and sold 2870985 shares of our common stock

pursuant to this equity distribution program at an average price per share of $18.41 resulting in net

proceeds to us of approximately $51.3 million Since inception of the program on February 25 2009 in the

aggregate we issued and sold 6535216 shares pursuant to the program at an average price per share of

$18.36 resulting in net proceeds to us of approximately $116.0 million

Ozark Beach Plant

On September 16 2010 we received $26.6 million payment from the Southwest Power

Administration SWPA to reimburse us for the estimated future lifetime replacement cost of the electrical

energy and capacity lost due to the White River Minimum Flows project at Ozark Beach The $26.6 million

payment will have no material impact on net income as we expect the benefits will flow through to our

customers In addition the SWPA has delayed the implementation of the new minimum flows until 2016

See Item Properties Electric Segment Facilities for additional information
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Healthcare Reform Act Medicare Part benefits

On March 23 2010 the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act was enacted This legislation

includes provision that reduces the deductibility for income tax purposes of retiree healthcare costs to

the extent an employer receives federal subsidies Companies receive the subsidy when they provide retiree

prescription benefits at least equivalent to Medicare Part coverage in their postretirement healthcare

plan Although ihe elimination of this tax benefit does not take effect until 2013 this change required us to

recognize the full accounting impact in our financial statements in the period in which the legislation was

enacted As result in the first quarter of 2010 we recorded one-time non-cash charge of approximately

$2.1 million to reflect the impact of this change Our 2010 effective tax rate also increased due to the

additional tax expense associated with the changes in the Medicare Part tax benefit See Note of

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Renewable EnerRy

On November 2008 Missouri voters approved the Clean Energy Initiative Proposition This

initiative requires us and other investor-owned utilities in Missouri to generate or purchase electricity from

renewable energy sources such as solar wind biomass and hydro power at the rate of at least 2% of retail

sales by 2011 increasing to at least 15% by 2021 Two
percent

of this amount must be solar We believe we

are exempt from the solar requirement challenge to our exemption brought by two of our customers

and Power Source Solar Inc is pending in the Missouri Western District Court of Appeals In July 2010
the MPSC submitted to the Missouri Secretary of States office its rule for the renewable energy mandate

We are awaiting action from the Missouri Secretary of State but believe we are in compliance with the law

Kansas established renewable portfolio standard RPS in May 2009 which was approved October 27

2010 effective November 19 2010 Its final rulemaking was released in November 2010 which calls for

10% of our Kansas retail customer peak capacity requirements to be sourced from renewables by 2011
15% by 2016 and 20% by 2020 In addition there are several proposals currently before the U.S Congress

to adopt nationwide RPS

Shareholder Rights Plan

Our shareholder rights plan dated as of July 26 2000 expired July 25 2010 pursuant to its terms

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion analyzes significant changes in the results of operations for the years 2010
2009 and 2008

The following table represents our results of operations by operating segment for the applicable years

ended December 31 in millions

2010 2009 200K

Electric $43.2 $39.1 $37.4

Gas 2.6 0.9 1.7

Other 1.6 1.3 0.6

Net income $47.4 $41.3 $39.7
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Electric Segment

Overview

Our electric segment income for 2010 was $43.2 million as compared to $39.1 million for 2009

Electric operating revenues comprised approximately 89.2% of our total operating revenues during

2010 Electric operating revenues for 2010 2009 and 2008 were comprised of the following

2010 2009 2008

Residential 42.4% 41.6% 40.2%

Commercial 30.3 31.4 29.8

Industrial 14.4 15.2 15.1

Wholesale on-system
4.0 4.2 4.3

Wholesale off-system
4.7 3.3 6.6

Miscellaneous sources 2.6 2.7 2.5

Other electric revenues 1.6 1.6 1.5

primarily public authorities

The percentage of revenues provided from our wholesale off-system transactions increased during

2010 as compared to 2009 primarily due to increased market demand resulting from more favorable

weather in 2010 as compared to 2009 The percentage of revenues provided from our wholesale off-system

transactions decreased during 2009 as compared to 2008 primarily due to decreased market demand

resulting from milder weather in 2009 and general economic conditions

The amounts and percentage changes from the prior periods in kilowatt-hour kwh sales and

electric segment operating revenues by major customer class for on-system and off-system sales were as

follows

kWh Sales

in millions

Customer Class 2010 2009 Change 2009 2008 Change

Residential 2060.4 1866.5 10.4% 1866.5 1952.9 4.4%
Commercial 1644.9 1579.8 4.1 1579.8 1622.0 2.6

Industrial 1007.0 992.2 1.5 992.2 1073.3 7.6

Wholesale on-system 355.8 332.0 7.2 332.0 344.5 3.6

Other 126.5 123.4 2.5 123.4 123.8 0.3

Total on-system sales 5194.6 4893.9 6.1 4893.9 5116.5 4.3

Off-system 798.1 515.9 54.7 515.9 688.2 25.0

Total KWh Sales 5992.7 5409.8 10.8 5409.8 5804.7 6.8

Percentage changes are based on actual kWh sales and may not agree to the rounded amounts shown

above

Other kWh sales include street lighting other public authorities and interdepartmental usage
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Electric Segment Operating Revenues in millions

Customer Class 2010 2009 Changes 2009 2008 Change

Residential $204.9 $180.4 13.6% $180.4 $179.3 0.6%

Commercial 146.3 135.8 7.7 135.8 132.9 2.2

Industrial 69.7 66.0 5.6 66.0 67.4 2.0
Wholesale on-system 19.2 18.2 5.8 18.2 19.2 5.4
Other 12.3 11.6 6.1 11.6 11.0 5.1

Total on-system revenues 452.4 412.0 9.8 412.0 409.8 0.5

Off-system 22.9 14.3 59.6 14.3 29.7 51.7

Total revenues from KWh sales 475.3 426.3 11.5 426.3 439.5 3.0
Miscellaneous revenues 7.6 6.8 11.1 6.8 7.0 2.3

Total electric operating revenues $482.9 $433.1 11.5 $433.1 $446.5 3.0
Water revenues 1.8 1.8 2.3 1.8 1.7 1.0

Total Electric Segment Operating Revenues $484.7 $434.9 11.5 $434.9 $448.2 3.0

Percentage changes are based on actual revenues and may not agree to the rounded amounts shown

above

Other operating revenues include street lighting other public authorities and interdepartmental

usage

Miscellaneous revenues include transmission service revenues late payment fees renewable energy
credit sales rent etc

2010 Compared to 2009

On-System Operating Revenues and Kilowatt-Hour Sales

KWh sales for our on-system customers increased approximately 6.1% during 2010 as compared to

2009 with the associated revenues increasing approximately $40.5 million 9.8% Weather and other

related factors increased revenues an estimated $24.1 million Total cooling degree days the cumulative

number of degrees that the average temperature for each day during that period was above 65 for 2010

were 56.5% more than 2009 and 27.2% more than the 30-year average Total heating degree days the sum
of the number of degrees that the daily average temperature for each day during that period was below

65 for 2010 were 2.9% more than 2009 and 2.3% more than the 30-year average Rate changes

primarily the September 2010 Missouri rate increase and July 2010 Kansas rate increase discussed below
contributed an esiimated $14.0 million to revenues while continued sales growth contributed an estimated

$2.4 million We expect our annual customer growth to range from approximately 0.85% to 1.35% over the

next several years

Residential and commercial kWh sales increased in 2010 primarily due to favorable weather during

the year The related revenues increased during 2010 primarily due to the Missouri and Kansas rate

increases as well as continued sales growth Industrial kWh sales increased 1.5% in 2010 as compared to

2009 when there was slowdown created by economic uncertainty Industrial revenues increased 5.6%

mainly due to the Missouri and Kansas rate increases On-system wholesale kWh sales and revenues

increased reflecting the increased market demand resulting from the favorable weather

Off-System Electric Transactions

In addition to sales to our own customers we also sell power to other utilities as available including

through the Southwest Power Pool SPP energy imbalance services EIS market See Competition
below The majority of our off-system sales margins are now included as component of the fuel
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adjustment clause in our Missouri Kansas and Oklahoma jurisdictions and generally adjust the fuel and

purchased power expense As result nearly all of the off-system sales margin flows back to the customer

and has little effect on net income

Off-system revenues and related expenses were higher during 2010 as compared to 2009 primarily due

to increased market demand resulting from the favorable weather discussed above Total purchased power

related expenses are included in our discussion of purchased power costs below

Miscellaneous Revenues

Our miscellaneous revenues were $7.6 million during 2010 as compared to $6.8 million during 2009

These revenues are comprised mainly of transmission revenues late payment fees and renewable energy

credit sales

Operating Revenue Deductions Fuel and Purchased Power

During 2010 total fuel and purchased power expenses increased approximately $17.3 million 9.5%

as compared to 2009 The table below is reconciliation of our actual fuel and purchased power

expenditures netted with the regulatory adjustments to the fuel and purchased power expense shown on

our statements of income for 2010 and 2009

in millions

2010 2009

Actual fuel and purchased power expenditures
$200.0 $182.1

Kansas regulatory adjustments 0.1 0.5

Missouri fuel adjustment deferral 4.5 2.0

Missouri fuel adjustment recovery 3.1 1.7

Unrealized gain/loss on derivatives 0.8 0.3

Total fuel and purchased power expense per income statement $199.3 $182.0

Recovered from customers from prior deferral period

negative amount indicates costs have been under recovered from customers and positive

amount indicates costs have been over recovered from customers

The overall fuel and purchased power increase primarily reflects the effect of increased market

demand in 2010 resulting from favorable weather conditions

Summarized in the table below are our 2010 estimated cost and volume changes in the components of

fuel and purchased power expenses when compared to 2009 This table incorporates all the changes

mentioned above As shown below the largest impact on fuel and purchased power costs was increased

generation by our gas-fired units

2010 vs 2009
in millions

Natural gas generation volume 35.1

Coal generation volume 7.5

Purchased power spot purchase volume 9.8

Coal cost per mWh 0.9

Natural gas cost per mWh 16.9

Purchased power cost per mWh 3.4

Other primarily fuel adjustments 1.1

TOTAL 17.3
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Operating Revenue Deductions Other Than Fuel and Purchased Power

Regulated operating expenses increased approximately $7.0 million 11.1% during 2010 as compared
to 2009 primarily due to changes in the following accounts

in millions
2010 vs 2009

Transmission and distribution expense 1.9

General labor costs 1.2

Employee pension expense 1.0

Employee health care expense 1.0

Customer accounts expense 1.5

Steam power other operating expense 0.6

Property insurance 0.4

Injuries and damages expense 0.3

Customer assistance expense 0.3

General office expense 0.3

Other steam power expense 1.9
Other miscellaneous accounts netted 0.4

TOTAL $70

Approximately $1.6 million of this total is for charges incurred for delivering the output from

Plum Point to our system

Mainly increased banking fees and uncollectible accounts

Related to latan and latan operating costs that we were able to defer in accordance with

our agreement with the MPSC that allows deferral of certain costs until the plant additions

are included in customer rates

Maintenance and repairs expense increased approximately $3.8 million 11.8% during 2010 primarily

due to changes in the following accounts

in millions
2010 vs 2009

Distribution maintenance expense 1.3

Transmission maintenance expense 0.7

Maintenance and repairs expense at the Riverton plant coal units 0.9

Maintenance and repairs expense at the latan plant 0.7

Maintenance and repairs expense at the Plum Point plant 0.4

Maintenance and repairs expense at the Asbury plant 0.3

Maintenance and repairs expense at the Riverton plant gas units 0.4

Maintenance and repairs expense to SLCC 1.1
Other miscellaneous accounts netted 0.2

TOTAL $3

Mainly due to continued implementation of our system reliability plan

Mainly due to the 2010 five-year maintenance outage

Decrease mainly due to maintenance outage in 2009

Depreciation and amortization expense increased approximately $5.9 million 12.4% during 2010

reflecting our additions to plant in service and to additional regulatory amortization of $3.1 million The
remainder is increased plant in service in 2010 partially offset by the effect of deferred depreciation
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related to latan as allowed in our regulatory agreements pertaining to our Kansas and Missouri

jurisdictions This is net of the construction accounting effect of deferring $2.0 million of latan and

latan depreciation expense in 2010 as compared to $0.8 million of latan depreciation expense in 2009

Other taxes increased approximately $2.0 million due to increased property tax reflecting our additions to

plant in service and increased municipal franchise taxes

2009 Compared to 2008

On-System Operating Revenues and Kilowatt-Hour Sales

KWh sales for our on-system customers decreased approximately 4.3% during 2009 as compared to

2008 with the associated revenues increasing approximately $2.2 million 0.5% Weather and other related

factors decreased revenues an estimated $20.3 million Total cooling degree days for 2009 were 12.3% less

than 2008 and 18.7% less than the 30-year average Total heating degree days for 2009 were 4.0% less than

2008 and 0.5% less than the 30-year average Rate changes primarily the August 2008 Missouri rate

increase discussed below contributed an estimated $21.9 million to revenues while continued sales

growth contributed an estimated $0.6 million

Residential and commercial kWh sales decreased in 2009 primarily due to mild weather during the

year The related revenues increased during 2009 primarily due to the August 2008 Missouri rate increase

and continued sales growth Industrial kWh sales decreased 7.6% mainly due to slowdown created by

economic uncertainty while the associated revenues decreased 2.0% reflecting the economic conditions

partially offset by the Missouri rate increase On-system wholesale kWh sales and revenues decreased

reflecting the general economic conditions and mild weather

Off-System Electric Transactions

Off-system revenues and related expenses were less during 2009 as compared to 2008 primarily due to

decreased market demand and lower
gas prices that made it more economical for utilities to generate their

own power rather than purchase it Total purchased power related expenses are included in our discussion

of purchased power costs below

Miscellaneous Revenues

Our miscellaneous revenues were $6.8 million during 2009 as compared to $7.0 million during 2008

These revenues are comprised mainly of transmission revenues late payment fees and renewable energy

credit sales

Operating Revenue Deductions Fuel and Purchased Power

Total fuel and purchased power expenses decreased approximately $22.1 million 10.8% during 2009

as compared to 2008 The table below is reconciliation of our actual fuel and purchased power
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expenditures netted with the regulatory adjustments to the fuel and purchased power expense shown on

our statements of income for 2009 and 2008

in milIicns
2009 2008

Actual fuel and purchased power expenditures $182.1 $204.1

Kansas regulatory adjustments 0.5 0.5
Missouri fuel adjustment deferral 2.0 0.2

Missouri fuel adjustment recovery 1.7

Unrealized gain/loss on derivatives 0.3 0.3

Total fuel and purchased power expense per income statement $182.0 $204.1

negative amount indicates costs have been under recovered from customers and positive

amount indicates costs have been over recovered from customers

Recovered from customers from prior deferral period

The overall fuel and purchased power expense decrease primarily reflects the effect of decreased

market demand resulting from mild weather in 2009 as well as the effects of an extended outage at the

Asbury plant lasi ing from the fourth quarter of 2007 into the first quarter of 2008 during which time we
relied on purchased power as well as our gas-fired units to replace our coal-fired generation The decrease

in fuel costs also includes the effect of decreased off-system sales

Summarized in the table below are our estimated cost and volume changes in the components of fuel

and purchased power expenses when compared to 2008 This table incorporates all the changes mentioned

above As shown below the largest impacts on fuel and purchased power costs were lower purchased

power and natural gas prices and decreased generation by our gas-fired units

in millions
2009 vs 2008

Coal cost 3.8

Natural gas cost 2.3

Purchased power cost 10.1
Coal generation volume 0.6
Natural gas generation volume 23.1
Purchased power spot purchase volume 3.0

Natural gas gain on unwind of positions 2.1

Other including fuel adjustments 0.5

TOTAL $22.1
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Operating Revenue Deductions Other Than Fuel and Purchased Power

Regulated operating expenses increased approximately $1.0 million 1.6% during 2009 as compared

to 2008 primarily due to changes in the following accounts

in millions

2009 vs 2008

Professional services
1.5

Other steam power expense
1.2

General labor costs
0.8

Customer accounts expense 0.6

Employee health care expense 1.3

Injuries and damages expense 1.1

Employee pension expense 0.4

Regulatory commission expense 0.3

TOTAL $L0

Mainly increased banking fees

We were able to defer $0.6 million in other steam power expense which is included in the regulated

operating expense increase related to latan operating costs in accordance with our agreement with the

MPSC that allowed deferral of certain costs until the environmental upgrades to latan were included in

our rate base

Maintenance and repairs expense increased approximately $4.5 million 16.4% during 2009 primarily

due to changes in the following accounts

in millions

2009 vs 2008

Distribution maintenance costs 3.8

Maintenance and repairs expense at the Asbury plant
1.2

Maintenance and repairs expense to the SLCC 0.3

Maintenance and repairs expense to the Riverton gas units 0.1

Maintenance and repairs expense to State Line Unit No 0.1

Maintenance and repairs expense at the latan plant 0.6

Maintenance and repairs expense to the Riverton coal units 0.4

TOTAL $45

Includes $2.5 million of ice storm related amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased approximately $2.3 million 4.5% during 2009

primarily due to reduced regulatory amortization resulting from the Missouri rate case that went into

effect August 23 2008 Other taxes increased approximately $0.8 million due to increased property tax

reflecting our additions to plant in service and increased municipal franchise taxes
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Gas Segment

Gas Operating Revenues and Sales

The following tables detail our natural
gas sales and revenues for the

years ended December 31

Total Gas Delivered to Customers

bcf sales 2010 2009 Change 2009 2008 Change

Residential 2.68 2.69 0.4% 2.69 2.95 8.9%
Commercial 1.26 1.27 1.0 1.27 1.40 8.6
Industrial 0.11 0.22 50.5 0.22 0.55 60.5
Other 0.03 0.03 11.6 0.03 0.03 13.3
Total retail sales

4.08 4.21 3.1 4.21 4.93 14.6
Transportation sales 4.83 4.33 11.5 4.33 4.06 6.7

Total gas operating sales 8.91 8.54 4.3 8.54 8.99 5.0

Operating Revenues and Cost of Gas Sold

in millions
2010 2009 %Change 2009 2008 Change

Residential
$32.3 $36.2 10.9% $36.2 $39.6 8.7%

Commercial
13.3 15.5 14.2 15.5 17.4 10.7

Industrial
0.8 2.1 60.7 2.1 5.1 59.3

Other OA ft4 6.0 0.4 0.4 12.8
Total retail revenues $46.8 $54.2 13.7 $54.2 $62.5 13.4
Other revenues 0.4 0.2 107.3 0.2 0.2 2.1
Transportation revenues 3.7 2.9 266 2.9 2.7 10.0

Total
gas operating revenues $50.9 $57.3 11.2 $57.3 $65.4 12.4

Cost of
gas sold 26.6 35.6 25.2 35.6 42.6 16.5

Gas
operating revenues over cost of gas in rates $24.3 $21.7 11.8 $21.7 $22.8 4.8

Percentage change reflects the transfer of customer from
transportation to industrial sales in

April 2008 and back to transportation in
April 2009 and customer switching from industrial sales to

transportation in October 2009 after an eight-month suspension

Other includes other public authorities and
interdepartmental usage

2010 Compared to 2009

Operating Revenues and bcf Sales

Gas retail sales decreased 3.1% during 2010 as compared to 2009
reflecting customer contraction of

0.9% We believe this contraction was due to depressed economic conditions We estimate that the rate of

gas customer contraction will level out during the next two
years and begin modest growth after 2012

Residential and commercial sales decreased
slightly during 2010 despite heating degree days being 1.8%

higher in 2010 than 2009 Heating degree days were 2.2% lower in 2010 however than the 30-year

average Industrial sales decreased during 2010 due to customer contraction and the transfer of the

customer between classes mentioned above

During 2010 gas segment revenues were approximately $50.9 million as compared to $57.3 million in

2009 decrease of 11.2% This decrease was largely driven by lower PGAs that went into effect

November 13 2009 and November 2010 During 2010 our PGA revenue which represents the cost of

gas recovered from our customers was approximately $26.6 million as compared to $35.6 million in 2009
decrease of approximately $9.0 million 25.2% representing decrease in the cost of gas The cost of
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natural gas was lower for 2010 compared to 2009 as we experienced more than 20% decrease in the

annual price The overall impact resulted in an improved margin of approximately $2.6 million primarily

due to an increase in base rates for our Missouri gas customers that was effective April 2010

Our PGA clause allows us to recover from our customers subject to routine regulatory review the

cost of purchased gas supplies transportation and storage including costs associated with the use of

financial instruments to hedge the purchase price of natural gas Pursuant to the provisions of the PGA
clause the difference between actual costs incurred and costs recovered through the application of the

PGA are reflected as regulatory asset or regulatory liability until the balance is recovered from or

credited to customers

As of December 31 2010 we had unrecovered purchased gas costs of $0.4 million recorded as

non-current regulatory asset and over recovered purchased gas costs of $1.2 million recorded as current

regulatory liability

Operating Revenue Deductions

Total other operating expenses were $9.5 million during 2010 as compared to $10.3 million in 2009

primarily due to $0.7 million decrease in employee pension expense and $0.2 million decrease in

customer accounts expense mainly uncollectible accounts partially offset by $0.1 million increase in

regulatory commission expense

Depreciation and amortization expense increased approximately $1.0 million 50.5% during 2010 due

to increased depreciation rates resulting from our 2010 Missouri gas rate case

Our gas segment had net income of $2.6 million in 2010 as compared to $0.9 million in 2009

2009 Compared to 2008

Operating Revenues and bcf Sales

Gas retail sales decreased 14.6% during 2009 as compared to 2008 reflecting milder weather the

switching of customers between industrial sales and transportation see footnote above and the effect of

our gas segment customer contraction of 1.3% in 2009 We believe this contraction was due to depressed

economic conditions Residential and commercial sales decreased during 2009 primarily due to the milder

weather as well as customer contraction Heating degree days were 9.7% lower than 2008 and 3.9% lower

than the 30-year average Industrial sales decreased during 2009 due to the transfer of customers between

classes mentioned above

During 2009 gas segment revenues were approximately $57.3 million as compared to $65.4 million in

2008 decrease of 12.4% This decrease was largely driven by the decrease in residential and industrial

sales as well as PGA revenue During 2009 our PGA revenue was approximately $35.6 million as

compared to $42.6 million in 2008 decrease of approximately $7.0 million This decrease was largely

driven by the decrease in sales and decreases in the PGAs that went into effect May 15 2009 and

November 13 2009

As of December 31 2009 we had unrecovered purchased gas costs of $0.4 million recorded as

current regulatory asset and over recovered purchased gas costs of $1.9 million recorded as regulatory

liability

Operating Revenue Deductions

Total other operating expenses were $10.3 million during 2009 as compared to $10.0 million in 2008

mainly due to $0.2 million increase in distribution operation expense and $0.1 million increase in

general labor costs
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Our gas segment had net income of $0.9 million in 2009 as compared to $1.7 million in 2008

Consolidated Company

Income Taxes

The following table shows the increases in our consolidated provision for income taxes in millions

and our consolidated effective federal and state income tax rates for the applicable years ended

December 31

2010 2009 2008

Consolidated provision for income taxes $10.9 0.4 4.7

Consolidated effective federal and state income tax rates 39.2% 32.5% 32.5%

The effective tax rate for 2010 is higher than 2009 primarily due to the new health care legislation On
March 23 2010 the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act became law This legislation includes

provision that reduces the deductibility for income tax purposes of retiree healthcare costs to the extent

an employer receives federal subsidies Companies receive the subsidy when they provide retiree

prescription benefits at least equivalent to Medicare Part coverage in their postretirement healthcare

plan Although the elimination of this tax benefit does not take effect until 2013 this change required us to

recognize the full accounting impact in our financial statements in the period in which the legislation was

enacted As result in the first quarter of 2010 we recorded one-time non-cash charge of approximately

$2.1 million to income taxes to reflect the impact of this change Our 2010 effective tax rate also increased

due to the additional tax expense associated with the changes in the Medicare Part tax benefit As

result our effective income tax rate for 2010 was 39.2% as compared to 32.5% in 2009 Excluding these

non-cash charges the effective tax rate in 2010 would have been 35.0%

As part of an agreement reached in our most recently completed Missouri electric rate case effective

September 10 2010 we agreed to commence an eighteen year amortization of deferred asset related to

the tax benefits of cost of removal These tax benefits were flowed through to customers from 1981 2008

and totaled approximately $11.1 million We recorded regulatory asset expecting to recover these benefits

from customers in future periods We estimated the portion of the amortization period where rate recovery

would no longer be probable for this item and wrote off approximately $1.2 million in the first quarter of

2010 Amortization of the remaining regulatory tax asset will begin in 2012 which is also when we expect to

be able to request rate recovery of the asset

December 2009 award from an arbitration panel ordered KCPL to renegotiate with the IRS

previous $125 million advanced coal investment tax credit granted to our latan plant The IRS executed

revised memorandum of understanding MOU on September 2010 which granted us our share

$17.7 million of advanced coal investment tax credits in accordance with the arbitration panels order We
will utilize approximately $5.1 million of these credits to reduce our 2010 tax payments and 2010 tax

liability and these are reflected as part of our income tax receivable in accounts receivable other The

remainder is recorded as deferred taxes The tax credit will have no significant income statement impact as

the credits will flow to our customers as we amortize the tax credits over the life of the plant

On September 16 2010 we received approximately $26.6 million from the SWPA as payment

regarding the decrease in available net head waters at our hydroelectric generating plant located on the

White River at Ozark Beach Missouri Currently we have increased our current liability for income taxes

by $10.0 million in anticipation that we will pay income taxes currently on the $26.6 million award but no

impact to our revenues or net income has been recorded to date See Note of Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements under Item for additional information regarding income taxes

Based on the extension of bonus depreciation through 2012 enacted by Congress we do not expect to

incur any federal income tax liability during 2011 Additionally we currently estimate that approximately

$12 million of advanced coal investment tax credits will be available to partially offset federal tax liabilities

in 2012 and possibly 2013
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Nonoperating Items

The following table shows the total allowance for funds used during construction AFUDC for the

applicable periods ended December 31 AFUDC decreased in 2010 as compared to 2009 and 2008

reflecting the completion of latan and the Plum Point Energy Station in 2010 AFUDC increased in 2009

as compared to 2008 due to higher levels of construction in 2009 See Note of Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements under Item

in millions

Allowance for equity funds used during construction 4.5 6.2 5.9

Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction 5.7 7.9 6.6

Total AFUDC $10.2 $14.1 $12.5

Total interest charges on long-term and short-term debt for 2010 2009 and 2008 are shown below The

decrease in long-term debt interest for 2010 as compared to 2009 reflects the redemption of $48.3 million

aggregate principal amount of our Senior Notes 7.05% Series due 2022 which were redeemed on

August 27 2010 and replaced by $50 million principal amount 5.20% first mortgage bonds issued

August 25 2010 The decrease for 2010 also reflects the redemption of 6.5% first mortgage bonds on

April 2010 and the redemption of our 8.5% trust preferred securities on June 28 2010 which were

replaced by 4.65% first mortgage bonds issued May 28 2010 The increase in long-term debt interest for

2009 reflects the interest on the $75 million principal amount of first mortgage bonds we issued March 27

2009 and the $90 million principal amount of first mortgage bonds we issued May 16 2008 The decreases

in short-term debt interest for all periods presented primarily reflect lower levels of borrowing

Interest Charges
in millions

2010 2009 Change 2009 2008 Change

Long-term debt interest $41.9 $42.1 0.3% $42.1 $36.0 16.8%

Short-term debt interest 0.6 1.1 43.9 1.1 1.9 39.3
Trust preferred securities interest 2.1 4.3 50.8 4.3 4.3 0.0

latan and carrying charges 3.2 1.3 136.9 1.3
Other interest 0.9 0.6 28.2 0.6 1.1 42.5

Total interest charges $42.3 $46.8 9.5 $46.8 $43.3 8.0

Beginning in the second quarter of 2009 we deferred latan carrying charges to reflect construction

accounting in accordance with our agreement with the MPSC that allows deferral of certain costs until

the environmental upgrades to latan are included in our rate base We began deferring Iatan

carrying charges in the third quarter of 2010 See Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements under Item for information regarding carrying charges

RATE MATTERS

We continually assess the need for rate relief in all of the jurisdictions we serve and file for such relief

when necessary In addition to the information set forth below see Note of Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements under Item

Our rates for retail electric and natural gas services other than specially negotiated retail rates for

industrial or large commercial customers which are subject to regulatory review and approval are

determined on cost of service basis Rates are designed to provide after recovery of allowable

operating expenses an opportunity for us to earn reasonable return on rate base Rate base is

generally determined by reference to the original cost net of accumulated depreciation and amortization
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of utility plant in service subject to various adjustments for deferred taxes and other items Over time rate

base is increased by additions to utility plant in service and reduced by depreciation amortization and

retirement of utility plant or write-offs as ordered by the utility commissions In general request of new
rates is made on the basis of rate base as of date prior to the date of the request and allowable

operating expenses for 12-month test period ended prior to the date of the request Although the current

rate making process provides recovery of some future changes in rate base and operating costs it does not

reflect all changes in costs for the period in which new retail rates will be in place This results in lag

between the time we incur costs and the time when we can start recovering the costs through rates

The following table sets forth information regarding electric and water rate increases since January

2008

Annual Percent

Date Increase Increase Date
Jurisdiction Requested Granted Granted Effective

Missouri Electric October 29 2009 $46800000 13.40% September 10 2010

Oklahoma Electric March 25 2010 $1456979 15.70% September 2010

Kansas Electric November 2009 2800000 12.4% July 2010

Missouri Gas June 2009 2600000 4.37% April 2010

Missouri Eleciric October 2007 $22040395 6.70% August 23 2008

Electric Segment

Missouri

2010 Rate Case

On September 28 2010 we filed rate increase request with the MPSC for an annual increase in base

rates for our Missouri electric customers in the amount of $36.5 million or 9.2% to recover the latan

costs and other cost of service items not included in the 2009 Missouri rate case see below

2009 Rate Case

On October 29 2009 we filed request with the MPSC for an annual increase in base rates for our

Missouri electric customers in the amount of $68.2 million or 19.6% This
request was primarily designed

to allow us to recover capital expenditures associated with environmental upgrades at latan and our

investment in new generating units at latan and the Plum Point Generating Station As result of the

delay in the latan project however we agreed to not seek permanent increase in this rate case for any

costs associated with the latan unit with the exception of that portion of the latan common plant needed

to operate latan

stipulated agreement was filed on May 12 2010 calling for an annual increase of $46.8 million

provided the Plum Point Generating Station met its in-service criteria by August 15 2010 If the in-service

criteria were not met by such date base rate increase of $33.1 million was stipulated The Plum Point

Generating Station completed its in-service criteria testing on August 12 2010 with an in-service date of

August 13 2010 thus new rates providing for the full increase of $46.8 million were effective

September 10 2010 The $46.8 million authorized increase in annual revenues includes $36.8 million in

base rate revenue and $10 million in regulatory amortization The regulatory amortization which is treated

as additional book depreciation for rate-making purposes and is reflected in the financial statements was

granted to provide additional cash flow through rates This regulatory amortization is related to our

investments in facilities and environmental upgrades completed during the recent construction cycle As

agreed in our regulatory plan we will use construction accounting for our Iatan project See Note and

Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements under Item We also agreed to commence an

eighteen year amortization of deferred asset related to the tax benefits of cost of removal These tax
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benefits were flowed through to customers from 1981 to 2008 and totaled approximately $11.1 million We

had previously recorded regulatory asset expecting to recover these benefits from customers in future

periods We estimated the portion of the amortization period where rate recovery would no longer be

probable for this item and wrote off approximately $1.2 million in the first quarter of 2010 Amortization of

the remaining regulatory tax asset will begin in 2012 which is also when we expect to be able to request

rate recovery
of the asset See Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements under Item

2007 Rate Case

The MPSC issued an order on July 30 2008 in response to request filed with the MPSC on

October 2007 for an annual increase in base rates for our Missouri electric customers This order

granted an annual increase in revenues for our Missouri electric customers in the amount of $22.0 million

or 6.7% based on 10.8% return on equity The new rates went into effect August 23 2008

The order contained two components The first component provided an addition to base rates of

approximately $27.7 million This increase in base rates was partially offset by $5.7 million reduction to

regulatory amortization which is the second component to support certain credit metrics of the overall

change in revenue authorized by the MPSC Regulatory amortization provided us additional cash through

rates during our construction cycle This construction which was part of our long-range plan to ensure

reliability included the facilities at the Riverton Power Plant and latan Power Plant as well as

environmental improvements at the Asbury Power Plant and at latan The regulatory amortization as

result of this case was approximately $4.5 million annually and was recorded as depreciation expense

The MPSC also authorized fuel adjustment clause for our Missouri customers effective

September 2008 The MPSC established base cost for the recovery of fuel and purchased power

expenses used to supply energy The clause permits the distribution to customers of 95% of the changes in

fuel and purchased power costs above or below the base cost Off-system sales margins are also part of the

recovery of fuel and purchased power costs As result the off-system sales margin flows back to the

customer Rates related to the recovery of fuel and purchased power costs will be modified twice year

subject to the review and approval by the MPSC In accordance with accounting guidance for regulated

activities 95% of the difference between the actual cost of fuel and purchased power and the base cost of

fuel and purchased power recovered from our customers is recorded as an adjustment to fuel and

purchased power expense with corresponding regulatory asset or regulatory liability If the actual fuel

and purchased power costs are higher or lower than the base fuel and purchased power costs billed to

customers 95% of these amounts will be recovered or refunded to our customers when the fuel adjustment

clause is modified

The MPSC order in the rate case approved Stipulation and Agreement providing for the recovery of

deferred expenses of approximately $14.2 million over five year period for the 2007 ice storms In

addition the MPSC order required the implementation of two-way tracking mechanism for recovery of

the costs relating to the new MPSC rules on infrastructure inspection and vegetation management The

mechanism authorized by the MPSC created regulatory liability in any year we spend less than the target

amount which has been set at $8.6 million for our Missouri jurisdiction and regulatory asset if we spend

more than the target amount Any regulatory asset and liability amounts created using the tracking

mechanism will then be netted against each other and taken into account in our next rate case The MPSC
also approved Stipulations and Agreements providing for the continuation of the pension and other

post-retirement employee benefits tracking mechanism established in our 2006 and 2007 Missouri rate

orders

The MPSC issued its Report and Order on July 30 2008 effective August 2008 The OPC and

intervenors Praxair Inc and Explorer Pipeline Company filed applications for rehearing with the MPSC

regarding this order On August 12 2008 the MPSC issued its Order Granting Expedited Treatment and

Approving Compliance Tariff Sheets effective August 23 2008 in which the MPSC approved our tariff
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sheets containing our base rates for service rendered on and after August 23 2008 and approved our fuel

adjustment clause tariff sheets effective September 2008 On September 2008 the MPSC denied all

pending applications for rehearing

On October 2008 the OPC and intervenors Praxair Inc and Explorer Pipeline Company filed

Petitions for Writ of Review with the Cole County Circuit Court These actions were consolidated into one

proceeding briefs were filed and the Cole County Circuit Court heard oral arguments on September 29
2009 The Cole County Circuit Court issued ruling on December 31 2009 affirming the Commissions

Report and Order OPC Praxair and Explorer Pipeline filed appeals with the Western District Court of

Appeals Explorer Pipeline was dismissed from the pending appeal on October 18 2010

2006 Rate Case

In December 2008 the OPC and intervenors Praxair Inc and Explorer Pipeline Company filed

Petitions for Writ of Review with the Cole County Circuit Court challenging the tariffs resulting from our

2006 Missouri rate case that went into effect January 2007 The Cole County Circuit Court issued

ruling on December 2009 affirming the Commissions Report and Order OPC Praxair and Explorer

Pipeline filed appeals with the Western District Court of Appeals On October 26 2010 the Western

District Court of Appeals affirmed the Commissions Report and Order Praxair Inc and Explorer

Pipeline Company filed with the Western District Court of Appeals Motion for Rehearing and an

Application for Transfer to the Supreme Court On December 2010 the Western District Court of

Appeals overruled the Motion for Rehearing and denied the Application for Transfer to the Supreme
Court Praxair .nc then asked the Missouri Supreme Court to transfer the case to that court On

January 25 2011 the request was denied

Kansas

On November 2009 we filed request with the KCC for an annual increase in base rates for our

Kansas electric customers in the amount of $5.2 million or 24.6% This request was primarily to allow us

to recover capital expenditures associated with environmental upgrades at latan completed in 2009 and

at our Asbury plant completed in 2008 and our investment in new generating units at latan the Plum
Point Generating Station and our Riverton 12 unit that went on line in 2007 stipulated agreement was

filed on May 2010 and approved by the KCC on June 25 2010 calling for $2.8 million or 12.4%
increase in base rates effective July 2010 We will defer depreciation and operating and maintenance

expense on both Plum Point and latan from their respective in-service dates until the effective date for

rates from the next Kansas case expected to be an abbreviated rate case that will be filed within the next

year These deferrals will be recovered over 3-5 year period as determined in that next case We will

record AFUDC on all Plum Point and latan capital expenditures incurred after January 31 2010

Oklahoma

On March 25 2010 we requested capital cost recovery rider CCRR at the Oklahoma Corporation
Commission 0CC The rider was designed to recover the carrying costs on our capital investment for

generation transmission and distribution assets that have been added to the system since our last

Oklahoma general rate case May 2003 as well as investments made on an ongoing basis As requested
the operation of the CCRR would have increased our operating revenue by approximately $3 million or

approximately 33% in Oklahoma in series of three steps to be followed with general rate case in 2011
On August 30 2010 we were granted two-phase Capital Reliability Rider CRR by the 0CC The first

phase of the rider was put into place for Oklahoma customers for usage on and after September 2010
and results in an overall annual base revenue increase of approximately $1.5 millionor 15.7% In total the

CRR revenue has been specifically limited by the 0CC to an overall annual revenue increase of

$2.6 million or 27.67% increase On January 28 2011 we requested the approval by the 0CC of the

phase rates of the CRR We requested an additional $1.1 million which brings the total annual revenue
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under the 0CC to approximately $2.5 million We will file general rate case within six months of the

commercial operation date of latan which was December 31 2010 to replace the CRR with permanent

rates

Arkansas

On August 19 2010 we filed rate increase request with the Arkansas Public Service Commission

APSC for an annual increase in base rates for our Arkansas electric customers in the amount of

$3.2 million or 27.3% On February 2011 we entered into unanimous settlement agreement with the

parties involved The settlement includes general rate increase of $2.1 million or 19% The settlement

calls for the implementation of new tariff the Transmission Cost Recovery Rider TCR designed to

track changes in the cost of transmission charges from the Southwest Power Pool Inc The existing Energy

Cost Recovery Rider was also modified to include the recovery of the costs associated with certain air

quality control materials hearing on the settlement has been scheduled for March 2011 at the APSC

FERC

On March 12 2010 we filed GFR tariffs with the FERC which we propose to be utilized for our

wholesale customers On May 28 2010 the FERC issued an order that conditionally approved our GFR

filing subject to refund effective June 2010 As of December 31 2010 we had collected $0.6 million in

rates subject to refund On June 30 2010 three of our on-system wholesale customers were granted

intervention in the GFR rate case Also on May 28 2010 we filed notice with the FERC requesting

termination of the current bundled service agreements for our wholesale customers effective July 31 2010

On July 28 2010 the FERC issued an order accepting and suspending the proposed terminations for

nominal period to become effective July 31 2010 subject to refund The FERCs order also consolidated

the GFR and termination proceedings On September 15 2010 the parties agreed to settlement in

principle and are now working to finalize the terms of the settlement

Gas Segment

On June 2009 we filed request with the MPSC for an annual increase in base rates for our

Missouri
gas

customers in the amount of $2.9 million or 4.9% In this filing we requested recovery
of the

ongoing cost of operating and maintaining our 1200-mile gas distribution system and return on equity of

11.3% On February 24 2010 the MPSC unanimously approved an agreement among the Office of the

Public Counsel OPC the MPSC staff and Empire for an increase of $2.6 million Pursuant to the

Agreement new rates went into effect on April 2010

COMPETITION

Electric Segment

SPP-RTO

Enej Imbalance Services On February 2007 the Southwest Power Pool SPP regional

transmission organization RTO launched its energy imbalance services market EIS In general the SPP

RTO EIS market provides real time energy for most participating members within the SPP regional

footprint Imbalance energy prices are based on market bids and status/availability of dispatchable

generation and transmission within the SPP market footprint In addition to energy imbalance service the

SPP RTO performs real time security-constrained economic dispatch of all generation voluntarily offered

into the EIS market to the market participants to also serve the native load

Day Ahead Market The SPP and its members have been evaluating the costs and benefits on

expanding the EIS market into full day ahead energy market with co-optimized ancillary services

market which will include the consolidation of all SPP balancing authorities including ours into single
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SPP balancing authority On April 28 2009 the SPP Regional State Committee SPP RSC whose

members include state commissioners from our four state commissions and the SPP Board of Directors

SPP BOD endorsed cost benefit
report that recommended the SPP RTO move forward with the

development of day-ahead market with unit commitment and co-optimized ancillary services market

Day-Ahead Market and implement the complete Day-Ahead Market as soon as practical which is

anticipated in late 2013 or early 2014 As part of the Day-Ahead Market the SPP RTO will create prior to

implementation of such market single NERC approved balancing authority to take over balancing

authority responsibilities for its members including us which is expected to provide operational and

economic benefits for our customers The implementation of the Day-Ahead Market will replace the

existing EIS market which to date has and is expected to continue to provide benefits for our customers

SPP Regional Transmission Development On August 15 2008 the SPP filed with the FERC proposed

revisions to its open access transmission pro forma tariff OATT to establish
process

for including

balanced portfolio of economic transmission upgrades in the annual SPP Transmission Expansion Plan

The cost of such upgrades will be recovered through regional rate allocated to SPP members based on

their load ratio share within SPPs market area of the balanced portfolios cost On October 16 2008 the

FERC accepted the balanced portfolio approach which sets forth the selection
process of group of

projects and regional cost allocation rules based on projected benefits and allocated costs over ten year

period The plan will be balanced if the portfolio is cost beneficial for each zone including ours within the

SPP balanced portfolio could include projects below the 345 kv level which is the bright line voltage

level for projects to be included in the portfolio to increase benefits to particular zone to achieve

balance of benefits and costs over the ten year study period On April 28 2009 the SPP RSC and the SPP
BOD approved the first set of balanced portfolio extra high voltage transmission projects to be constructed

within the SPP region The transmission expansion projects totaling over $840 million include projects in

Missouri Kansas Arkansas Oklahoma Nebraska and Texas We anticipate this set of transmission

expansion projects will provide long term benefits to our customers While we do not project our allocated

costs for the balanced portfolio projects to be material we expect that the costs will be recoverable in

future rates Also on April 28 2009 the SPP RSC and BOD approved new report that recommended

restructuring of the SPPs regional planning processes which would establish an integrated planning

process for reliability transmission service and economic transmission projects based on new set of

planning principles that focus on the construction of more robust transmission system large enough in

both scale and geography to provide flexibility to meet SPP members and customers future needs We will

continue to actively participate in the development of these new processes as well as cost allocation and

recovery issues with members prospective customers and the state commission representatives to the SPP
RSC

On October 27 2009 the SPP BOD endorsed new transmission cost allocation method to replace

the existing FERC accepted cost allocation method for new transmission facilities needed to continue to

reliably and economically serve SPP customers including ours well into the future On April 19 2010 SPP
filed revisions to its OATT to adopt new highway/byway cost allocation methodology which require SPP
BOD approved transmission projects of 300 kV or larger to be funded by the region at 100% transmission

projects between 100 kV and 300 kV to receive 33% regional funding with individual constructing zones to

pay 67% of those projects built within the zone For projects under 100kv the constructing zones would

pay 100% of the cost On May 17 2010 we filed joint protest at the FERC with other SPP members
based on our disagreement with the SPP on the allocation percentages and various other issues On
June 17 2010 the FERC unconditionally approved the new highway/byway cost allocation method We
and other members of the SPP filed Request for Rehearing on July 19 2010 It is uncertain as to when or

if the FERC will rule on our Request for Rehearing To date the SPPs BOD has approved $1.4 billion in

highway/byway projects to be constructed over the next several years As these projects are constructed we
will be allocated share of the costs of the projects pursuant to the FERC accepted cost allocation method

We expect that these costs will be recoverable in future rates
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In related but
separate filing on May 17 2010 the SPP filed revisions to its OATT to incorporate

modified transmission planning process the Integrated Transmission Plan ITP that the SPP will use to

determine its near and long term transmission needs to meet reliability and provide economic benefits

throughout the SPP region On June 2010 we made joint protest filing at the FERC regarding the ITP

filing which expressed our concerns over the Jack of explicit provisions in the SPP OATF to protect SPP

customers from the approval of transmission projects that may not sufficiently benefit the SPP region On

July 15 2010 the FERC issued an order conditionally accepting SPP proposed ITP planning process and

tariff provisions to be effective on July 17 2010 and ordered SPP to make compliance filing by

August 15 2010 on the timing of ITP business practices and factors to be considered for changing the

allocation of costs methods for dual winding high voltage transformers We and the other parties to the

SPP ITP jointly filed formal Request for Rehearing at the FERC on the ITP order on August 13 2010

On September 2010 the FERC granted our Request For Rehearing to allow additional time for FERCs

further consideration

FERC Market Power Order

As
part

of our market based pricing authority from the FERC we are required to conduct market

power analysis within our service territory and within the SPP RTO region every three years We filed our

triennial market power analysis with the FERC on July 30 2009 concluding there were no material

changes to our market position As result we did not anticipate any changes to our existing market based

rate authority On July 13 2010 the FERC issued an order accepting our triennial market power analysis

and authorized the continuation of our market based rate authority for wholesale transactions outside our

service territory

Other FERC Activity

On May 21 2009 the FERC issued an order clarifying that going forward small public utilities that

have been granted waiver of Order No 889 Open Access Same Time Information Systems OASIS
requirement and the Standards of Conduct for transmission operations which includes us are required to

submit notification filing if there has been material change in facts that may affect the basis on which

public utilitys waiver was premised The Standards of Conduct generally govern the communications

between our day to day transmission operations personnel and our day to day wholesale marketing and

sales personnel We submitted our filing on July 13 2009 in which we stated our belief that continuation of

our waiver issued in 1997 and reaffirmed in 2004 was appropriate and reasonable Based on the May 21

2009 order it is possible that the FERC will revoke our waiver which would impact communication

between our transmission and wholesale marketing and sales functions and operations within our

organization As part of our filing we sought twelve month extension in order to comply with the

Standard of Conduct requirements in the event the FERC determined that revoking our waiver was

appropriate The FERCs decision on this and other Standard of Conduct waiver filings is pending As of

July 19 2010 we have voluntarily taken
steps to allow us to comply with FERC order with minimal

additional impact

On June 17 2010 FERC issued Notice of Proposed Rulemaking NOPR proposing to amend the

transmission planning and cost allocation requirements established in Order No 890 to ensure that

FERC-jurisdictional services are provided on basis that is just reasonable and not unduly discriminatory

or preferential With respect to transmission planning FERC said that the proposed rule would

provide that local and regional transmission planning processes account for transmission needs driven

by public policy requirements established by state or federal laws or regulations improve coordination

between neighboring transmission planning regions with respect to interregional facilities and remove

from FERC-approved tariffs or agreements right of first refusal created by those documents that

provides an incumbent transmission provider with an undue advantage over non-incumbent transmission

developer Neither incumbent nor non-incumbent transmission facility developers should as result of
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FERC-approved tariff or agreement receive different treatment in regional transmission planning

process FERC contended Further both should share similar benefits and obligations commensurate with

that participation including the right consistent with state or local laws or regulations to construct and

own facility that it sponsors in regional transmission planning process
and that is selected for inclusion

in the regional transmission plan With respect to cost allocation the proposed rule would establish

closer link between transmission planning processes and cost allocation and would require cost allocation

methods for intraregional and interregional transmission facilities to satisfy newly established cost

allocation principles We participated in the development of comments by the SPP RTO which were filed

at FERC on September 29 2010 We will continue to monitor the NOPR as it may affect our existing rights

to construct transmission facilities in our service territory as well as high voltage transmission expansion
and cost allocation that will affect our cost of delivery service to our customers

Gas Segment

Non-residential gas customers whose annual usage exceeds certain amounts may purchase natural gas

from source other than EDG EDG does not have non-regulated energy marketing service that sells

natural gas in competition with outside sources EDG continues to receive non-gas related revenues for

distribution and oiher services if natural
gas

is purchased from another source by our eligible customers

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Overview Our primary sources of liquidity are cash provided by operating activities short-term

borrowings under our commercial paper program which is supported by our credit facilities and

borrowings from our unsecured revolving credit facility As needed we raise funds from the debt and

equity capital markets to fund our liquidity and capital resource needs

Our issuance of various securities including equity long-term and short-term debt is subject to

customary approval or authorization by state and federal regulatory bodies including state public service

commissions and the SEC We estimate that internally generated funds funds provided by operating

activities less dividends paid will provide the majority of the funds required in 2011 for our budgeted

capital expenditures as discussed in Capital Requirements and Investing Activities below We believe

the amounts available to us under our credit facilities and the issuance of debt and equity securities

together with this cash provided by operating activities will allow us to meet our needs for working capital

pension contributions our continuing construction expenditures anticipated debt redemptions interest

payments on debt obligations dividend payments and other cash needs through the next several years

We will continue to evaluate our need to increase available liquidity based on our view of working

capital requirements including the timing of our construction programs and other factors See Item 1A
Risk Factors for additional information on items that could impact our liquidity and capital resource

requirements The following table provides summary of our operating investing and financing activities

for the last three years

Summary of Cash Flows

Fiscal Year

in millions
2010 2009 2008

Cash provided by/c used in
Operating activities $138.1 $129.6 93.0

Investing activities 109.2 154.7 211.8

Financing activilies 20.0 28.0 117.5

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 8.9 2.9 1.3
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Cash flow from Operating Activities

We prepare our statement of cash flows using the indirect method Under this method we reconcile

net income to cash flows from operating activities by adjusting net income for those items that impact net

income but may not result in actual cash receipts or payments during the period These reconciling items

include depreciation and amortization pension costs deferred income taxes equity AFUDC changes in

commodity risk management assets and liabilities and changes in the consolidated balance sheet for

working capital from the beginning to the end of the period

Year-over-year changes in our operating cash flows are attributable primarily to working capital

changes resulting from the impact of weather the timing of customer collections payments for natural gas

and coal purchases and the effects of deferred fuel recoveries The increase in natural gas prices directly

impacts the cost of gas stored in inventory In the third quarter of 2010 we also received $26.6 million

SWPA payment which positively impacted operating cash flows

2010 compared to 2009 In 2010 our net cash flow provided from operating activities was

$138.1 million an increase of $8.5 million or 6.6% from 2009 This increase was primarily result of

Changes in net income $6.1 million

One-time payment from SWPA for future minimum flow decreases at Ozark Beach hydro plant see
Note Other Noncurrent Liabilities of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements under

Item $26.6 million

Changes in investment tax credits including the granting of $17.7 million of advanced coal

investment tax credits resulting from revised MOU from the IRS offset by changes in deferred

income taxes $11.6 million

Draw down of the commodity risk management margin accounts through settlement of hedged

positions in 2009 $8.5 million

Changes in seasonal levels of inventory including the effect of building coal inventories at Plum

Point and latan $6.2 million

Changes in pension and other
post retirement benefit costs primarily due to the result of increased

pension contributions of $7.2 million $7.8 million

Changes in receivables due to seasonal levels of trade accounts receivable unbilled revenues and

income taxes receivable offset by insurance proceeds received from the 2009 State Line generator

failure $14.2 million

Changes in prepaid expenses and deferred charges primarily related to changes in deferred fuel

costs and non-cash construction accounting See Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements under Item $9.9 million

2009 compared to 2008 In 2009 our net cash flow provided from operating activities was

$129.6 million an increase of $36.6 million or 39.3% from 2008 This increase was primarily result of

Draw down of the commodity risk management margin accounts through settlement of hedged

positions $10.3 million

Decreased cash payments for income taxes reflecting positive affects for accelerated tax

depreciation $6.7 million

Changes in depreciation and amortization reflecting collection of deferred ice storm costs from

customers $3.2 million

Changes in the levels of accounts receivable and inventory primarily from lower gas prices

$23.3 million
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Capital Requirements and Investing Activities

Our net cash flows used in investing activities decreased $45.5 million from 2009 to 2010 The
decrease was primarily the result of decrease in electric plant additions and replacements including new

generation construction in 2010

Our net cash flows used in investing activities decreased $57.1 million from 2008 to 2009 The 2008

capital expenditures reflect cash outlays for the December 2007 ice storm These expenditures were

incurred in 2007 but paid in the first quarter of 2008 In addition expenditures for new generation and

distribution and transmission system additions were lower in 2009 than in 2008

Our capital expenditures totaled approximately $108.2 million $148.8 million and $206.4 million in

2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

breakdown of these capital expenditures for 2010 2009 and 2008 is as follows

Capital Expenditures

in millions
2010 2009 2008

Distribution and transmission system additions 38.8 33.7 46.8

New generation Plum Point Energy Station 6.9 16.3 30.9

New generation latan 42.7 66.2 82.6

Storms 0.1 6.4 4.3

Additions and replacements electric plant 7.2 22.8 40.2

Gas segment additions and replacements 5.0 2.1 1.9

Transportation 1.3 1.4 1.2

Other including retirements and salvage net1 3.4 1.4 3.6

Subtotal $105.4 $147.5 $204.3

Non-regulated capital expenditures primarily fiber optics 2.8 1.3 2.1

Subtotal capital expenditures incurred2 $108.2 $148.8 $206.4

Adjusted for capital expenditures payable3 3.8 3.8 6.9

Insurance proceeds receivable 0.1 5.6

Capital lease primarily Plum Point unit train 2.7 2.9

Total cash outlay $109.2 $155.3 $213.3

Other includes equity AFUDC of $4.5 million $6.2 million and $5.9 million for 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively 2009 and 2008 also include proceeds from sale of property of $0.5 million and

$1.5 million respectively

Expenditures incurred represent the total cost for work completed for the projects during the year

Discussion of capital expenditures throughout this 10-K is presented on this basis These capital

expenditures include AFUDC capital expenditures to retire assets and benefits from salvage

The amount of expenditures paid/unpaid at the end of the year to adjust to actual cash outlay

reflected in the Investing Activities section of the Statement of Cash Flows

Approximately 75% 55% and 23% of our cash requirements for capital expenditures for 2010 2009

and 2008 respectively were satisfied internally from operations funds provided by operating activities less

dividends paid The remaining amounts of such requirements were satisfied from short-term borrowings

and proceeds from our sales of common stock and debt securities discussed below
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Our estimated capital expenditures excluding AFUDC for 2011 2012 and 2013 are detailed below

See Item Business Construction Program We anticipate that we will spend the following amounts

over the next three years for the following projects

Project 2011 2012 2013

latan $12.6

Riverton Unit 12 combined cycle conversion 6.7

Electric distribution system additions 37.5 41.6 43.4

Electric transmission facilities additions 9.8 15.3 22.1

Additions to existing electric generating facilities Asbury 3.8 42.6 81.4

Other 42.6 28.0 35.3

Total $106.3 $127.5 $188.9

We estimate that internally generated funds will provide approximately 99% of the funds required in

2011 for our budgeted capital expenditures We intend to utilize combination of short-term debt the

proceeds of sales of long-term debt and/or common stock including common stock sold under our

Employee Stock Purchase Plan our Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan and our 401k Plan

and our ESOP if needed to finance additional amounts needed beyond those provided by operating

activities for such capital expenditures We will continue to utilize short-term debt as needed to support

normal operations or other temporary requirements The estimates herein may be changed because of

changes we make in our construction program unforeseen construction costs our ability to obtain

financing regulation and for other reasons See further discussion under Financing Activities below

Financing Activities

Our net cash flows provided by financing activities decreased $48.0 million to $20.0 million during

2010 as compared to $28.0 million in 2009 primarily due to decrease in proceeds net of repayments of

long-term debt received from new issuances of long-term debt and equity as described below and

increased dividends

Our net cash flows provided by financing activities decreased $89.5 million to $28.0 million during

2009 as compared to $117.5 million in 2008 primarily due to decrease in proceeds net of repayments of

short-term debt borrowings in 2009

On August 25 2010 we issued $50 million principal amount of 5.20% first mortgage bonds due

September 2040 The net proceeds after payment of expenses of approximately $49.1 million were

used to redeem $48.3 million aggregate principal amount of our Senior Notes 7.05% Series due 2022 on

August 27 2010

On May 28 2010 we issued $100 million principal amount of 4.65% first mortgage bonds due June

2020 The net proceeds after payment of expenses of approximately $98.8 million were used to redeem

all million outstanding shares of our 8.5% trust preferred securities totaling $50 million on June 28

2010 and to repay short-term debt which was incurred in part to fund the repayment at maturity of our

6.5% first mortgage bonds due 2010

On February 25 2009 we entered into an equity distribution agreement with UBS Securities LLC

UBS Under the terms of the agreement as amended we could offer and sell shares of our common

stock par value $1.00 per share having an aggregate offering amount of up to $120 million from time to

time through UBS as sales agent We successfully completed our equity distribution program during the

second quarter
of 2010 and used the net proceeds to repay short-term debt and for general corporate

purposes including the funding of our current construction program During 2010 we issued and sold

2870985 shares of our common stock pursuant to this equity distribution program at an average price per

share of $18.41 resulting in net proceeds to us of approximately $51.3 million Since inception of the
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program in the aggregate we issued and sold 6535216 shares pursuant to the program at an average

price per share of $18.36 resulting in net proceeds to us of approximately $116.0 million

On March 27 2009 we issued $75 million principal amount of 7% first mortgage bonds due April

2024 The net proceeds after payment of expenses of approximately $72.6 million were used to repay
short-term debt incurred in part to fund our current construction program

On May 16 2008 we issued $90 million principal amount of first mortgage bonds The net proceeds of

approximately $89.4 million less $0.4 million of legal and other financing fees were added to our general

funds and used primarily to pay down short-term indebtedness incurred in part as result of our on-going

construction program

On January 28 2011 we filed $400 million shelf registration statement with the SEC covering our

common stock unsecured debt securities preference stock and first mortgage bonds This shelf

registration statement became effective on February 2011 We plan to use proceeds under this shelf to

fund capital expenditures refinancings of existing debt or general corporate needs when needed during the

effective period The issuance of securities under this shelf is subject to the receipt of local regulatory

approvals

On January 26 2010 we entered into the Second Amended and Restated Unsecured Credit

Agreement which amended and restated our revolving credit facility This agreement extends the

termination date of the revolving credit facility from July 15 2010 to January 26 2013 In addition the

pricing and fees under the facility were amended Interest on borrowings under the facility accrues at rate

equal to at our option the highest of the banks prime commercial rate the federal funds

effective rate plus 0.5% or one month LIBOR plus 1.0% plus margin or ii one month two month

or three month LIBOR in each case plus margin Each margin is based on our current credit ratings and

the pricing schedule in the facility As of the date hereof and based on our current credit ratings the

LIBOR margin under the facility increased from 0.80% to 2.70% facility fee is payable quarterly on the

full amount of the commitments under the facility and usage fee is payable on the full amount of the

commitments under the facility for any period in which we have drawn less than 33% of the total revolving

commitments under the facility in each case based on our current credit ratings In addition upon
entering into the amended and restated facility we paid an upfront fee to the revolving credit banks of

$900000 in the aggregate The aggregate amount of the revolving commitments remained unchanged at

$150 million and there were no other material changes to the terms of the facility

The facility iS used for working capital general corporate purposes and to back-up our use of

commercial paper This facility requires our total indebtedness to be less than 62.5% of our total

capitalization at the end of each fiscal quarter and our EBITDA defined as net income plus interest taxes

depreciation and amortization to be at least two times our interest charges for the trailing four fiscal

quarters at the end of each fiscal quarter Failure to maintain these ratios will result in an event of default

under the credit facility and will prohibit us from borrowing funds thereunder As of December 31 2010
we are in compliance with these ratios Our total indebtedness is 52.2% of our total capitalization as of

December 31 2010 and our EBITDA is 5.0 times our interest charges This credit facility is also subject to

cross-default if we default on in excess of $10 million in the aggregate on our other indebtedness This

arrangement does not serve to legally restrict the use of our cash in the normal course of operations There

were no outstanding borrowings under this agreement at December 31 2010 However $24.0 million was

used to back up our outstanding commercial paper

On March 11 2009 we entered into $50 million unsecured credit agreement This agreement which

terminated on July 15 2010 provided for $50 million of revolving loans to be available to us for working

capital general corporate purposes and to back-up our use of commercial paper and was in addition to

and had substantially identical covenants and terms as other than pricing our Second Amended and

Restated Unsecured Credit Agreement dated January 26 2010 discussed above
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The principal amount of all series of first mortgage bonds outstanding at any one time under the EDE
Mortgage is limited by terms of the mortgage to $1 billion Substantially all of the property plant and

equipment of The Empire District Electric Company but not its subsidiaries is subject to the lien of the

EDE Mortgage Restrictions in the EDE mortgage bond indenture could affect our liquidity The EDE
Mortgage contains requirement that for new first mortgage bonds to be issued our net earnings as
defined in the EDE Mortgage for any twelve consecutive months within the fifteen months preceding

issuance must be two times the annual interest requirements as defined in the EDE Mortgage on all first

mortgage bonds then outstanding and on the prospective issue of new first mortgage bonds Our earnings

for the year ended December 31 2010 would permit us to issue approximately $362.3 million of new first

mortgage bonds based on this test with an assumed interest rate of 6.0% In addition to the interest

coverage requirement the EDE Mortgage provides that new bonds must be issued against among other

things retired bonds or 60% of net property additions At December 31 2010 we had retired bonds and

net property additions which would enable the issuance of at least $634.0 million principal amount of

bonds if the annual interest requirements are met As of December 31 2010 we are in compliance with all

restrictive covenants of the EDE Mortgage

The principal amount of all series of first mortgage bonds outstanding at any one time under the EDG
Mortgage is limited by terms of the mortgage to $300 million Substantially all of the property plant and

equipment of The Empire District Gas Company is subject to the lien of the EDG Mortgage The EDG
Mortgage contains requirement that for new first mortgage bonds to be issued the amount of such new

first mortgage bonds shall not exceed 75% of the cost of property additions acquired after the date of the

Missouri Gas acquisition The mortgage also contains limitation on the issuance by EDG of debt

including first mortgage bonds but excluding short-term debt incurred in the ordinary course under

working capital facilities unless after giving effect to such issuance EDGs ratio of EBITDA defined as

net income plus interest taxes depreciation amortization and certain other non-cash charges to interest

charges for the most recent four fiscal
quarters is at least 2.0 to As of December 31 2010 this test would

allow us to issue approximately $8.3 million principal amount of new first mortgage bonds

Currently our corporate credit ratings and the ratings for our securities are as follows

Fitch Moodys Standard Poors

Corporate Credit Rating n/r Baa2 BBB

First Mortgage Bonds BBB A3 BBB
Senior Notes BBB Baa2 BBB
Commercial Paper F2 P-2 A-3

Outlook Stable Stable Stable

Not rated

On March 24 2010 Standard Poors issued report with our ratings unchanged and upgraded our

business profile to excellent from strong On May 14 2010 Moodys upgraded our First Mortgage

Bonds from Baal to A3 and upgraded its outlook from negative to stable Moodys affirmed all of our

other ratings On April 2010 Fitch affirmed our ratings and revised their rating outlook to stable The

revision took into consideration the anticipated completion of our five-year baseload capital expenditure

program in 2010 and assumes we will receive timely and adequate regulatory recovery of newly completed

investments

security rating is not recommendation to buy sell or hold securities Each rating is subject to

revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating organization Each security rating agency has its

own methodology for assigning ratings and accordingly each rating should be considered independently

of all other ratings
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Set forth below is information summarizing our contractual obligations as of December 31 2010 Not

included in these amounts are expected obligations associated with our share of the latan construction

for which we have not yet been billed Other pension and postretirement benefit plans are funded on an

ongoing basis to niatch their corresponding costs per regulatory requirements and have been estimated for

2011-2015 as noted below

Payments Due By Period

in millions

Less Than More Than

Contractual_ObligationsW Total Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Years

Long-term debt w/o discount 689.8 0.6 $112.3 576.9

Interest on long-trm debt 626.5 40.1 77.6 69.9 438.9

Short-term debt 24.0 24.0

Capital lease obligations 8.1 0.6 1.2 1.1 5.2

Operating lease obligations2 6.6 1.0 1.7 1.4 2.5

Electric purchase obligations3 338.0 80.5 118.6 71.6 67.3

Gas purchase obligations4 50.3 9.1 14.8 12.6 13.8

Open purchase orders 19.0 18.8 0.1 0.1

Postretirement benefit obligation funding 26.1 5.7 11.0 9.4

Pension benefit funding 79.3 18.2 30.8 30.3

Other long-term liabilities5 3.5 0.1 0.3 0.3 2.8

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS6 $1871.2 $198.7 $368.4 $196.6 $1107.5

Some of our contractual obligations have price escalations based on economic indices but we do not

anticipate these escalations to be significant

Excludes paynients under our Elk River Wind Farm LLC and Cloud County Wind Farm LLC

agreements as payments are contingent upon output of the facilities Payments under the Elk River

Wind Farm LLC agreement can run from zero up to maximum of approximately $16.9 million per

year based on 20 year average cost and an annual output of 550000 megawatt hours Payments
under the Meridian Way Wind Farm agreement can range from zero to maximum of approximately
$14.6 million per year based on 20-year average cost

Includes water usage contract for our SLCC facility fuel and purchased power contracts and

associated transportation costs as well as purchased power for 2011 through 2015 for Plum Point

Represents fuel contracts and associated transportation costs of our gas segment

Other long-term liabilities primarily represent electric facilities charges paid to City Utilities of

Springfield Missouri of $11000 per month over 30 years

Our estimate of uncertain tax liabilities totaled $0.4 million at December 31 2010 Due to the

uncertainties surrounding this estimate we cannot reasonably estimate the timing of potential

payments if any and have not included any in the table above

DIVIDENDS

Holders of our common stock are entitled to dividends if as and when declared by the Board of

Directors out of funds legally available therefore subject to the prior rights of holders of any outstanding

cumulative preferred stock and preference stock Payment of dividends is determined by our Board of

Directors after considering all relevant factors including the amount of our retained earnings which is

essentially our accumulated net income less dividend payouts As of December 31 2010 our retained

earnings balance was $5.5 million compared to $10.1 million as of December 31 2009 after paying out
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$52.0 million in dividends during 2010 reduction of our dividend per share partially or in whole could

have an adverse effect on our common stock price On February 2011 the Board of Directors declared

quarterly dividend of $0.32 per share on common stock payable March 15 2011 to holders of record as of

March 2011

Our diluted earnings per share were $1.17 for the year ended December 31 2010 and were $1.18 and

$1.17 for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively Dividends paid per share were $1.28

for the year ended December 31 2010 and for each of the years
ended December 31 2009 and 2008

Under Kansas corporate law our Board of Directors may only declare and pay dividends out of our

surplus or if there is no surplus out of our net profits for the fiscal
year

in which the dividend is declared

or the preceding fiscal year or both Our surplus under Kansas law is equal to our retained earnings plus

accumulated other comprehensive income/loss net of income tax However Kansas law does permit

under certain circumstances our Board of Directors to transfer amounts from capital in excess of par value

to surplus In addition Section 305a of the Federal Power Act FPA prohibits the payment by utility of

dividends from any funds properly included in capital account There are no additional rules or

regulations issued by the FERC under the FPA clarifying the meaning of this limitation However several

decisions by the FERC on specific dividend proposals suggest that any determination would be based on

fact-intensive analysis of the specific facts and circumstances surrounding the utility and the dividend in

question with particular focus on the impact of the proposed dividend on the liquidity and financial

condition of the utility

In addition the EDE Mortgage and our Restated Articles contain certain dividend restrictions The

most restrictive of these is contained in the EDE Mortgage which provides that we may not declare or pay

any dividends other than dividends payable in shares of our common stock or make any other

distribution on or purchase other than with the proceeds of additional common stock financing any

shares of our common stock if the cumulative aggregate amount thereof after August 31 1944 exclusive

of the first quarterly dividend of $98000 paid after said date would exceed the sum of $10.75 million and

the earned surplus as defined in the EDE Mortgage accumulated subsequent to August 31 1944 or the

date of succession in the event that another corporation succeeds to our rights and liabilities by merger

or consolidation On March 11 2008 we amended the EDE Mortgage in order to provide us with more

flexibility to pay dividends to our shareholders by increasing the basket available to pay dividends by

$10.75 million as described above As of December 31 2010 this restriction did not prevent us from

issuing dividends

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have current or

future effect on our financial condition changes in financial condition revenues or expenses results of

operations liquidity capital expenditures or capital resources other than operating leases entered into in

the normal course of business

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Set forth below are certain accounting policies that are considered by management to be critical and

that typically require difficult subjective or complex judgments often as result of the need to make

estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain other accounting policies may also

require assumptions that could cause actual results to be different than anticipated results change in

assumptions or judgments applied in determining the following matters among others could have

material impact on future financial results

Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits OPEB We recognize expense related to pension and

postretirement benefits as earned during the employees period of service Related assets and liabilities are

established based upon the funded status of the plan compared to the accumulated benefit obligation Our
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pension and OPIEB expense or benefit includes amortization of previously unrecognized net gains or

losses Additional income or expense may be recognized when our unrecognized gains or losses as of the

most recent measurement date exceed 10% of our postretirement benefit obligation or fair value of plan

assets whichever is greater For pension benefits and OPEB benefits unrecognized net gains or losses as

of the measurement date are amortized into actuarial expense over ten years

In our 2005 electric Missouri Rate Case the MPSC ruled that we would be allowed to recover pension

costs consistent with our GAAP policy noted above In accordance with the rate order we prospectively

calculated the value of plan assets using market related value method as allowed by the Accounting

Standard Codification ASC guidance on defined benefit plans disclosure

The MPSC ruling also allowed us to record the Missouri portion of any costs above or below the

amount included in rates as regulatory asset or liability respectively Therefore the deferral of these

costs began in the second quarter of 2005 In our 2006 Kansas Rate Case the KCC also ruled that we

would be allowed to change our recognition of pension costs deferring the Kansas portion of any costs

above or below the amount included in our rate case as regulatory asset or liability In our agreement

with the MPSC regarding the purchase of Missouri Gas by EDG we were allowed to adopt this pension

cost recovery meihodology for EDG as well Also it was agreed that the effects of purchase accounting

entries related to pension and other post-retirement benefits would be recoverable in future rate

proceedings Thus the fair value adjustment acquisition entries have been recorded as regulatory assets as

we believe these amounts are probable of recovery in future rates The regulatory asset is reduced by an

amount equal to the difference between the regulatory costs and the estimated GAAP costs The

difference between this total and the costs being recovered from customers will be deferred as regulatory

asset or liability in accordance with the ASC guidance on regulated operations and recovered over

period of years We now expect future pension expense or benefits are probable of full recovery in rates

charged to our Missouri and Kansas customers thus lowering our sensitivity to accounting risks and

uncertainties

Our 2006 Missouri rate case order and our 2010 Kansas rate order allow us to defer any OPEB cost

that is different fiom those allowed recovery in rate cases This treatment is similar to treatment afforded

pension costs This includes the use of market-related value of assets the amortization of unrecognized

gains or losses into expense over ten years and the recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities as

described in the immediately preceding paragraph

Based on the regulatory treatment of pension and OPEB
recovery

afforded in our jurisdictions we

have concluded that the amount of unfunded defined benefit pension and postretirement plan obligations

will be recorded as regulatory assets on our balance sheet rather than as reductions of equity through

comprehensive income

Our funding policy is to contribute annually an amount at least equal to the actuarial cost of pension

and postretirement benefits See Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements under Item

Risks and uncertainties affecting the application of our pension accounting policy include future rate

of return on plan assets interest rates used in valuing benefit obligations i.e discount rates demographic

assumptions i.e mortality and retirement rates and employee compensation trend rates Factors that

could result in additional pension expense and/or funding include lower discount rate than estimated

higher compensation rate increases lower return on plan assets and longer retirement periods

Risks and uncertainties affecting the application of our OPEB accounting policy and related funding

include future rate of return on plan assets interest rates used in valuing benefit obligations i.e discount

rates healthcare cost trend rates Medicare prescription drug costs and demographic assumptions

i.e mortality and retirement rates See Note and Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements under Item for further information
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Hedging Activities We engage in hedging activities in an effort to minimize our risk from volatile

natural gas prices We enter into both physical and financial contracts with counterparties relating to our

future natural
gas requirements that lock in prices with respect to range of predetermined percentages

of our expected future natural
gas needs in an attempt to lessen the volatility in our fuel expenditures and

gain predictability We recognize that if risk is not timely and adequately balanced or if counterparties fail

to perform contractual obligations actual results could differ materially from intended results

As of December 31 2010 all derivative instruments are recognized at fair value on the balance sheet

with unrealized gains and losses deferred as regulatory asset or liability due to our fuel
recovery

mechanisms for our electric segment and our gas segment For all our derivative contracts once settled

the realized gain or loss is recorded to fuel expense and is subject to our fuel adjustment clause

mechanisms Missouri our largest electric jurisdiction permits the distribution to customers of 95% of the

changes in fuel and purchased power costs prudently incurred above or below the base cost

Risks and uncertainties affecting the application of this accounting policy include market conditions

in the energy industry especially the effects of price volatility regulatory and global political environments

and requirements fair value estimations on longer term contracts the effectiveness of the derivative

instrument in hedging the change in fair value of the hedged item estimating underlying fuel demand and

counterparty ability to perform If we estimate that we have overhedged forecasted demand the gain or

loss on the overhedged portion will be recognized immediately in our Consolidated Statement of Income

and then deferred to regulatory asset or liability given it is probable of recovery through our fuel

adjustment mechanisms See Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements under Item for

detailed information regarding our hedging information

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities In accordance with the ASC accounting guidance for regulated

activities our financial statements reflect ratemaking policies prescribed by the regulatory commissions

having jurisdiction over us Missouri Kansas Arkansas Oklahoma and FERC

In accordance with accounting guidance for regulated activities we record regulatory asset for all or

part of an incurred cost that would otherwise be charged to expense in accordance with the accounting

guidance which requires that an asset be recorded if it is probable that future revenue in an amount at

least equal to the capitalized cost will be allowable for costs for rate making purposes and the current

available evidence indicates that future revenue will be provided to permit recovery of the cost

Additionally we follow the accounting guidance for regulated activities which says that liability should be

recorded when regulator has provided current recovery for cost that is expected to be incurred in the

future We follow this guidance for incurred costs or credits that are subject to future recovery from or

refund to our customers in accordance with the orders of our regulators

Historically all costs of this nature which are determined by our regulators to have been prudently

incurred have been recoverable through rates in the course of normal ratemaking procedures Regulatory

assets and liabilities are ratably eliminated through charge or credit respectively to earnings while being

recovered in revenues and fully recognized if and when it is no longer probable that such amounts will be

recovered through future revenues We continually assess the recoverability of our regulatory assets

Although we believe it unlikely should retail electric competition legislation be passed in the states we

serve we may determine that we no longer meet the criteria set forth in the ASC accounting guidance for

regulated activities with respect to continued recognition of some or all of the regulatory assets and

liabilities Any regulatory changes that would require us to discontinue application of ASC accounting

guidance for regulated activities based upon competitive or other events may also impact the valuation of

certain utility plant investments Impairment of regulatory assets or utility plant investments could have

material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

As of December 31 2010 we have recorded $194.4 million in regulatory assets and $88.8 million as

regulatory liabilities See Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements under Item for

detailed information regarding our regulatory assets and liabilities
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Risks and uncertainties affecting the application of this accounting policy include regulatory

environment external regulatory decisions and requirements anticipated future regulatory decisions and

their impact of deregulation and competition on ratemaking process unexpected disallowances possible

changes in accounting standards including as result of adoption of IFRS and the ability to recover costs

Unbilled Revenue At the end of each period we estimate based on expected usage the amount of

revenue to record for energy and natural gas
that has been provided to customers but not billed Risks and

uncertainties affecting the application of this accounting policy include projecting customer energy usage

estimating the impact of weather and other factors that affect usage such as line losses for the unbilled

period and estimating loss of energy during transmission and delivery

Contingent Liabilities We are party to various claims and legal proceedings arising in the ordinary

course of our business which are primarily related to workers compensation and public liability We

regularly assess our insurance deductibles analyze litigation information with our attorneys and evaluate

our loss experience Based on our evaluation as of the end of 2010 we believe that we have accrued

liabilities in accordance with ASC accounting guidance sufficient to meet potential liabilities that could

result from these claims This liability at December 31 2010 and 2009 was $3.4 million and $3.1 million

respectively

Risks and uncertainties affecting these assumptions include changes in estimates on potential

outcomes of litigation and potential litigation yet unidentified in which we might be named as defendant

Goodwill As of December 31 2010 the consolidated balance sheet included $39.5 million of

goodwill All of this goodwill was derived from our gas acquisition and recorded in our gas segment which

is also the reporting unit for goodwill testing purposes Accounting guidance requires us to test goodwill

for impairment on an annual basis or whenever events or circumstances indicate possible impairment

Absent an indical ion of fair value from potential buyer or similar specific transaction combination of

the market and income approaches is used to estimate the fair value of goodwill

We use the market approach which estimates fair value of the gas reporting unit by comparing certain

financial metrics to comparable companies Comparable companies whose securities are actively traded in

the public market are judgmentally selected by management based on operational and economic

similarities We utilize EBITDA earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization multiples

of the comparable companies in relation to the EBITDA results of the
gas reporting unit to determine an

estimate of fair value

We also utilize valuation technique under the income approach which estimates the discounted

future cash flows of operations Our procedures include developing baseline test and performing

sensitivity analysis to calculate reasonable valuation range The sensitivities are derived from altering

those assumptiorts which are subjective in nature and inherent to discounted cash flows calculation

Other qualitative factors and comparisons to industry peers are also used to further support the

assumptions and ultimately the overall evaluation key qualitative assumption considered in our

evaluation is the impact of regulation including rate regulation and cost recovery
for the gas reporting

unit Some of the key quantitative assumptions included in our tests involve regulatory rate design and

results the discount rate the growth rate capital spending rates and terminal value calculations We

believe it is unlikely that change to one of these key assumptions by itself would be significant enough to

result in an impairment charge However if significant negative changes occurred to multiple key

assumptions an impairment charge could result With the exception of the capital spending rate the key

assumptions noted are significantly determined by market factors and significant changes in market factors

that impact the
gas reporting unit would likely be mitigated by our current and future regulatory rate

design to some extent Other risks and uncertainties affecting these assumptions include managements

identification of impairment indicators changes in business industry laws technology and economic

conditions Actual results for the gas reporting unit indicate recent decline in
gas customer growth and
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demand but this was anticipated in our assumptions for purposes of the discounted cash flow calculation

Our forecasts anticipate the customer contraction will minimize in the near future and return to positive

customer growth within the next few years

We weight the results of the two approaches discussed above in order to estimate the fair value of the

gas reporting unit Our annual test performed as of October 31 2010 indicated the estimated fair market

value of the gas reporting unit to be 10 15% higher than its carrying value at that time While we believe

the assumptions utilized in our analysis were reasonable significant adverse developments in future

periods could negatively impact goodwill impairment considerations which could adversely impact

earnings

Use of Managements Estimates The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles GAAP requires management to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities revenues and expenses

and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period We evaluate our estimates on an

on-going basis including those related to unbilled utility revenues collectibility of accounts receivable

depreciable lives asset impairment and goodwill evaluations employee benefit obligations contingent

liabilities asset retirement obligations the fair value of stock based compensation and tax provisions

Actual amounts could differ from those estimates

RECENTLY IS SUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

See Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements under Item for further information

regarding Recently Issued and Proposed Accounting Standards
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ITEM 7A QUANTITATiVE AND QUALITATiVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our fuel procurement activities involve primary market risk exposures including commodity price risk

and credit risk Commodity price risk is the potential adverse price impact related to the fuel procurement

for our generating units Credit risk is the potential adverse financial impact resulting from

non-performance by counterparty of its contractual obligations Additionally we are exposed to interest

rate risk which is the potential adverse financial impact related to changes in interest rates

Market Risk and Hedging Activities Prices in the wholesale power markets often are extremely

volatile This volatility impacts our cost of power purchased and our participation in energy trades If we

were unable to generate an adequate supply of electricity for our customers we would attempt to purchase

power from others Such supplies are not always available In addition congestion on the transmission

system can limit our ability to make purchases from or sell into the wholesale markets

We engage in physical and financial trading activities with the goals of reducing risk from market

fluctuations In accordance with our established Energy Risk Management Policy which typically includes

entering into various derivative transactions we attempt to mitigate our commodity market risk

Derivatives are utilized to manage our gas commodity market risk and to help manage our exposure

resulting from purchasing most of our natural
gas on the volatile spot market for the generation of power

for our native-load customers See Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements under Item

for further information

Commodity Price Risk We are exposed to the impact of market fluctuations in the price and

transportation costs of coal natural gas and electricity and employ established policies and procedures to

manage the risks associated with these market fluctuations including utilizing derivatives

We satisfied 62.3% of our 2010 generation fuel supply need through coal Approximately 92% of our

2010 coal supply was Western coal We have contracts and binding proposals to supply portion of the fuel

for our coal plartts through 2013 These contracts satisfy approximately 100% of our anticipated fuel

requirements for 2011 65% for 2012 61% for 2013 and 31% for our 2014 requirements for our Asbury

and Riverton coal plants In order to manage our exposure to fuel prices future coal supplies will be

acquired using combination of short-term and long-term contracts

We are exposed to changes in market prices for natural
gas we must purchase to run our combustion

turbine generators Our natural gas procurement program is designed to manage our costs to avoid volatile

natural gas prices We enter into physical
forward and financial derivative contracts with counterparties

relating to our future natural gas requirements that lock in prices with respect to predetermined

percentages of our expected future natural
gas needs in an attempt to lessen the volatility in our fuel

expenditures and improve predictability As of February 2011 88% or 5.0 million Dthss of our

anticipated volunie of natural
gas usage for our electric operations for 2011 is hedged See Note 14 of

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements under Item for further information

Based on our expected natural gas purchases for our electric operations for 2011 if average natural

gas prices should increase 10% more in 2011 than the price at December 31 2010 our natural gas

expenditures would increase by approximately $0.3 million based on our December 31 2010 total hedged

positions for the next twelve months However such an increase would be probable of recovery through

fuel adjustment mechanisms With the addition of the Missouri fuel adjustment mechanism effective

September 2008 we now have fuel cost recovery mechanism in all of our jurisdictions which

significantly reduces the impact of fluctuating fuel costs

We attempt 1o mitigate portion of our natural gas price risk associated with our gas segment using

physical forward purchase agreements storage and derivative contracts As of February 2011 we have

0.6 million Dths in storage on the three pipelines that serve our customers This represents 28% of our

storage capacity We have an additional 0.7 million Dths hedged through financial derivatives and physical

contracts Our long-term hedge strategy is to mitigate price volatility for our customers by hedging
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minimum of 50% of the current year up to 50% of the second year and up to 20% of third year expected

gas usage by the beginning of the ACA year at September However due to purchased natural
gas cost

recovery mechanisms for our retail customers fluctuations in the cost of natural gas have little effect on

income

Credit Risk In order to minimize overall credit risk we maintain credit policies including the

evaluation of counterparty financial condition and the use of standardized agreements that facilitate the

netting of cash flows associated with single counterparty See Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements Unaudited regarding agreements containing credit risk contingent features In

addition certain counterparties make available collateral in the form of cash held as margin deposits as

result of exceeding agreed-upon credit exposure thresholds or may be required to prepay the transaction

Conversely we are required to post collateral with counterparties at certain thresholds which is typically

the result of changes in commodity prices Amounts reported as margin deposit liabilities represent

counterparty funds we hold that result from various trading counterparties exceeding agreed-upon credit

exposure thresholds Amounts reported as margin deposit assets represent our funds held on deposit for

our NYMEX contracts with our broker and other financial contracts with other counterparties that

resulted from us exceeding agreed-upon credit limits established by the counterparties The following table

depicts our margin deposit assets at December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 There were no margin

deposit liabilities at these dates

2010 2009
in millions

Margin deposit assets $3.9 $2.9

Our exposure to credit risk is concentrated primarily within our fuel procurement process as we

transact with smaller less diverse group of counterparties and transactions may involve large notional

volumes and potentially volatile commodity prices Below is table showing our net credit exposure at

December 31 2010 reflecting that our counterparties are exposed to Empire for the net unrealized

mark-to-market losses for physical forward and financial natural gas contracts carried at fair value

in millions

Net unrealized mark-to-market losses for physical forward natural gas

contracts $15.2

Net unrealized mark-to-market losses for financial natural gas contracts 4.3

Net credit exposure $19.5

The $4.3 million net unrealized mark-to-market loss for financial natural gas contracts is comprised of

$4.3 million of exposure to counterparties of Empire for unrealized losses and no exposure to Empire of

unrealized gains We are holding no collateral from any counterparty since we are below the $10 million

mark-to-market collateral threshold in our agreements As noted above as of December 31 2010 we have

$3.9 million on deposit for NYMEX contract exposure to Empire of which $3.5 million represents our

collateral requirement If NYMEX gas prices decreased 25% from their December 31 2010 levels our

collateral requirement would increase $2.2 million If these prices increased 25% our collateral

requirement would decrease $2.7 million

We sell electricity and gas and provide distribution and transmission services to diverse group of

customers including residential commercial and industrial customers Credit risk associated with trade

accounts receivable from energy customers is limited due to the large number of customers In addition we

enter into contracts with various companies in the energy industry for purchases of energy-related

commodities including natural gas in our fuel procurement process

Interest Rate Risk We are exposed to changes in interest rates as result of financing through our

issuance of commercial paper and other short-term debt We manage our interest rate exposure by limiting

our variable-rate exposure applicable to commercial paper and borrowings under our unsecured credit
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agreement to certain percentage of total capitalization as set by policy and by monitoring the effects of

market changes in interest rates See Notes and of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

under Item for further information

If market interest rates average 1% more in 2011 than in 2010 our interest expense would increase

and income before taxes would decrease by less than $0.5 million This amount has been determined by

considering the impact of the hypothetical interest rates on our highest month-end commercial paper

balance for 2010 These analyses do not consider the effects of the reduced level of overall economic

activity that could exist in such an environment In the event of significant change in interest rates

management would likely take actions to further mitigate its exposure to the change However due to the

uncertainty of the specific actions that would be taken and their possible effects the sensitivity analysis

assumes no changes in our financial structure
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ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders

of the Empire District Electric Company

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15

present fairly in all material respects the financial position of The Empire District Electric Company and

its subsidiaries at December 31 2010 and 2009 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for

each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2010 in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America In addition in our opinion the financial statement

schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15 presents fairly in all material respects the

information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements

Also in our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO
The Companys management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement

schedule for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express opinions on these

financial statements on the financial statement schedule and on the Companys internal control over

financial reporting based on our integrated audits We conducted our audits in accordance with the

standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require

that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was

maintained in all material respects Our audits of the financial statements included examining on test

basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining

an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness

exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the

circumstances We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting
is

process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal

control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance

of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the

assets of the company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations

of management and directors of the company and iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention

or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk

that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

St Louis Missouri

February 17 2011
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THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2010 2009

$-000s

Assets

Plant and propelty at original cost

Electric $2001142 $1619949

Natural gas 63581 58180

Water 11128 10891

Other 32264 29564

Construction work in progress 9337 302012

2117452 2020596

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 598363 561586

1519089 1459010

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 14499 5620
Accounts receivable trade net of allowance of $865 and $1087

respectively 41380 36136
Accrued unbilled revenues 23595 23717
Accounts receivable other 25445 21417

Fuel materials and supplies 45557 43973
Unrealized gain in fair value of derivative contracts 39 2782

Prepaid expenses and other 5649 4438

Regulatory assets 4974 772

161138 138855

Noncurrent assets and deferred charges

Regulatory assets 189404 168254

Goodwill 39492 39492
Unamortized debt issuance costs 9257 10638

Unrealized gain in fair value of derivative contracts 194 2525
latan investment tax credits 17713

Other 2737 3359

241084 241981

Total assets $1921311 $1839846

Continued

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS Continued

December 31

2010 2009

$-000s

Capitalization and liabilities

Common stock $1 par value 100000000 shares authorized 41576869 and

38112280 shares issued and outstanding respectively 41577 38112

Capital in excess of par value 610579 551631

Retained earnings 5468 10068

Accumulated comprehensive income/loss net of income taxes 339

Total common stockholders equity 657624 600150

Long-term debt net of current portion

Note payable to securitization trust 50000

Obligations under capital lease 4995 2563

First mortgage bonds and secured debt 488577 339643

Unsecured debt 199500 247950

Total long-term debt 693072 640156

Total long-term debt and common stockholders equity 1350696 1240306

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 58820 67406

Current maturities of long-term debt 881 51021

Short-term debt 24000 50500

Customer deposits 11061 10394

Interest accrued 6004 5698

Other current liabilities 578

Unrealized loss in fair value of derivative contracts 760 4337

Taxes accrued 3935 3386

Regulatory liabilities 1243

107282 192742

Commitments and contingencies Note 11

Noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits

Regulatory liabilities 87579 87533

Deferred income taxes 212003 194315

Unamortized investment tax credits 19597 20125

Pension and other postretirement benefit obligations 93405 84240

Unrealized loss in fair value of derivative contracts 3564 426

Other 47185 20159

463333 406798

Total capitalization and liabilities $1921311 $1839846

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Operating revenues

Electric

Gas

Water

Other

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

$-000s except per share amounts

$482910 $433133 $446466

50885 57314 65438

1805 1764 1782

5676 4957 4477

541276 497168 518163

Operating revenue deductions

Fuel and purchased power 199299 182028 204058

Cost of natural gas sold and transported 26614 35601 42630

Regulated operating expenses 79292 73086 71918
Other operating expenses 1950 1801 1889
Maintenance and repairs 36771 33012 28549

Depreciation and amortization 58656 51494 53562

Provision for income taxes 30470 19571 19128

Other taxes 27729 26080 25417

460781 422673 447151

Operating income 80495 74495 71012

Other income and deductions
Allowance for equity funds used during construction 4538 6209 5929
Interest income 176 217 1057

Benefit/provision for other income taxes 63 311
Other non-operating expense net 1039 460 1569

3612 5655 5419

Interest charges

Long-term debt 41959 42084 36041

Trust preferred securities 2090 4250 4250

Short-term debt 631 1125 1854

Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction 5636 7924 6589
Other 2333 681 1153

36711 38854 36709

Net income 47396 41296 39722

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding basic 40545 34924 33821

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding diluted 40580 34956 33860

Total earnings per weighted average share of common stock basic

and diluted 1.17 1.18 1.17

Dividends declared per share of common stock 1.28 1.28 1.28
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THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSiVE iNCOME

Net income

Reclassification adjustments for gain/loss included in net income or

reclassified to regulatory asset or liability

Net change in fair market value of open derivative contracts for

period

Income taxes

Comprehensive income

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

$-000s

47396 $41296 39722

5814 13568 3872

6362 9576 17394
209 1521 8102

47057 $43767 26558

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Balance at December 31 2007

Net income

Stock/stock units issued through

Stock purchase and reinvestment plans

Dividends declared

Reclassification adjustment for gains

included in net income

Change in fair value of open derivative

contracts for period

Income taxes

Balance at December 31 2008

Net income

Stock/stock units issued through

Public offering

Stock purchase and reinvestment plans

Dividends declared

Reclassification adjustment for losses

included in net income

Change in fair value of open derivative

contracts for period

Income taxes

Balance at December 31 2009

Net income

Stock/stock unj ts issued through

Public offeri
rig

Stock purchase and reinvestment plans

Dividends declared

Reclassification adjustment for losses

included in net income

Change in fair value of open derivative

contracts for period

Income taxes

Balance at December 31 2010

Common Capital in Retained

Stock excess of Par earnings

$-000s

$33606 $477385 $17153

39722

43296

33982 483443 13579

41296

44807

38112 551631 10068

47396

2871 48325

594 10623

51996

$11032 $539176

39722

6434

43296

3872 3872

17394

_______
8102

528872

41296

64489

7829

44807

13568 13568

9576

_______
1521

600150

47396

51196

11217

51996

5814 5814

6362

_______
209

_______
$657624

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Accumulated

comprehensive
Income/loss Total

376 6058

17394
8102

2132

3664

466

60825

7363

9576
1521

339

6362

_______ ________ ________
209

$41577 $610579 5468
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THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

$.000s

Operating activities

Net income 47396 41296 39722

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash flows from operating

activities

Depreciation and amortization 71076 62247 59066

Pension and other postretirement benefit costs net of contributions 3683 4096 8282
Deferred income taxes and unamortized investment tax credit net 26880 15324 8580

Allowance for equity funds used during construction 4538 6209 5929
Stock compensation expense 3478 2616 2169

Non cash gainIloss on derivatives 1853 10350 39
Gain on the sale of assets 457
Impairment of other non-operating investment 556

Cash flows impacted by changes in

Accounts receivable and accrued unbilled revenues 11211 2989 10938
Fuel materials and supplies 1585 4635 4720
Prepaid expenses other current assets and deferred charges 17403 7464 2683
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 6179 1305 4905
Interest taxes accrued and customer deposits 1522 806 2234

Other liabilities and other deferred credits 3954 699 1597
SWPA minimum flows payment 26564

Net cash provided by operating activities 138124 129623 92992

Continued

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Continued

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

$-000s

Investing activities

Capital expenditures regulated $106388 $154016 $211311
Capital expenditures and other investments non-regulated 2817 1239 1969
Proceeds from the sale of property plant and equipment 544 1538

Total net cash used in investing activities 109205 154711 211742

Financing activities

Proceeds from first mortgage bonds 149635 75000 89950
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable 2470

Long-term debt issuance costs 1758 2397 3168
Proceeds from issuance of common stock net of issuance costs 60239 70271 5385
Repayment of first mortgage bonds 50000 20025
Redemption of trust preferred securities 50000
Redemption of senior notes 48304
Net short-term borrowings repayments 26500 51500 68960
Dividends 51996 44807 43296
Other 1356 1058 370

Net cash provided by used in financing activities 20040 27954 117461

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 8879 2866 1289
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 5620 2754 4043

Cash and cash equivalents end of year 14499 5620 2754

2010 2009 2008

Supplemental cash flow information

Interest paid 43044 45730 40384
Income taxes paid net of refund 11264 3246 8706

Supplementary non-cash investing activities

Change in accrued additions to property plant and equipment

not reported above 3846 3833 6895
Capital lease obligations for purchase of new equipment 2696 2946

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements
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THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General

We operate our businesses as three segments electric gas and other The Empire District Electric

Company EDE Kansas corporation organized in 1909 is an operating public utility engaged in the

generation purchase transmission distribution and sale of electricity in parts of Missouri Kansas

Oklahoma and Arkansas As
part

of our electric segment we also provide water service to three towns in

Missouri The Empire District Gas Company EDG is our wholly owned subsidiary engaged in the

distribution of natural gas
in Missouri Our other segment consists of our fiber optics business See

Note 12 Our gross operating revenues in 2010 were derived as follows

Electric segment sales 89.6%

Gas segment sales 9.4%

Other segment sales 1.0%

Sales from our electric segment include 0.3% from the sale of water

The utility portions of our business are subject to regulation by the Missouri Public Service

Commission MPSC the State Corporation Commission of the State of Kansas KCC the Corporation

Commission of Oklahoma 0CC the Arkansas Public Service Commission APSC and the Federal

Energy Regulatory Commission FERC Our accounting policies are in accordance with the ratemaking

practices of the regulatory authorities and conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applied

to regulated public utilities

Our electric operations serve approximately 169000 customers and the 2010 electric operating

revenues were derived as follows

Customer of revenue

Residential 42.4%

Commercial 30.3%

Industrial 14.4%

Wholesale on-system 4.0%

Wholesale off-system
4.7%

Miscellaneous sources primarily public authorities 2.5%

Other electric revenues 1.7%

Our retail electric revenues for 2010 by jurisdiction were as follows

Jurisdiction of revenue

Missouri 88.9%

Kansas 5.3%

Arkansas 3.0%

Oklahoma 2.8%
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THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Our gas operations serve approximately 44000 customers and the 2010
gas operating revenues were

derived as follows

Customer of revenue

Residential 63.4%

Commercial 26.2%

Industrial 1.6%

Other 8.8%

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of EDE EDG and our other fiber optic

subsidiary The consolidated entity is referred to throughout as we or the Company All intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation See Note 12 for additional information

regarding our three segments Certain immaterial reclassifications have been made to prior year
information to conform to the current year presentation

Accounting for the Effects of Regulation

In accordance with the Accounting Standard Codification ASC guidance for regulated operations

our financial stal ements reflect ratemaking policies prescribed by the regulatory commissions having

jurisdiction over our regulated generation and other utility operations the MPSC the KCC the 0CC the

APSC and the FERC

We record regulatory asset for all or part of an incurred cost that would otherwise be charged to

expense in accordance with the ASC guidance for regulated operations which
say

that an asset should be

recorded if it is probable that future revenue in an amount at least equal to the capitalized cost will be

allowable for costs for rate making purposes and the current available evidence indicates that future

revenue will be provided to permit recovery of the cost This guidance also
says that liability should be

recorded when regulator has provided current recovery for cost that is expected to be incurred in the

future We follow this guidance for incurred costs or credits that are subject to future
recovery from or

refund to our customers in accordance with the orders of our regulators

Historically all costs of this nature which are determined by our regulators to have been prudently

incurred have been recoverable through rates in the course of normal ratemaking procedures Regulatory
assets and liabilitis are ratably amortized through charge or credit respectively to earnings while being
recovered in revenues and fully recognized if and when it is no longer probable that such amounts will be

recovered through future revenues We continually assess the recoverability of our regulatory assets

Although we believe it unlikely should retail electric competition legislation be passed in the states we
serve we may determine that we no longer meet the criteria set forth in the ASC guidance for regulated

operations with respect to continued recognition of some or all of the regulatory assets and liabilities Any
regulatory changes that would require us to discontinue application of this guidance based upon
competitive or other events may also impact the valuation of certain utility plant investments Impairment
of regulatory assets or utility plant investments could have material adverse effect on our financial

condition and results of operations See Note for further discussion of regulatory assets and liabilities

Use of Estimates

The
preparat ion of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
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THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period Areas

in the financial statements significantly affected by estimates and assumptions include unbilled utility

revenues collectibility of accounts receivable depreciable lives asset impairment and goodwill impairment

evaluations employee benefit obligations contingent liabilities asset retirement obligations the fair value

of stock based compensation tax provisions and derivatives Actual amounts could differ from those

estimates

Revenue Recognition

For our utility operations we use cycle billing and accrue estimated but unbilled revenue for services

provided between the last bill date and the period end date Unbilled revenues represent the estimate of

receivables for energy and natural
gas

services delivered but not yet billed to customers The accuracy of

our unbilled revenue estimate is affected by factors including fluctuations in energy demands weather line

losses and changes in the composition of customer classes

Municipal Franchise Taxes

Municipal franchise taxes are collected for and remitted to their respective entities and are included in

operating revenues and other taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Income Municipal franchise taxes

of $10.6 million $10.2 million and $10.2 million were recorded for each of the years ended December 31

2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at the tariffed rates for customer usage including applicable taxes

and fees and do not bear interest We review the outstanding accounts receivable monthly as well as the

bad debt write-offs experienced in the past and establish an allowance for doubtful accounts Account

balances are charged off against the allowance when management determines it is probable the receivable

will not be recovered

Propert Plant Equipment

The costs of additions to utility property and replacements for retired property units are capitalized

Costs include labor material an allocation of general and administrative costs and an allowance for funds

used during construction AFUDC The original cost of units retired or disposed of and the costs of

removal are charged to accumulated depreciation unless the removed property constitutes an operating

unit or system In this case gain or loss is recognized upon the disposal of the asset Maintenance

expenditures and the removal of minor property items are charged to income as incurred liability is

created for any additions to electric or gas utility property that are paid for by advances from developers

For period of five
years the Company refunds to the developer pro rata amount of the original cost of

the extension for each new customer added to the extension Nonrefundable payments at the end of the

five year period are applied as reduction to the cost of the plant in service The liability as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 was $8.3 million and $9.7 million respectively

As of December 31 2010 and 2009 we had recorded accrued cost of removal of $58.8 million and

$49.8 million respectively for our electric operating segment This represents an estimated cost of

dismantling and removing plant from service upon retirement accrued as part of our depreciation rates

Pursuant to our 2005 Missouri rate order we accrue cost of removal in depreciation rates for mass

property including transmission distribution and general plant assets These accruals are not considered
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THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

an asset retirement obligation under the guidance provided on asset retirement obligations within the

ASC We reclassify the accrued cost of dismantling and removing plant from service upon retirement from

accumulated depreciation to regulatory liability We have similar cost of removal
regulatory liability for

our gas operating segment This amount at December 31 2010 and 2009 was $3.9 million and $3.3 million

respectively These amounts are net of our actual cost of removal expenditures

Asset Retirement Obligation

We record the estimated fair value of legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible

long-lived assets in the period in which the liabilities are incurred and capitalize corresponding amount as

part of the book value of the related long-lived asset In subsequent periods we are required to adjust asset

retirement obligations based on changes in estimated fair value and the corresponding increases in asset

book values are depreciated over the useful life of the related asset Uncertainties as to the probability

timing or cash flows associated with an asset retirement obligation affect our estimate of fair value

We have identified asset retirement obligations associated with the future removal of certain river

water intake structures and equipment at the latan Power Plant in which we have 12% ownership We
also have liability for future containment of an ash landfill at the Riverton Power Plant along with

liability for asset retirement obligations associated with the removal of asbestos located at the Riverton and

Asbury Plants In addition we have liability for the removal and disposal of Polychlorinated Biphenyls

PCB contaminants associated with our transformers and substation equipment These liabilities have

been estimated based upon either third party costs or historical review of expenditures for the removal of

similar past liabilities The potential costs of these future expenditures are based on engineering estimates

of third party costs to remove the assets in satisfaction of the associated obligations This liability will be

accreted over the period up to the estimated settlement date

All of our recorded asset retirement obligations have been estimated as of the expected retirement

date or settlemerLt date and have been discounted using credit adjusted risk-free rate ranging from 4.5%

to 5.52% depending on the settlement date Revisions to these liabilities could occur due to changes in the

cost estimates anticipated timing of settlement or federal or state regulatory requirements

The balances at the end of 2009 and 2010 are shown below

Liability Liability

Balance Liabilities Liabilities Cash Flow Balance at

000s 12/31/09 Recognized Settled Accretion Revisions 12/31/10

Asset Retirement Obligation $3607 $150 $3757

Liability Liability

Balance Liabilities Liabilities Cash Flow Balance at

04$s 12/31/08 Recognized Settled Accretion Revisions 12/31/09

Asset Retirement Obligation $3468 $139 $3607

Upon adopt ion of the standards on the retirement of long lived assets and conditional asset

retirement obligations we recorded liability and regulatory asset because we expect to recover these costs

of removal in electric and
gas rates either through depreciation accruals or direct expenses We also defer

the liability accretion and depreciation expense as regulatory asset At December 31 2010 and 2009 our

regulatory assets relating to asset retirement obligations totaled $3.4 million and $3.3 million respectively

Also as noted previously under property plant and equipment we reclassify the accrued cost of

dismantling and removing plant from service upon retirement which is not considered an asset retirement
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obligation under this guidance from accumulated depreciation to regulatory liability This balance sheet

reclassification has no impact on results of operations

Depreciation

Provisions for depreciation are computed at straight-line rates in accordance with GAAP consistent

with rates approved by regulatory authorities These rates are applied to the various classes of utility assets

on composite basis Provisions for depreciation for our other segment is computed at straight-line rates

over the estimated useful life of the properties See Note for additional details regarding depreciation

rates

In accordance with our previous rate orders and our 2010 rate order from the MPSC we recorded

approximately $7.5 million $4.5 million and $8.2 million of regulatory amortization during 20102009 and

2008 respectively This amortization included in our rates was granted in the Experimental Regulatory

Plan approved by the MPSC on August 2005 It provided additional cash flow to enhance the financial

support for our generation expansion plan It is related to our investment in latan and also includes our

Riverton V84.3A2 combustion turbine Riverton Unit 12 and environmental improvement and upgrades

at Asbury and latan This amortization is included as depreciation and amortization expense and in

accumulated depreciation and amortization on the consolidated balance sheet

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

As provided in the FERC regulatory Uniform System of Accounts utility plant is recorded at original

cost including an allowance for funds used during construction AFUDC when first placed in service The

AFUDC is utility industry accounting practice whereby the cost of borrowed funds and the cost of equity

funds applicable to our construction program are capitalized as cost of construction This accounting

practice offsets the effect on earnings of the cost of financing current construction and treats such

financing costs in the same manner as construction charges for labor and materials

AFUDC does not represent current cash income Recognition of this item as cost of utility plant is

in accordance with regulatory rate practice under which such plant costs are permitted as component of

rate base and the provision for depreciation

In accordance with the methodology prescribed by the FERC we utilized aggregate rates on
before-tax basis of 7.5% for 2010 7.0% for 2009 and 7.8% for 2008 compounded semiannually in

determining AFUDC for all of our projects except latari The specific latan AFUDC rate is result of

our Experimental Regulatory Plan approved by the MPSC on August 2005 In this agreement we were

allowed to receive the regulatory amortization discussed above in rates prior to the completion of latan

As result the equity portion of our AFUDC rate for the latan project was reduced by 2.5 percentage

points See Note for additional discussion of our regulatory plan

Asset Impairments excluding goodwill

We review long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that

the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable To the extent that certain assets may be impaired

analysis is performed based on undiscounted forecasted cash flows to determine the impairment amount

None of our assets were impaired as of December 31 2010 and 2009
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Goodwill

As of December 31 2010 the consolidated balance sheet included $39.5 million of goodwill All of

this goodwill was derived from our gas acquisition and recorded in our gas segment which is also the

reporting unit for goodwill testing purposes Accounting guidance requires us to test goodwill for

impairment on an annual basis or whenever events or circumstances indicate possible impairment Absent

an indication of fair value from potential buyer or similar specific transaction combination of the

market and income approaches is used to estimate the fair value of goodwill

We use the market approach which estimates fair value of the gas reporting unit by comparing certain

financial metrics to comparable companies Comparable companies whose securities are actively traded in

the public market are judgmentally selected by management based on operational and economic

similarities We utilize EBITDA earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization multiples

of the comparable companies in relation to the EBITDA results of the
gas reporting unit to determine an

estimate of fair value

We also utilize valuation technique under the income approach which estimates the discounted

future cash flows of operations Our procedures include developing baseline test and performing

sensitivity analysis to calculate reasonable valuation range The sensitivities are derived from altering

those assumptions which are subjective in nature and inherent to discounted cash flows calculation

Other qualitative factors and comparisons to industry peers are also used to further support the

assumptions and ultimately the overall evaluation key qualitative assumption considered in our

evaluation is the impact of regulation including rate regulation and cost recovery for the
gas reporting

unit Some of the key quantitative assumptions included in our tests involve regulatory rate design and

results the discount rate the growth rate capital spending rates and terminal value calculations We
believe it is unlikely that change to one of these key assumptions by itself would be significant enough to

result in an impairment charge However if significant negative changes occurred to multiple key

assumptions an impairment charge could result With the exception of the capital spending rate the key

assumptions noted are significantly determined by market factors and significant changes in market factors

that impact the gas reporting unit would likely be mitigated by our current and future regulatory rate

design to some extent Other risks and uncertainties affecting these assumptions include managements
identification of impairment indicators changes in business industry laws technology and economic

conditions Actual results for the gas reporting unit indicate recent decline in gas customer growth and

demand but this was anticipated in our assumptions for purposes of the discounted cash flow calculation

Our forecasts anticipate the customer contraction will minimize in the near future and return to positive
customer growth within the next few years

We weight the results of the two approaches discussed above in order to estimate the fair value of the

gas reporting unit Our annual test performed as of October 31 2010 indicated the estimated fair market

value of the
gas reporting unit to be 10-15% higher than its carrying value at that time While we believe

the assumptions utilized in our analysis were reasonable significant adverse developments in future

periods could
negatively impact goodwill impairment considerations which could

adversely impact

earnings

Fuel and Purchaed Power

Electric Se.ement

Fuel and purchased power costs are recorded at the time the fuel is used or the power purchased
This amount is adjusted to reflect regulatory treatment for our Missouri and Kansas fuel adjustment
mechanisms discussed below
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The MPSC authorized fuel adjustment clause FAC for our Missouri customers effective

September 2008 The MPSC established base cost for the recovery of fuel and purchased power

expenses used to supply energy The FAC permits the distribution to customers of 95% of the changes in

fuel and purchased power costs prudently incurred above or below the base cost Off-system sales margins

are also part
of the

recovery
of fuel and purchased power costs As result nearly all of the off-system

sales margin flows back to the customer Rates related to the fuel adjustment clause are modified twice

year subject to the review and approval by the MPSC In accordance with the ASC guidance for regulated

operations 95% of the difference between the actual costs of fuel and purchased power and the base cost

of fuel and purchased power recovered from our customers is recorded as an adjustment to fuel and

purchased power expense with corresponding regulatory asset or regulatory liability If the actual fuel

and purchased power costs are higher or lower than the base fuel and purchased power costs billed to

customers 95% of these amounts will be recovered or refunded to our customers when the fuel adjustment

clause is modified

In our Kansas jurisdiction the costs of fuel are recovered from customers through fuel adjustment

clause based upon estimated fuel costs and purchased power The adjustments are subject to audit and

final determination by regulators The difference between the costs of fuel used and the cost of fuel

recovered from our Kansas customers is recorded as regulatory asset or regulatory liability if the actual

costs are higher or lower than the costs billed to customers in accordance with the ASC guidance for

regulated operations

Similar fuel recovery mechanisms are in place for our Oklahoma Arkansas and the FERC

jurisdictions We buy and sell power through the SPP RTO energy imbalance services market EIS We

net settle these market transactions on an hourly basis

At December 31 2010 our Missouri and Kansas fuel and purchased power costs were under-

recovered by $5.0 million which is reflected as regulatory asset

We receive the renewable attributes associated with the power purchased through our purchased

power agreements with Elk River Windfarm LLC and Cloud County Windfarm LLC These renewable

attributes are converted into renewable energy credits which are considered inventory and recorded at

zero cost See Note 11

Effective March 2005 the MPSC approved Stipulation and Agreement granting us authority to

manage our SO2 allowance inventory in accordance with our SO2 Allowance Management Policy SAMP
The SAMP allows us to exchange banked allowances for future vintage allowances and/or monetary value

and in extreme market conditions to sell SO2 allowances outright for monetary value We have not yet

exchanged or sold any allowances We classify our allowances as inventory and they are recorded at cost

The banked allowances are recorded at zero cost The allowances are removed from inventory on FIFO

basis We consider used allowances to be part of fuel expense See Note 11

Gas Segment

Fuel expense for our gas segment is recognized when the natural gas is delivered to our customers

based on the current cost recovery allowed in rates Purchased Gas Adjustment PGA clause allows

EDG to recover from our customers subject to audit and final determination by regulators the cost of

purchased gas supplies and related carrying costs associated with the Companys use of natural gas

financial instruments to hedge the purchase price of natural gas This PGA clause allows us to make rate

changes periodically up to four times throughout the year in response to weather conditions and supply

demands rather than in one possibly extreme change per year
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We calculate the PGA factor based on our best estimate of our annual
gas costs and volumes

purchased for resale The calculated factor is reviewed by the MPSC staff and approved by the MPSC
PGA factor elements considered include cost of gas supply storage costs hedging contracts revenue and

refunds prior period adjustments and transportation costs

Pursuant to the provisions of the PGA clause the difference between actual costs incurred and costs

recovered through the application of the PGA including costs cost reductions and carrying costs

associated with the use of financial instruments are reflected as regulatory asset or liability The balance

is amortized as amounts are reflected in customer billings

Derivatives

We utilize derivatives to help manage our natural gas commodity market risk resulting from

purchasing natural gas to be used as fuel in our electric business or sold in our natural gas business on the

volatile spot market and to manage certain interest rate exposure

Electric Segment

Pursuant to the ASC guidance on accounting for derivative instruments and hedging activities

derivatives are required to be recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value On the date derivative

contract is entered into the derivative is designated as hedge of forecasted transaction or of the

variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to recognized asset or liability cash-flow hedge
or an instrument that is held for non-hedging purposes non-hedging instrument Changes in the

fair value of derivative that is highly effective and designated and qualifies as cash-flow hedge are

recorded in comprehensive income until earnings are affected by the variability of cash flows e.g when

periodic settlements on variable-rate asset or liability are recorded in earnings Changes in the fair value

of non-designated derivative instruments and any ineffective portion of
qualified hedge are reported in

current-period earnings in fuel expense Effective September 2008 in conjunction with the

implementation of the Missouri fuel adjustment clause in the July 2008 MPSC rate order the mark to

market unrealized losses or gains from new derivatives used to hedge our fuel costs were recorded in

regulatory assets or liabilities This is in accordance with the ASC guidance on regulated operations given

that those regulatory assets and liabilities are probable of
recovery through our fuel adjustment

mechanism Unrealized gains and losses from cash flow hedges existing at September 2008 continued to

be recorded through comprehensive income through September 30 2010 As of December 31 2010 the

remaining hedges we entered into prior to September 2008 were de-designated Given that upon
settlement the realized gain or loss would be recorded as fuel expense and be subject to the fuel

adjustment clause we have reclassified the unrealized loss on these hedges from comprehensive income to

regulatory assel These hedges along with any hedges entered into since September 2008 will be

accounted for in accordance with the ASC guidance on regulated operations as described above

We also enter into fixed-price forward physical contracts for the purchase of natural gas coal and

purchased power These contracts if they meet the definition of derivative are not subject to derivative

accounting because they are considered to be normal purchase normal sales NPNS transactions If these

transactions dont qualify for NPNS treatment they would be marked to market for each reporting period

through income

Gas Sekment

Financial hedges for our natural gas business are recorded at fair value on our balance sheet Because

we have commission approved natural
gas cost recovery mechanism PGA we record the
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mark-to-market gain/loss on natural gas financial hedges each reporting period to regulatory asset

liability account The regulatory asset/liability account tracks the difference between revenues billed to

customers for natural gas costs and actual natural gas expense which is trued up at the end of August each

year and included in the Actual Cost Adjustment ACA factor to be billed to customers during the next

year This is consistent with the ASC guidance on regulated operations in that we will be recovering our

costs after the annual true up period subject to prudency review by the MPSC

Cash flows from hedges for both electric and
gas segments are classified within cash flows from

operations

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

We recognize expense related to pension and other postretirement benefits as earned during the

employees period of service Related assets and liabilities are established based upon the funded status of

the plan compared to the projected benefit obligation Our pension and OPEB expense or benefit includes

amortization of previously unrecognized net gains or losses Additional income or expense may be

recognized when our unrecognized gains or losses as of the most recent measurement date exceed 10% of

our postretirement
benefit obligation or fair value of plan assets whichever is greater For pension benefits

and OPEB benefits unrecognized net gains or losses as of the measurement date are amortized into

actuarial expense over ten years

Pensions

In our 2005 electric Missouri rate case the MPSC ruled the Company would be allowed to recover

pension costs consistent with our GAAP policy noted above In accordance with the rate order we

prospectively calculated the value of plan assets using market-related value method as allowed by the

ASC guidance on pension benefits As result we are allowed to record the Missouri portion of any costs

above or below the amount included in rates as regulatory asset or liability respectively Therefore the

deferral of these costs began in the second quarter of 2005 In our 2006 Kansas rate case the KCC also

ruled that the Company would be allowed to change the recognition of pension costs deferring the Kansas

portion of any costs above or below the amount included in the rate case as regulatory asset or liability

In the Companys agreement with the MPSC regarding the purchase of Missouri Gas by EDG the

Company was allowed to adopt this pension cost recovery methodology for EDG as well Also it was

agreed that the effects of purchase accounting entries related to pension and other postretirement benefits

would be recoverable in future rate proceedings Thus the fair value adjustment acquisition entries have

been recorded as regulatory assets as these amounts are probable of recovery in future rates The

regulatory asset is reduced by an amount equal to the difference between the regulatory costs and the

estimated GAAP costs The difference between this total and the costs being recovered from customers is

deferred as regulatory asset or liability in accordance with the ASC guidance on regulated operations

and recovered over period of five years

Other Postretirement Benefits OPEB

In our 2006 Missouri rate case the MPSC approved regulatory treatment for our OPEB costs similar

to the treatment described above for pension costs In our 2010 Kansas rate case the KCC also approved

regulatory treatment for our OPEB costs This includes the use of market-related value of assets the

amortization of unrecognized gains or losses into actuarial expense over ten years and the recognition of

regulatory assets and liabilities as described above
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In accordance with the guidance provided in the ASC on the Medicare Prescription Drug
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation APBO
and net cost recognized for OPEB reflects the effects of the Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement
and Modernization Act of 2003 the Act The Act provides for federal subsidy beginning in 2006 of

28% of prescription drug costs between $250 and $5000 for each Medicare-eligible retiree who does not

join Medicare Part to companies whose plans provide prescription drug benefits to their retirees that

are actuarially equivalent to the prescription drug benefits provided under Medicare Equivalency must

be certified annually by the Federal Government Our plan provides prescription drug benefits that are

actuarially equivalent to the prescription drug benefits provided under Medicare and have been certified

as such

Additional guidance in the ASC on employers accounting for defined benefit pension and other

postretirement plans requires an employer to recognize the over funded or under funded status of

defined benefit postretirement plan other than multiemployer plan as an asset or liability in its

statement of financial position and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the

changes occur through comprehensive income of business entity The guidance also requires an employer
to measure the funded status of plan as of the date of its year-end statement of financial position with

limited exceptions Pension and other postretirement employee benefits tracking mechanisms are utilized

to allow for future rate recovery of the obligations We record these as regulatory assets on the balance

sheet rather than as reductions of equity through comprehensive income See Note

Unamortized Debt Discount Premium and Expense

Discount premium and expense associated with long-term debt are amortized over the lives of the

related issues Costs including gains and losses related to refunded long-term debt are amortized over the

lives of the related new debt issues in accordance with regulatory rate practices

Liability Insurance

We are primarily self-insured for workers compensation claims general liabilities benefits paid under

employee healthcare programs and long-term disability benefits Accruals are primarily based on the

estimated undiscounted cost of claims We self-insure up to certain limits that vary by segment and type of

risk Periodically we evaluate the level of insurance coverage over the self insured limits and adjust

insurance levels based on risk tolerance and premium expense We carry excess liability insurance for

workers compensation and public liability claims for our electric segment In order to provide for the cost

of losses not covered by insurance an allowance for injuries and damages is maintained based on our loss

experience Our gas segment is covered by excess liability insurance for public liability claims and workers

compensation claims are covered by guaranteed cost policy See Note 11

Other Noncurrent Liabilities

At December 31 2010 the balance of other noncurrent liabilities is primarily comprised of

$26.6 million payment we expect to flow through to our customers as well as accruals for self insurance

and customer advances for construction Our hydroelectric generating plant FERC Project No 2221
located on the White River at Ozark Beach Missouri has generating capacity of 16 megawatts As part
of the Energy and Water Development Appropriations Act of 2006 the Appropriations Act the level of

Bull Shoals Lake will be increased an average of feet which will reduce the generation at Ozark Beach
The loss in this facility would require us to replace it with additional generation from our gas-fired and

coal-fired units or with purchased power The Appropriations Act required the Southwest Power

Administration SWPA in coordination with us and our relevant public service commissions to determine
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our economic detriment assuming January 2011 implementation date On September 16 2010 we

received $26.6 million payment from the SWPA recognizing the economic detriment created by the

legislation The $26.6 million payment will have no material impact on net income as we expect the

benefits will flow through to our customers In addition the SWPA has delayed the implementation of the

new minimum flows until 2016

Cash Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and temporary investments purchased with an initial

maturity of three months or less It also includes checks and electronic funds transfers that have been

issued but have not cleared the bank which are also reflected in current accrued liabilities and were

$14.5 million and $14.1 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Fuel Materials and Supplies

Fuel materials and supplies consist primarily of coal natural gas in storage and materials and

supplies which are reported at average cost These balances are as follows in thousands

2010 2009

Electric fuel inventory $17648 $15885

Natural gas inventory 4470 5404

Materials and supplies 23439 22684

TOTAL $45557 $43973

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the tax consequences of transactions that have

been treated differently for financial reporting and tax return purposes measured using statutory tax rates

See Note

Investment tax credits utilized in prior years were deferred and are being amortized over the useful

lives of the properties to which they relate Remaining unamortized investment tax credits are being

amortized over their lives of up to approximately 52 years

December 2009 award from an arbitration panel ordered KCPL to renegotiate with the IRS

previous $125 million advanced coal investment tax credit granted to our latan plant The IRS executed

revised memorandum of understanding MOU on September 2010 which granted us our share

$17.7 million of advanced coal investment tax credits in accordance with the arbitration panels order We

utilized $5.1 million of these credits to reduce our 2010 tax payments and 2010 tax liability and these are

reflected as reduction to accrued taxes The tax credit will have no significant income statement impact as

the credits will flow to our customers as we amortize the tax credits over the life of the plant

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

In 2006 the FASB issued guidance which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes

recognized in an enterprises financial statements in accordance with the ASC guidance on accounting for

income taxes We file consolidated income tax returns in the U.S federal and state jurisdictions With few

exceptions we are no longer subject to U.S federal state and local income tax examinations by tax

authorities for years before 2007 At December 31 2010 and 2009 our balance sheet included

approximately $0.4 million and $0.9 million respectively of unrecognized tax benefits which would affect

83



THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

our effective tax rate if recognized We do not expect any material changes to unrecognized tax benefits

within the next twelve months We recognize interest accrued and penalties related to unrecognized tax

benefits in other expenses

Computations of Earnings Per Share

The ASC guidance on earnings per share requires dual presentation of basic and diluted earnings per
share Basic earnings per share does not include potentially dilutive securities and is computed by dividing

net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding Diluted earnings per share

assumes the issuance of common shares pursuant to the Companys stock-based compensation plans at the

beginning of each respective period or at the date of grant or award if later Shares attributable to stock

options and performance-based restricted stock are excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per
share if the effect would be antidilutive

2010 2009 2008

Weighted Average Number Of Shares

Basic 40544802 34923526 33820750
Dilutive Securities

Performance-based restricted stock awards 14991 20513 23680
Dividend equivalents 12558 12122 10981

Employee stock purchase plan 7170 103 4637
Stock options

Total dilutive securities 34719 32738 39298

Diluted weighted average number of shares 40579521 34956264 33860048

Antidilulive Shares 74800 117178

Potentially dilutive shares are not expected to have material impact unless significant appreciation of

the Companys stock price occurs

Stock-Based Compensation

We have several stock-based compensation plans which are described in more detail in Note In

accordance with the ASC guidance on stock-based compensation we recognized compensation expense

over the requisite service period of all stock-based compensation awards based upon the fair-value of the

award as of the date of issuance See Note

Recently Issued and Proposed Accounting Standards

Fair Value En January 2010 the FASB amended the fair value measurements and disclosures

guidance to require additional disclosures about fair value measurements The revised guidance requires

new disclosures about the transfers in and out of Level and measurements including descriptions of the

reasons for the transfers Additionally the reconciliation of Level measurements now requires separate

presentation of sales issuances and settlements This guidance for the Level and measurements was

adopted on January 2010 and did not have an effect on our results of operations financial position or

liquidity The guidance on the Level measurements is effective for periods beginning after December 15
2010 As this guidance provides only disclosure requirements the adoption of this standard did not impact

our results of operations cash flows or financial position See Note 15
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Consolidation In June 2009 the FASB amended the accounting guidance for consolidations This

amendment is effective for annual periods beginning after November 15 2009 The amendment requires

an entity to complete qualitative analysis when determining who must consolidate variable interest

entity VIE Additionally the amendment requires additional disclosures and an ongoing reassessment of

who must consolidate VIE controlling financial interest is required for VIE and this is evidenced by

either voting interest greater than 50% or risk and reward model that identifies EDE as the primary

beneficiary of VIE

Upon adoption of the guidance we concluded that the consolidation of the Empire District Electric

Trust was appropriate and we reflected it in our consolidated balance sheets in the first quarter of 2010

Subsequently on June 28 2010 we redeemed all million outstanding shares of our 8.5% trust preferred

securities held by the Trust

We also evaluated our long-term purchase power agreements to determine if we hold variable

interest This evaluation identified our purchase power agreement with Plum Point Energy

Associates LLC PPEA LLC for capacity with Plum Point Energy Station as variable interest For this

contract we considered operations and maintenance of the power plant to be the most significant activity

In addition we do not have control over the operation and maintenance of the power plant Additionally

we have not provided debt or equity investments in PPEA LLC we receive less than the majority of the

output of the facility under the contract and do not provide any other financial support through liquidity

arrangements guarantees or other commitments other than the purchase power agreement described in

Note 11 Based on the consideration of these factors we do not consider ourselves to be the primary

beneficiary of this VIE The adoption of this standard did not have any impact on our financial statements
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Property Plant and Equipment

Our total property plant and equipment are summarized below in thousands

December 31

2010 2009

Electric plant

Production $1015040 690768
Transmission 220514 203436
Distribution 682175 651657
General 83413 74088

Electric plant 2001142 1619949
Less accumulaied depreciation and amortization2 575061 542226

Electric plant net of depreciation and amortization 1426081 1077723
Construction work in

progress 9214 301534

Net electric plant 1435295 1379257
Gas plant 63581 58180

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 8994 6854

Gas plant net of accumulated depreciation 54587 51326
Construction work in progress 436

Net gas plant 54593 51762
Water plant 11128 10891

Less accumulaied depreciation and amortization 3855 3664

Water plant net of depreciation and amortization 7273 7227
Construction work in progress 40

Net water plant 7313 7232
Other

Fiber 32264 29564
Less accumulaled depreciation and amortization 10453 8842

Non-regulated net of depreciation and amortization 21811 20722
Construction work in

progress 77 37

Net non-regulated property 21888 20759

TOTAL NET PLANT AND PROPERTY $1519089 $1459010

Includes intangible property of $20.1 and $12.1 million as of December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively primarily related to capitalized software and investments in facility upgrades owned by

other utilities Accumulated amortization related to this property in 2010 and 2009 was $9.2 and

$8.5 million respectively

Includes regulatory amortization of $30.7 million and $23.1 million as of December 30 2010 and 2009

respectively
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The table below summarizes the total provision
for depreciation and the depreciation rates for

continuing operations both capitalized and expensed for the
years

ended December 31 in thousands

2010 2009 2008

Provision for depreciation

Regulated Electric and Water $49254 $44973 $42389

Regulated Gas 3046 2072 2016

Non-Regulated 1641 1443 1319

TOTAL 53941 48488 45724

Amortization1 8347 5159 9132

TOTAL $62288 $53647 $54856

Includes $7.5 million $4.5 million and $8.2 million of regulatory amortization for 2010 2009

and 2008 respectively This was granted by the MPSC effective January 2007 and updated

August 23 2008 and September 10 2010

2010 2009 2008

Annual depreciation rates

Electric and water 2.8% 2.9% 3.0%

Gas 5.1% 3.7% 3.7%

Non-Regulated 5.3% 5.0% 4.8%

TOTAL COMPANY 2.9% 3.0% 3.0%

The table below sets forth the average depreciation rate for each class of assets for each period

presented

2010 2009 2008

Annual Weighted Average Depreciation Rate

Electric fixed assets

Production plant 2.0% 2.2% 2.2%

Transmission plant 2.4% 2.4% 2.3%

Distribution plant 3.6% 3.6% 3.6%

General plant 6.2% 6.1% 6.2%

Water 2.7% 2.7% 2.8%

Gas 5.1% 3.7% 3.7%

Non-regulated 5.3% 5.0% 4.8%

Regulatory Matters

RATE MATTERS

We continually assess the need for rate relief in all of the jurisdictions we serve and file for such relief

when necessary

Our rates for retail electric and natural gas services other than specially negotiated retail rates for

industrial or large commercial customers which are subject to regulatory review and approval are

determined on cost of service basis Rates are designed to provide after recovery of allowable

operating expenses an opportunity for us to earn reasonable return on rate base Rate base is
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generally determined by reference to the original cost net of accumulated depreciation and amortization

of utility plant in service subject to various adjustments for deferred taxes our regulatory liability for cost

of removal and other items Over time rate base is increased by additions to utility plant in service and

reduced by depreciation amortization and retirement of utility plant and write-offs as ordered by the

utility commissions In general request of new rates is made on the basis of rate base as of date

prior to the date of the request and allowable operating expenses for 12-month test period ended prior to

the date of the request Although the current rate making process provides recovery of some future

changes in rate base and operating costs it does not reflect all changes in costs for the period in which new

retail rates will be in place This results in lag between the time we incur costs and the time when we can

start recovering the costs through rates

The following table sets forth information regarding electric and water rate increases since January

2008

Annual Percent

Date Increase Increase Date

Jurisdiction Requested Granted Granted Effective

Missouri Electric October 29 2009 $46800000 13.40% September 10 2010

Oklahoma Electric March 25 2010 $1456979 15.70% September 2010

Kansas Electric November 2009 2800000 12.4% July 2010

Missouri Gas June 2009 2600000 4.37% April 2010

Missouri Electric October 2007 $22040395 6.70% August 23 2008

Electric Segment

Missouri

2010 Rate Case

On September 28 2010 we filed rate increase request with the MPSC for an annual increase in base

rates for our Missouri electric customers in the amount of $36.5 million or 9.2% to recover the latan

costs and other cost of service items not included in the 2009 Missouri rate case see below

2009 Rate Case

On October 29 2009 we filed request with the MPSC for an annual increase in base rates for our

Missouri electric customers in the amount of $68.2 million or 19.6% This request was primarily designed

to allow us to recover capital expenditures associated with environmental upgrades at latan and our

investment in new generating units at latan and the Plum Point Generating Station As result of the

delay in the latan project however we agreed to not seek permanent increase in this rate case for any

costs associated with the latan unit with the exception of that portion of the Jatan common plant needed

to operate latan

stipulated agreement was filed on May 12 2010 calling for an annual increase of $46.8 million

provided the Plum Point Generating Station met its in-service criteria by August 15 2010 If the in-service

criteria were not met by such date base rate increase of $33.1 million was stipulated The Plum Point

Generating Station completed its in-service criteria testing on August 12 2010 with an in-service date of

August 13 2010 thus new rates providing for the full increase of $46.8 million were effective

September 10 2010 The $46.8 million authorized increase in annual revenues includes $36.8 million in

base rate revenue and $10 million in regulatory amortization The regulatory amortization which is treated

as additional book depreciation for rate-making purposes and is reflected in the financial statements was
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granted to provide additional cash flow through rates This regulatory amortization is related to our

investments in facilities and environmental upgrades completed during the recent construction cycle As

agreed in our regulatory plan we will use construction accounting for our latan project See Note 11 We
have also agreed to commence an eighteen year

amortization of deferred asset related to the tax benefits

of cost of removal These tax benefits were flowed through to customers from 1981 to 2008 and totaled

approximately $11.1 million We had previously recorded regulatory asset expecting to recover these

benefits from customers in future periods We estimated the portion of the amortization period where rate

recovery would no longer be probable for this item and wrote off approximately $1.2 million in the first

quarter of 2010 Amortization of the remaining regulatory tax asset will begin in 2012 which is also when

we expect to be able to request rate recovery of the asset See Note

2007 Rate Case

The MPSC issued an order on July 30 2008 in response to request filed with the MPSC on

October 2007 for an annual increase in base rates for our Missouri electric customers This order

granted an annual increase in revenues for our Missouri electric customers in the amount of $22.0 million

or 6.7% based on 10.8% return on equity The new rates went into effect August 23 2008

The order contained two components The first component provided an addition to base rates of

approximately $27.7 million This increase in base rates was partially offset by $5.7 million reduction to

regulatory amortization which is the second component to support certain credit metrics of the overall

change in revenue authorized by the MPSC Regulatory amortization provided us additional cash through

rates during our construction cycle This construction which was part
of our long-range plan to ensure

reliability included the facilities at the Riverton Power Plant and latan Power Plant as well as

environmental improvements at the Asbury Power Plant and at latan The regulatory amortization as

result of this case was approximately $4.5 million annually and was recorded as depreciation expense

The MPSC also authorized fuel adjustment clause for our Missouri customers effective

September 2008 The MPSC established base cost for the recovery of fuel and purchased power

expenses used to supply energy The clause permits the distribution to customers of 95% of the changes in

fuel and purchased power costs above or below the base cost Off-system sales margins are also part of the

recovery
of fuel and purchased power costs As result the off-system sales margin flows back to the

customer Rates related to the recovery of fuel and purchased power costs are modified twice year

subject to the review and approval by the MPSC In accordance with accounting guidance for regulated

activities 95% of the difference between the actual cost of fuel and purchased power and the base cost of

fuel and purchased power recovered from our customers is recorded as an adjustment to fuel and

purchased power expense with corresponding regulatory asset or regulatory liability If the actual fuel

and purchased power costs are higher or lower than the base fuel and purchased power costs billed to

customers 95% of these amounts will be recovered or refunded to our customers when the fuel adjustment

clause is modified

The MPSC order in the rate case approved Stipulation and Agreement providing for the
recovery

of

deferred expenses of approximately $14.2 million over five year period for the 2007 ice storms In

addition the MPSC order required the implementation of two-way tracking mechanism for
recovery

of

the costs relating to the new MPSC rules on infrastructure inspection and vegetation management The

mechanism authorized by the MPSC created regulatory liability in any year we spend less than the target

amount which has been set at $8.6 million for our Missouri jurisdiction and regulatory asset if we spend

more than the target amount Any regulatory asset and liability amounts created using the tracking

mechanism will then be netted against each other and taken into account in our next rate case The MPSC
also approved Stipulations and Agreements providing for the continuation of the pension and other
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post-retirement employee benefits tracking mechanism established in our 2006 and 2007 Missouri rate

orders

The MPSC issued its Report and Order on July 30 2008 effective August 2008 The OPC and

intervenors Praxair Inc and Explorer Pipeline Company filed applications for rehearing with the MPSC

regarding this order On August 12 2008 the MPSC issued its Order Granting Expedited Treatment and

Approving Compliance Tariff Sheets effective August 23 2008 in which the MPSC approved our tariff

sheets containing our base rates for service rendered on and after August 23 2008 and approved our fuel

adjustment clause tariff sheets effective September 2008 On September 2008 the MPSC denied all

pending applications for rehearing

On October 2008 the OPC and intervenors Praxair Inc and Explorer Pipeline Company filed

Petitions for Writ of Review with the Cole County Circuit Court These actions were consolidated into one

proceeding briefs were filed and the Cole County Circuit Court heard oral arguments on September 29

2009 The Cole County Circuit Court issued ruling on December 31 2009 affirming the Commissions

Report and Order OPC Praxair and Explorer Pipeline filed appeals with the Western District Court of

Appeals Explorer Pipeline was dismissed from the pending appeal on October 18 2010

2006 Rate Case

In December 2008 the OPC and intervenors Praxair Inc and Explorer Pipeline Company filed

Petitions for Writ of Review with the Cole County Circuit Court challenging the tariffs resulting from our

2006 Missouri rate case that went into effect January 2007 The Cole County Circuit Court issued

ruling on December 2009 affirming the Commissions Report and Order OPC Praxair and Explorer

Pipeline filed appeals with the Western District Court of Appeals On October 26 2010 the Western

District Court of Appeals affirmed the Commissions Report and Order Praxair Inc and Explorer

Pipeline Company filed with the Western District Court of Appeals Motion for Rehearing and an

Application for Transfer to the Supreme Court On December 2010 the Western District Court of

Appeals overruled the Motion for Rehearing and denied the Application for Transfer to the Supreme

Court Praxair nc then asked the Missouri Supreme Court to transfer the case to that court On

January 25 2011 the request was denied

Kansas

On November 2009 we filed request with the KCC for an annual increase in base rates for our

Kansas electric customers in the amount of $5.2 million or 24.6% This request was primarily to allow us

to recover capital expenditures associated with environmental upgrades at latan completed in 2009 and

at our Asbury plant completed in 2008 and our investment in new generating units at latan the Plum

Point Generating Station and our Riverton 12 unit that went on line in 2007 stipulated agreement was

filed on May 2010 and approved by the KCC on June 25 2010 calling for $2.8 million or 12.4%

increase in base rates effective July 2010 We will defer depreciation and operating and maintenance

expense on both Plum Point and latan from their respective in-service dates until the effective date for

rates from the next Kansas case expected to be an abbreviated rate case that will be filed within the next

year These deferrals will be recovered over year period as determined in that next case We will

record AFUDC on all Plum Point and latan capital expenditures incurred after January 31 2010

Oklahoma

On March 25 2010 we requested capital cost recovery rider CCRR at the Oklahoma Corporation

Commission 0CC The rider was designed to recover the carrying costs on our capital investment for
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generation transmission and distribution assets that have been added to the system since our last

Oklahoma general rate case May 2003 as well as investments made on an ongoing basis As requested

the operation of the CCRR would have increased our operating revenue by approximately $3 million or

approximately 33% in Oklahoma in series of three steps to be followed with general rate case in 2011

On August 30 2010 we were granted two-phase Capital Reliability Rider CRR by the 0CC The first

phase of the rider was put into place for Oklahoma customers for usage on and after September 2010

and results in an overall annual base revenue increase of approximately $1.5 millionor 15.7% In total the

CRR revenue has been specifically limited by the 0CC to an overall annual revenue increase of

$2.6 million or 27.67% increase On January 28 2011 we requested the approval by the 0CC of the

phase rates of the CRR We requested an additional $1.1 millionwhich brings the total annual revenue

under the 0CC to approximately $2.5 million We will file general rate case within six months of the

commercial operation date of Iatan which was December 31 2010 to replace the CRR with permanent

rates

Arkansas

On August 19 2010 we filed rate increase request with the Arkansas Public Service Commission

APSC for an annual increase in base rates for our Arkansas electric customers in the amount of

$3.2 million or 27.3% On February 2011 we entered into unanimous settlement agreement with the

parties involved The settlement includes general rate increase of $2.1 million or 19% The settlement

calls for the implementation of new tariff the Transmission Cost Recovery Rider TCR designed to

track changes in the cost of transmission charges from the Southwest Power Pool Inc The existing Energy

Cost Recovery Rider was also modified to include the recovery of the costs associated with certain air

quality control materials hearing on the settlement has been scheduled for March 2011 at the APSC

FERC

On March 12 2010 we filed GFR tariffs with the FERC which we propose to be utilized for our

wholesale customers On May 28 2010 the FERC issued an order that conditionally approved our GFR

filing subject to refund effective June 2010 As of December 31 2010 we estimate approximately

$0.6 million of this amount will be subject to refund and have reduced our revenue accordingly On

June 30 2010 three of our on-system wholesale customers were granted intervention in the GFR rate case

Also on May 28 2010 we filed notice with the FERC requesting termination of the current bundled

service agreements for our wholesale customers effective July 31 2010 On July 28 2010 the FERC issued

an order accepting and suspending the proposed terminations for nominal period to become effective

July 31 2010 subject to refund The FERCs order also consolidated the GFR and termination

proceedings On September 15 2010 the parties agreed to settlement in principle and are now working

to finalize the terms of the settlement

Gas Segment

On June 2009 we filed request with the MPSC for an annual increase in base rates for our

Missouri gas customers in the amount of $2.9 millionor 4.9% In this filing we requested recovery of the

ongoing cost of operating and maintaining our 1200-mile gas distribution system and return on equity of

11.3% On February 24 2010 the MPSC unanimously approved an agreement among the Office of the

Public Counsel OPC the MPSC staff and Empire for an increase of $2.6 million Pursuant to the

Agreement new rates went into effect on April 2010
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COMPETITION

Electric Segment

SPP-RTO

Energy Imbalance Services On February 2007 the Southwest Power Pool SPP regional transmission

organization RTO launched its energy imbalance services market EIS In general the SPP RTO EIS

market provides real time energy for most participating members within the SPP regional footprint

Imbalance energy prices are based on market bids and status/availability of dispatchable generation and

transmission within the SPP market footprint In addition to energy imbalance service the SPP RTO

performs real security-constrained economic dispatch of all generation voluntarily offered into the

EIS market to the market participants to also serve the native load

Day -Ahead Market The SPP and its members have been evaluating the costs and benefits on expanding

the EIS market into full day ahead energy market with co-optimized ancillary services market which

will include the consolidation of all SPP balancing authorities including ours into single SPP balancing

authority On April 28 2009 the SPP Regional State Committee SPP RSC whose members include state

commissioners from our four state commissions and the SPP Board of Directors SPP BOD endorsed

cost benefit report that recommended the SPP RTO move forward with the development of day-ahead

market with unit commitment and co-optimized ancillary services market Day-Ahead Market and

implement the complete Day-Ahead Market as soon as practical which is anticipated in late 2013 or early

2014 As part
of the Day-Ahead Market the SPP RTO will create prior to implementation of such market

single NERC approved balancing authority to take over balancing authority responsibilities
for its

members including us which is expected to provide operational and economic benefits for our customers

The implementation of the Day-Ahead Market will replace the existing EIS market which to date has and

is expected to continue to provide benefits for our customers

SPP Regional Transmission Development On August 15 2008 the SPP filed with the FERC proposed

revisions to its open access transmission pro forma tariff OATT to establish process for including

balanced portfoLio of economic transmission upgrades in the annual SPP Transmission Expansion Plan

The cost of such upgrades will be recovered through regional rate allocated to SPP members based on

their load ratio share within SPPs market area of the balanced portfolios cost On October 16 2008 the

FERC accepted the balanced portfolio approach which sets forth the selection process of group of

projects and regional cost allocation rules based on projected benefits and allocated costs over ten year

period The plan will be balanced if the portfolio is cost beneficial for each zone including ours within the

SPP balanced portfolio could include projects below the 345 kv level which is the bright line voltage

level for projects to be included in the portfolio to increase benefits to particular zone to achieve

balance of benefits and costs over the ten year study period On April 28 2009 the SPP RSC and the SPP

BOD approved the first set of balanced portfolio extra high voltage transmission projects to be constructed

within the SPP region The transmission expansion projects totaling over $840 million include projects in

Missouri Kansas Arkansas Oklahoma Nebraska and Texas We anticipate this set of transmission

expansion projecls
will provide long term benefits to our customers While we do not project our allocated

costs for the balanced portfolio projects to be material we expect that the costs will be recoverable in

future rates Also on April 28 2009 the SPP RSC and BOD approved new report that recommended

restructuring of the SPPs regional planning processes which would establish an integrated planning

process
for reliability transmission service and economic transmission projects based on new set of

planning principles that focus on the construction of more robust transmission system large enough in

both scale and geography to provide flexibility to meet SPP members and customers future needs We will

continue to activly participate in the development of these new processes as well as cost allocation and
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recovery issues with members prospective customers and the state commission representatives to the SPP

RSC

On October 27 2009 the SPP BOD endorsed new transmission cost allocation method to replace

the existing FERC accepted cost allocation method for new transmission facilities needed to continue to

reliably and economically serve SPP customers including ours well into the future On April 19 2010 SPP

filed revisions to its OATF to adopt new highway/byway cost allocation methodology which require SPP

BOD approved transmission projects of 300 kV or larger to be funded by the region at 100% transmission

projects between 100 kV and 300 kV to receive 33% regional funding with individual constructing zones to

pay 67% of those projects built within the zone For projects under 100kv the constructing zones would

pay 100% of the cost On May 17 2010 we filed joint protest at the FERC with other SPP members

based on our disagreement with the SPP on the allocation percentages and various other issues On

June 17 2010 the FERC unconditionally approved the new highway/byway cost allocation method We
and other members of the SPP filed Request for Rehearing on July 19 2010 It is uncertain as to when or

if the FERC will rule on our Request for Rehearing To date the SPPs BOD has approved $1.4 billion in

highway/byway projects to be constructed over the next several years As these projects are constructed we

will be allocated share of the costs of the projects pursuant to the FERC accepted cost allocation method

We expect that these costs will be recoverable in future rates

In related but separate filing on May 17 2010 the SPP filed revisions to its OATT to incorporate

modified transmission planning process the Integrated Transmission Plan ITP that the SPP will use to

determine its near and long term transmission needs to meet reliability and provide economic benefits

throughout the SPP region On June 2010 we made joint protest filing at the FERC regarding the ITP

filing which expressed our concerns over the lack of explicit provisions
in the SPP OATF to protect SPP

customers from the approval of transmission projects that may not sufficiently benefit the SPP region On

July 15 2010 the FERC issued an order conditionally accepting SPP proposed ITP planning process and

tariff provisions to be effective on July 17 2010 and ordered SPP to make compliance filing by

August 15 2010 on the timing of ITP business practices and factors to be considered for changing the

allocation of costs methods for dual winding high voltage transformers We and the other parties to the

SPP ITP jointly filed formal Request for Rehearing at the FERC on the ITP order on August 13 2010

On September 2010 the FERC granted our Request For Rehearing to allow additional time for FERCs

further consideration

FERC Market Power Order

As part of our market based pricing authority from the FERC we are required to conduct market

power analysis within our service territory and within the SPP RTO region every three years We filed our

triennial market power analysis with the FERC on July 30 2009 concluding there were no material

changes to our market position As result we did not anticipate any changes to our existing market based

rate authority On July 13 2010 the FERC issued an order accepting our triennial market power analysis

and authorized the continuation of our market based rate authority for wholesale transactions outside our

service territory

Other FERC Activity

On May 21 2009 the FERC issued an order clarifying that going forward small public utilities that

have been granted waiver of Order No 889 Open Access Same Time Information Systems OASIS
requirement and the Standards of Conduct for transmission operations which includes us are required to

submit notification filing if there has been material change in facts that may affect the basis on which

public utilitys waiver was premised The Standards of Conduct generally govern the communications
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between our day to day transmission operations personnel and our day to day wholesale marketing and

sales personnel We submitted our filing on July 13 2009 in which we stated our belief that continuation of

our waiver issued in 1997 and reaffirmed in 2004 was appropriate and reasonable Based on the May 21

2009 order it is possible that the FERC will revoke our waiver which would impact communication

between our transmission and wholesale marketing and sales functions and operations within our

organization As part of our filing we sought twelve month extension in order to comply with the

Standard of Conduct requirements in the event the FERC determined that revoking our waiver was

appropriate The FERCs decision on this and other Standard of Conduct waiver filings is pending As of

July 19 2010 we have voluntarily taken steps to allow us to comply with FERC order with minimal

additional impact

On June 17 2010 FERC issued Notice of Proposed Rulemaking NOPR proposing to amend the

transmission planning and cost allocation requirements established in Order No 890 to ensure that

FERC-jurisdictiorial services are provided on basis that is just reasonable and not unduly discriminatory

or preferential With respect to transmission planning FERC said that the proposed rule would

provide that local and regional transmission planning processes account for transmission needs driven

by public policy requirements established by state or federal laws or regulations improve coordination

between neighboring transmission planning regions with respect to interregional facilities and remove

from FERC-approved tariffs or agreements right of first refusal created by those documents that

provides an incumbent transmission provider with an undue advantage over non-incumbent transmission

developer Neither incumbent nor non-incumbent transmission facility developers should as result of

FERC-approved tariff or agreement receive different treatment in regional transmission planning

process FERC contended Further both should share similar benefits and obligations commensurate with

that participation including the right consistent with state or local laws or regulations to construct and

own facility that it sponsors in regional transmission planning process and that is selected for inclusion

in the regional transmission plan With respect to cost allocation the proposed rule would establish

closer link between transmission planning processes and cost allocation and would require cost allocation

methods for intraregional and interregional transmission facilities to satisfy newly established cost

allocation principles We participated in the development of comments by the SPP RTO which were filed

at FERC on September 29 2010 We will continue to monitor the NOPR as it may affect our existing rights

to construct transmission facilities in our service territory as well as high voltage transmission expansion

and cost allocation that will affect our cost of delivery service to our customers

Gas Segment

Non-residential gas customers whose annual usage exceeds certain amounts may purchase natural gas

from source other than EDG EDG does not have non-regulated energy marketing service that sells

natural gas in competition with outside sources EDG continues to receive non-gas related revenues for

distribution and other services if natural gas is purchased from another source by our eligible customers

Other Rate Matters

In accordance with ASC guidance on regulated operations we currently have deferred approximately

$1.5 million of expense related to rate cases under other non-current assets and deferred charges These

amounts will be amortized over varying periods based upon the completion of the specific cases Based on

past history we expect all these expenses to be recovered in rates
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Regulatory Assets and Liabilities and Other Deferred Credits

The Missouri Public Service Commission MPSC approved regulatory plan in 2005 allowing

construction accounting Construction accounting for the purposes of this regulatory plan is specific to

latan and latan and allows us to defer certain charges as regulatory assets These deferred charges

include depreciation operations and maintenance and carrying costs related to operation of the facilities

until the facilities are ultimately included in our rates The regulatory plan also requires us to continue to

defer the fuel and purchased power expense impacts of latan which were approximately $3.1 million for

the year and are recorded in Non-Current Regulatory Liabilities Construction accounting began for

latan which met its in-service criteria on August 26 2010 In addition in our recently completed Missouri

rate case construction accounting was approved for Plum Point which met its in-service criteria on

August 13 2010 Construction accounting for Plum Point applies only to construction costs incurred

subsequent to February 28 2010 All of these deferrals begin at the in-service dates and will be amortized

over the life of the plants once they are included in our rates which we estimate to be upon completion of

our Missouri rate case filed on September 28 2010 See Note 11 for additional details The following

table sets forth the costs related to construction accounting in thousands

Deferred

Carrying Deferred

Balances as of December 31 2010 Charges OM Depreciation Total

latan $2779 1388 1682 5849

Iatan $1770 1643 1111 4524

Plum Point 33 70 45 148

Total $10521

Changes to regulatory assets and liabilities regarding their rate base inclusion or amortizable lives

since December 31 2009 include the amortization of latan construction accounting costs effective

September 10 2010 of approximately $0.1 million per year over the life of the plant amortization of

vegetation tracker costs in Missouri over five years the write off of approximately $1.2 million of tax

amortization in the first quarter of 2010 for which we estimated rate recovery would no longer be probable

and amortization of ice storm costs in Kansas See Note Income Taxes for additional information
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The following table sets forth the components of our regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities on our

consolidated balance sheet in thousands

December 31

2010 2009

Regulatory Assets

Under recovered purchased gas costs gas segment current 434

Under recovered electric fuel and purchased power costs current 4974 338

Regulatory assets current1 4974 772

Pension and other postretirement benefits2 92192 81171

Income taxes 50188 49230

Storm costs3 7733 11673

Unamortized loss on reacquired debt 13099 12167

Unamortized loss on interest rate derivative 1776 2091

Asbury five-year maintenance 948 1401

Deferred latan construction accounting costs 10521 2732

Asset retirement obligation 3412 3264

Under recovered electric fuel and purchased power costs 662

Under recovered purchased gas costs gas segment 439

Unsettled derivative losses electric segment 3166 335

Customer programs 2119 1255

System reliability vegetation management 3338 1636

Other 473 637

Regulatory assets long-term 189404 168254

TOTAL REGULATORY ASSETS $194378 $169026

Regulatory Liabilities

Over recovered purchased gas costs gas segment current 1243

Regulatory liabilities current5 1243

Costs of removal 62756 53083

Income taxes 12715 20678

Unamortized gain on interest rate derivative 3881 4051

Pension and other postretirement benefits4 4604 6415

Deferred construction accounting costs fuel 3126

Over recovered electric fuel and purchased power costs5 155 1344

Over recovered purchased gas costs gas segment 1874

Other 342 88

Regulatory liabilities long-term 87579 87533

TOTAL REGULATORY LIABILITIES 88822 87533

Reflects under recovered costs expected to be recovered within the next 12 months in Missouri rates

Primarily reflects regulatory assets resulting from the unfunded portion of our pension and OPEB
liabilities and regulatory accounting for EDG acquisition costs Approximately $0.5 million in pension

and other postretirement
benefit costs have been recognized since January 2010 to reflect the
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amortization of the regulatory assets that were recorded at the time of the EDG acquisition of the

Aquila Inc gas properties

Primarily reflects ice storm costs incurred in 2007

Includes the effect of costs incurred that are more or less than those allowed in rates for the Missouri

EDE and EDG and Kansas EDE portion of pension and other postretirement benefit costs Since

January 2010 regulatory liabilities and corresponding expenses have been reduced by

approximately $0.9 million as result of ratemaking treatment

Primarily
consists of Missouri over recovered fuel and purchased power costs for the current

accumulation period September 2010 through February 2011

Unamottized losses on debt and losses on interest rate derivatives are not included in rate base but

are included in our capital structure for rate base purposes The remainder of our regulatory assets are not

included in rate base generally because they are not cash items or they are earning carrying costs

However as of December 31 2010 the costs of all of our regulatory assets are currently being recovered

except for th deferred latan and Plum Point costs discussed above and approximately $84.4 million of

pension and other postretirement costs primarily related to the unfunded liabilities for future pension and

OPEB costs The amount and timing of
recovery

of this item will be based on the changing funded status of

the pension and OPEB plans in future periods

The regulatory income tax assets and liabilities are generally amortized over the average depreciable

life of the related assets The loss on reacquired debt and the loss and gain on interest rate derivatives are

amortized over the life of the related new debt issue which currently ranges from to 26 years The

unrecovered fuel costs are generally recovered within year following their recognition Ice storm costs

and the Abury five-year maintenance costs are recovered over five years Pension and other

postretirement benefit tracking mechanisms are recovered over five
year period The cost of removal

regulatory liability is amortized as removal costs are incurred

Common Stock

Recent Issues

We successfully completed an equity distribution program during the second quarter
of 2010 and used

the net proceeds to repay short-term debt and for general corporate purposes including the funding of our

construction program During 2010 we issued and sold 2870985 shares of our common stock pursuant to

this equity distribution program at an average price per share of $18.41 resulting in net proceeds to us of

approximately $51.3 million Since inception of the program on February 25 2009 in the aggregate we

issued and sold 6535216 shares pursuant to the program at an average price per share of $18.36 resulting

in net proceeds to us of approximately $116.0 million Sales of the shares pursuant to the equity

distribution agreement were made at market prices or as otherwise agreed with UBS our underwriter

Stock Based Compensation

We have several stock-based awards and programs which are described below Performance based

restricted stock awards stock options and their related dividend equivalents are valued as liability awards

in accordance with fair value guidelines We allow employees to elect to have taxes in excess of the

minimum statutory requirements withheld from their awards and therefore the awards are classified as

liability instruments under the ASC guidance on share based payment Awards treated as liability

instruments must be revalued each period until settled and cost is accrued over the requisite service period

and adjusted to fair value at each reporting period until settlement or expiration of the award
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We recognized the following amounts in compensation expense and tax benefits for all of our stock-

based awards and programs for the applicable years ended December 31 in thousands

2010 2009 2008

Compensation expense $3193 $2292 $1841

Tax bertefit recognized 1160 819 659

Stock Incentive Plans

Our 2006 Stock Incentive Plan the 2006 Incentive Plan was adopted by shareholders at the annual

meeting on April 28 2005 and provides for grants of up to 650000 shares of common stock through

January 2016 The 2006 Stock Incentive Plan permits grants of stock options and restricted stock to

qualified employees and permits Directors and if approved by the Compensation Committee of the Board

of Directors qualified employees to receive common stock in lieu of cash Certain executive officers and

other senior managers applied to receive annual incentive awards related to 2008 2009 and 2010

performance in the form of Empire common stock rather than cash These requests were granted by the

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors under the terms of our 2006 Stock Incentive Plan

The terms and conditions of any option or stock grant are determined by the Board of Directors

Compensation Committee within the provisions of these Stock Incentive Plans

Performance-Based Restricted Stock Awards

Performance-based restricted stock awards are granted to qualified individuals consisting of the right

to receive number of shares of common stock at the end of the restricted period assuming performance

criteria are met The performance measure for the award is the total return to our shareholders over

three-year period compared with an investor-owned utility peer group The threshold level of performance

under the 2008 2009 and 2010 grants was set at the 20th percentile level of the peer group target at the

50th percentile level and the maximum at the 80th percentile level Shares would be earned at the end of

the three-year performance period as follows 100% of the target number of shares if the target level of

performance is reached 50% if the threshold is reached and 200% if the percentile ranking is at or above

the maximum with the number of shares interpolated between these levels However no shares would be

payable if the threshold level is not reached As noted previously all performance-based restricted stock

awards are classified as liability instruments which must be revalued each period until settled The fair

value of the outstanding restricted stock awards was estimated as of December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

using Monte Carlo option valuation model The assumptions used in the model for each grant year are

noted in the following table

Fair Value of Grants Outstanding at December 31

2010 2009 2008

Risk-free interest rate 0.30% to 0.62% 0.47% to 1.08% 0.37% to 0.66%

Expected volatility of Empire stock 26.9% 28.8% 26.6%

Expected volatility of peer group stock 21.7% to 82.7% 22.1% to 80.9% 20.5% to 68.7%

Expected dividend yield on Empire stock 6.5% 7.6% 6.4%

Expected forfeiture rates 3% 3% 3%

Plan cycle years years years

Fair value percentage 138.0% to 193.7% 87.0% to 132.0% 99.0% to 124.0%

Weighted average fair value per share $37.17 $21.00 $19.23
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Non-vested restricted stock awards based on target number as of December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

and changes during the year ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 were as follows

2010 2009 2008

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date Number Of Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

Outstanding at January 52200 $21.57 52300 $22.64 43400 $23.02

Granted 13000 $18.36 13500 $18.12 21000 $21.92

Awarded 15104 $23.81 12394 $22.23 6486 $22.77

Not awarded 2596 1206 5614

Nonvested at December 31 47500 $19.86 52200 $21.57 52300 $22.64

At December 31 2010 and 2009 unrecognized compensation expense related to estimated

outstanding awards was $0.4 million and $0.4 million respectively

Stock Options

Stock options are issued with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the shares on the date

of grant become exercisable after three
years and expire ten years after the date granted Participants

options that are not vested become forfeited when participants leave Empire except for terminations of

employment under certain specified circumstances Dividend equivalent awards are also issued to the

recipients of the stock options under which dividend equivalents will be accumulated for the three-year

period until the option becomes exercisable Dividend equivalents cease to be accumulated on the date

that participant leaves Empire and the accumulated dividend equivalents are forfeited when

participant leaves the Company except for terminations of employment under certain specified

circumstances The fair value per dividend equivalent grants for 2010 2009 and 2008 outstanding at

December 31 2010 were $3.79 $3.83 and $3.84 respectively

The dividend equivalents are accumulated for the three-year period and are converted to shares of

common stock based on the fair market value of the shares on the date converted As per Section 409A of

the Internal Revenue Code added by the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 the dividend equivalent

awards vest and are payable in fully vested shares of our common stock on the third anniversary of the

grant date conversion date or at change in control and not dependent upon the exercise of the related

option
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As noted previously all outstanding stock option awards are classified as liability instruments which

must be revalued each period until settled Stock option grants vest upon satisfaction of service conditions

The cost of the awards is generally recognized over the requisite explicit service period The fair value of

the outstanding options was estimated as of December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 under Black-Scholes

methodology The assumptions used in the valuations are shown below

Risk-free interest rate

Dividend yield

Expected volatility

Expected life in months

Market value

Weighted average fair value per option

Fair Value of Grants Outstanding at December 31

2010 2009 2008

0.45% to 2.34% 1.11% to 2.98% 0.85% to 1.70%

6.5% 7.6% 6.4%

23.0% 24.0% 24.0%

78 78 78

$22.20 $18.73 $17.60

$2.02 $0.97 $0.78

Weighted

Average
Exercise

Price

$22.19

$18.36

267400 $21.69

149200 $23.04

summary of option activity under the plan during the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and

2008 is presented below

2010

Outstanding at January

Granted

Exercised

Outstanding at Iecember 31

Exercisable end of year

Options

232600

34800

2009

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Options Price

205600 $22.73

27000 $18.12

232600 $22.19

85000 $22.46

2008

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Options Price

149200 $23.04

56400 $21.92

205600 $22.73

43300 $22.67

The aggregate intrinsic value at December 31 2010 was $0.3 million and immaterial for both 2009 and

2008 The intrinsic value of the unexercised options is the difference between the Companys closing stock

price on the last day of the period and the exercise price multiplied by the number of in-the-money

options had all option holders exercised their options on the last day of the period

The range of exercise prices for the options outstanding at December 31 2010 was $18.12 to $23.81

The weighted-average remaining contractual life of outstanding options at December 31 2010 2009 and

2008 was 6.6 6.6 and 7.1 years respectively As of December 31 2010 this includes 149200 shares at the

weighted average price of $23.04 which are vested and exercisable All others are non-vested As of

December 31 2010 and 2009 there was $0.2 and $0.2 million respectively of unrecognized compensation

expense related to non-vested options and related dividend equivalents granted under the plan
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Our Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP permits
the grant to eligible employees of options to

purchase common stock at 90% of the lower of market value at date of grant or at date of exercise The

lookback feature of this plan is valued at 90% of the Black-Scholes methodology plus 10% of the

maximum subscription price As of December 31 2010 there were 331021 shares available for issuance in

this plan

2010 2009 2008

Subscriptions outstanding at December 31 71326 68591 48413

Maximum subscription price
16.061 $14.62 $18.57

Shares of stock issued 66723 44265 38803

Stock issuance price
$14.62 $14.10 $18.61

Stock will be issued on the closing date of the purchase period which runs from June 2010

to May 31 2011

Assumptions for valuation of these shares are shown in the table below

2010 2009 2008

Weighted average fair value of grants
2.28 3.26 3.46

Risk-free interest rate 0.35% 0.48% 2.17%

Diidend
yield

7.20% 7.90% 6.20%

Expected volatility1
17.00% 40.00% 26.00%

Expected life in months 12 12 12

Grant date 6/1/10 6/1/09 6/2/08

One-year historic volatility

Stock Unit Plan for Directors

Our Stock Unit Plan for directors Stock Unit Plan provides
stock-based compensation program for

directors This plan enhances our ability to attract and retain competent and experienced directors and

allows the dfrectors the opportunity to accumulate compensation in the form of common stock units The

Stock Unit plan also provides directors the opportunity to convert previously earned cash retirement

benefits to common stock units All eligible
directors who had benefits under the prior cash retirement

plan convered their cash retirement benefits to common stock units

total of 400000 shares are authorized under this plan Each common stock unit earns dividends in

the form of common stock units and can be redeemed for shares of common stock The number of units

granted annually is computed by dividing an annual credit determined by the Compensation Committee

by the fair market value of our common stock on January of the
year

the units are granted Common

stock unit dividends are computed based on the fair market value of our stock on the dividends record

date We record the related compensation expense at the time we make the accrual for the directors

benefits as the directors provide
services At December 31 2010 and 2009 there were 139912 and 112895
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shares accrued to directors accounts respectively and 311523 and 317870 shares available for issuance

under this plan respectively

2010 2009 2008

Units accrued for service and dividends 33364 33024 20979
Units redeemed for common stock 6347 34853 3484

401k Plan and ESOP

Our Employee 401k Plan and ESOP the 401k Plan allows participating employees to defer up to

25% of their annual compensation up to an Internal Revenue Service specified limit We match 50% of

each employees deferrals by contributing shares of our common stock with such matching contributions

not to exceed 3% of the employees eligible compensation We record the compensation expense at the

time the quarterly matching contributions are made to the plan At December 31 2010 and 2009 there

were 104601 and 169431 shares available to be issued respectively

2010 2009 2008

Shares contributed 64830 73408 59253

Dividends

Holders of our common stock are entitled to dividends if as and when declared by the Board of

Directors out of funds legally available therefore subject to the prior rights of holders of any outstanding

cumulative preferred stock and preference stock Payment of dividends is determined by our Board of

Directors after considering all relevant factors including the amount of our retained earnings which is

essentially our accumulated net income less dividend payouts As of December 31 2010 our retained

earnings balance was $5.5 million compared to $10.1 million at December 31 2009 after paying out

$52.0 million in dividends during 2010 reduction of our dividend per share partially or in whole could

have an adverse effect on our common stock price On February 2011 the Board of Directors declared

quarterly dividend of $0.32 per share on common stock payable March 15 2011 to holders of record as of

March 2011

Under Kansas corporate law our Board of Directors may only declare and pay dividends out of our

surplus or if there is no surplus out of our net profits for the fiscal year in which the dividend is declared

or the preceding fiscal year or both Our surplus under Kansas law is equal to our retained earnings plus

accumulated other comprehensive income/loss net of income tax However Kansas law does permit

under certain circumstances our Board of Directors to transfer amounts from capital in excess of par value

to surplus In addition Section 305a of the Federal Power Act FPA prohibits the payment by utility of

dividends from any funds properly included in capital account There are no additional rules or

regulations issued by the FERC under the FPA clarifying the meaning of this limitation However several

decisions by the FERC on specific dividend proposals suggest that any determination would be based on

fact-intensive analysis of the specific facts and circumstances surrounding the utility and the dividend in

question with particular focus on the impact of the proposed dividend on the liquidity and financial

condition of the utility

En addition the EDE Mortgage and our Restated Articles contain certain dividend restrictions The

most restrictive of these is contained in the EDE Mortgage which provides that we may not declare or pay

any dividends other than dividends payable in shares of our common stock or make any other

distribution on or purchase other than with the proceeds of additional common stock financing any
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shares of our common stock if the cumulative aggregate amount thereof after August 31 1944 exclusive

of the first quarterly dividend of $98000 paid after said date would exceed the sum of $10.75 million and

the earned surplus as defined in the EDE Mortgage accumulated subsequent to August 31 1944 or the

date of succession in the event that another corporation succeeds to our rights and liabilities by merger

or consolidation On March 11 2008 we amended the EDE Mortgage in order to provide us with more

flexibility to pay dividends to our shareholders by increasing the basket available to pay dividends by

$10.75 million as described above As of December 31 2010 this restriction did not prevent us from

issuing dividends

Preferred and Preference Stock

We have 2.5 million shares of preference stock authorized including 0.5 million shares of Series

Participating Preference Stock none of which have been issued We have million shares of $10.00 par

value cumulative preferred stock authorized There was no preferred stock issued and outstanding at

December 31 2010 or 2009

Preference Stock Purchase Rights

Our shareholder rights plan provided each of the common stockholders one Preference Stock

Purchase Right Right for each share of common stock owned The shareholder rights plan dated as of

July 26 2000 expired on July 25 2010 pursuant to its terms There were 38.0 million rights outstanding at

December 31 2009 As result of the expiration no rights were outstanding at December 31 2010
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Long-Term 1ebt

At December 31 2010 and 2009 the balance of long-term debt outstanding was as follows in
thousands

2010 2009

Note payable to securitization trust1 50000
First mortgage bonds EDE

6% Series due 2010 50000
7.20% Series due 2016 25000 25000
5.3% Pollution Control Series due 20132 8000 8000
5.2% Pollution Control Series due 20132 5200 5200
5.875% Series due 2037 80000 80000
6.375% Series due 2018 90000 90000
4.65% Series due 2020 100000

5.20% Series due 2040 50000
7.0% Series due 2024 74854 74975

First mortgage bonds EDG
6.82% Series due 2036 55000 55000

488054 388175

Senior Notes 7.05% Series due 20222 48522
Senior Notes 4% Series due 2013 98000 98000
Senior Notes 6.70% Series due 2033 62000 62000
Senior Notes 5.80% Series due 2035 40000 40000
Other 6932 5254

Less unamortized net discount 1033 774

693953 691177
Less current obligations of long-term debt 614 50587
Less current olligations under capital lease 267 434

Total long-term debt $693072 $640156

Represented by our Junior Subordinated Debentures 8% Series due 2031

We may redeem some or all of the notes at any time at 100% of their principal amount plus accrued

and unpaid interest to the redemption date

We may redeem some or all of the notes at any time at 100% of their principal amount plus

make-whole premium plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date

We may redeem some or all of the bonds at any time on or after April 2012 at 100% of the

principal amount of the bonds plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date

Debt Financing Activities

On August 25 2010 we issued $50 million principal amount of 5.20% first mortgage bonds due

September 2040 The net proceeds after payment of expenses of approximately $49.1 million were

used to redeem $48.3 million aggregate principal amount of our Senior Notes 7.05% Series due 2022 on

August 27 2010
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On May 28 2010 we issued $100 million principal amount of 4.65% first mortgage bonds due June

2020 The net proceeds after payment of expenses of approximately $98.8 million were used to redeem

all million outstanding shares of our 8.5% trust preferred securities totaling $50 million on June 28

2010 and to repay short-term debt which was incurred in part to fund the repayment at maturity of our

6.5% first mortgage bonds due 2010

On March 27 2009 we issued $75 million principal amount of 7% first mortgage bonds due April

2024 The net proceeds after payment of expenses of approximately $72.6 million were used to repay

short-term dtht incurred in part to fund our current construction program

On May 16 2008 we issued $90 million principal amount of first mortgage bonds The net proceeds of

approximatel $89.4 million less $0.4 million of legal and other financing fees were added to our general

funds and used primarily to pay down short-term indebtedness incurred in part as result of our on-going

construction program

On January 28 2011 we filed $400 million shelf registration statement with the SEC covering our

common stok unsecured debt securities preference stock and first mortgage bonds This shelf

registration sLatement became effective on February 2011 We plan to use proceeds under this shelf to

fund capital expenditures refinancings of existing debt or general corporate needs during the effective

period The issuance of securities under this shelf is subject to the receipt of local regulatory approvals

The principal amount of all series of first mortgage bonds outstanding at any one time under the EDE

Mortgage is limited by terms of the mortgage to $1 billion Substantially all of the property plant and

equipment of The Empire District Electric Company but not its subsidiaries is subject to the lien of the

EDE Mortgage Restrictions in the EDE mortgage bond indenture could affect our liquidity The EDE

Mortgage contains requirement that for new first mortgage bonds to be issued our net earnings as

defined in the EDE Mortgage for any twelve consecutive months within the fifteen months preceding

issuance must be two times the annual interest requirements as defined in the EDE Mortgage on all first

mortgage bopds then outstanding and on the prospective issue of new first mortgage bonds Our earnings

for the year ended December 31 2010 would permit us to issue approximately $362.3 million of new first

mortgage botids based on this test with an assumed interest rate of 6.0% In addition to the interest

coverage reqUirement the EDE Mortgage provides that new bonds must be issued against among other

things retired bonds or 60% of net property additions At December 31 2010 we had retired bonds and

net property additions which would enable the issuance of at least $634.0 million principal amount of

bonds if the nnual interest requirements are met As of December 31 2010 we are in compliance with all

restrictive covenants of the EDE Mortgage

The pril4cipal amount of all series of first mortgage bonds outstanding at any one time under the EDG

Mortgage is limited by terms of the mortgage to $300 million Substantially all of the property plant and

equipment The Empire District Gas Company is subject to the lien of the EDG Mortgage The EDG

Mortgage cofltains requirement that for new first mortgage bonds to be issued the amount of such new

first mortgag bonds shall not exceed 75% of the cost of property additions acquired after the date of the

Missouri Ga acquisition The mortgage also contains limitation on the issuance by EDG of debt

including first mortgage bonds but excluding short-term debt incurred in the ordinary course under

working capital facilities unless after giving effect to such issuance EDGs ratio of EBITDA defined as

net income plus interest taxes depreciation amortization and certain other non-cash charges to interest

charges for the most recent four fiscal quarters is at least 2.0 to As of December 31 2010 this test would

allow us to issue approximately $8.3 million principal amount of new first mortgage bonds

The carrying amount of our total debt exclusive of capital leases at December 31 2010 was

$689 million compared to fair market value of approximately $697 million The carrying amount of our
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total debt exclusive of capital leases as of December 31 2009 was $688 million compared to fair value of

approximately $695 million These estimates were based on the quoted market prices for the same or

similar issues or on the current rates offered to us for debt of the same remaining maturities The

estimated fair market value may not represent the actual value that could have been realized as of year-end

or that will be realizable in the future

Payments Due By Period

Long-Term Debt Payout Schedule Regulated Capital

Excluding Unamortized Discount Entity Debt Lease
in thousands Total Obligations Obligations

2011 881 614 267

2012 917 641 276

2013 111908 111615 293

2014 267 267

2015 286 286

Thereafter 580727 576854 3873

Total long-term debt obligations 694986 $689724 $5262

Less current obligations and unamortized discount 1914

Total long-term debt $693072

Short-Term Borrowings

At December 31 2010 total short-term borrowings consisted of $24.0 million in commercial paper

and no borrowings from our line of credit Short-term borrowings outstanding averaged $36.3 million and

$68.9 million daily during 2010 and 2009 respectively with the highest month-end balances being

$74.0 million and $123.0 million respectively The weighted average interest rates during 2010 and 2009

were 1.74% and 1.63% in each period The weighted average interest rate of borrowings outstanding at

December 31 2010 and 2009 was 1.15% and 1.05% respectively

On January 26 2010 we entered into the Second Amended and Restated Unsecured Credit

Agreement which amended and restated our unsecured revolving credit facility This agreement extends

the termination date of the revolving credit facility from July 15 2010 to January 26 2013 In addition the

pricing and fees under the facility were amended Interest on borrowings under the facility accrues at rate

equal to at our option the highest of the banks prime commercial rate the federal funds

effective rate plus 0.5% or one month LIBOR plus 1.0% pIus margin or ii one month two month

or three month LIBOR in each case plus margin Each margin is based on our current credit ratings and

the pricing schedule in the facility As of the date hereof and based on our current credit ratings the

LIBOR margin under the facility increased from 0.80% to 2.70% facility fee is payable quarterly on the

full amount of the commitments under the facility and usage fee is payable on the full amount of the

commitments under the facility for any period in which we have drawn less than 33% of the total revolving

commitments under the facility in each case based on our current credit ratings In addition upon
entering into the amended and restated facility we paid an upfront fee to the revolving credit banks of

$900000 in the aggregate The
aggregate amount of the revolving commitments remained unchanged at

$150 million and there were no other material changes to the terms of the facility

The facility is used for working capital general corporate purposes and to back-up our use of

commercial paper This facility requires our total indebtedness to be less than 62.5% of our total

capitalization at the end of each fiscal
quarter and our EBITDA defined as net income plus interest taxes

106



THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

depreciation
and amortization to be at least two times our interest charges for the trailing four fiscal

quarters at the end of each fiscal quarter Failure to maintain these ratios will result in an event of default

under the credit facility and will prohibit us from borrowing funds thereunder As of December 31 2010

we are in compliance with these ratios Our total indebtedness is 52.2% of our total capitalization as of

December 31 2010 and our EBITDA is 5.0 times our interest charges This credit facility is also subject to

cross-default if we default on in excess of $10 million in the aggregate on our other indebtedness This

arrangement does not serve to legally restrict the use of our cash in the normal course of operations There

were no outstanding borrowings under this agreement at December 31 2010 However $24.0 million was

used to back up our outstanding commercial paper

On March 11 2009 we entered into $50 million unsecured credit agreement This agreement which

terminated on July 15 2010 provided for $50 million of revolving loans to be available to us for working

capital geneal corporate purposes and to back-up our use of commercial paper and was in addition to

and had substantially identical covenants and terms as other than pricing our Second Amended and

Restated Unsecured Credit Agreement dated January 26 2010 discussed above

Retirement Benefits

We record retirement benefits in accordance with the ASC guidance on accounting for pension and

other postretirement benefits and have recorded the appropriate liabilities to reflect the unfunded status

of our benefit plans with offsetting entries to regulatory asset because we believe it is probable the

unfunded amount of these plans will be afforded rate recovery The tax effects of these entries are

reflected as deferred tax assets and liabilities and regulatory liabilities

Annually we evaluate the discount rate retirement age compensation rate increases expected return

on plan assets and healthcare cost trend rate assumptions related to pension benefit and post-retirement

medical plan We utilize an interest rate yield curve to determine an appropriate discount rate The yield

curve is contructed based on the yields on over 500 high-quality non-callable corporate
bonds with

maturities between zero and thirty years theoretical spot rate curve constructed from this yield curve is

then used to discount the annual benefit cash flows of the Empire pension plan and develop single point

discount rat matching the plans payout structure In evaluating these assumptions many factors are

considered ihcluding current market conditions asset allocations changes in demographics and the views

of leading financial advisors and economists In evaluating the expected retirement age assumption we

consider the retirement ages
of past employees eligible for pension and medical benefits together

with

expectations of future retirement ages It is reasonably possible that changes in these assumptions will

occur in the near term and due to the uncertainties inherent in setting assumptions the effect of such

changes couli be material to the Companys consolidated financial statements roll forward technique is

used to value the year ending pension obligations The roll forward technique values the year-end

obligation by rolling forward the beginning-of-year obligation using the demographic assumptions shown

below The economic assumptions are updated as of the end of the year All of the benefit plans have been

measured as of December 31 2010 consistent with previous years See Note

Pensions

Our noncontributory defined benefit pension plan includes all employees meeting minimum age and

service requirements The benefits are based on years
of service and the employees average annual basic

earnings Annual contributions to the plan are at least equal to the minimum funding requirements of

ERISA We also have supplemental retirement program SERP for designated officers of the

Company which we fund from Company funds as the benefits are paid
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Market conditions in 2009 and 2010 have positively impacted the return on pension plan assets

however plan costs have also increased As result our net pension liability increased $4.5 million and

$0.3 million in 2010 and 2009 respectively This increase was recorded as an increase in regulatory assets

as we believe it is probable of recovery through customer rates based on rate orders received in our

jurisdictions We expect future pension funding commitments to increase to at least the level of our

accrued cost as required by our regulator Our contribution is estimated to be approximately $18.2 million

for 2011 For 2012 we will also be required to fund at least our accrued cost The actual minimum funding

requirements wil be determined based on the results of the actuarial valuations and in the case of 2012
the performance of our pension assets during 2011

Expected benefit payments are as follows in millions

Payments from
ar Payments from Trust Company Funds

2011 8.1 $0.1

2012 8.8 0.1

2013 9.4 0.1

2014 10.1 0.1

2015 10.8 0.1

2016 2020 $62.8 $0.8

Other Postretireinent Benefits OPEB

We provide certain healthcare and life insurance benefits to eligible retired employees their

dependents and survivors through trusts we have established Participants generally become eligible for

retiree healthcare benefits after reaching age 55 with years of service

Market conditions in 2009 and 2010 also had positive impact on the return on OPEB plan assets

however plan costs have increased as well Our net liability increased $4.3 million and $0.4 million in 2010

and 2009 respectively The increase was recorded as an increase in regulatory assets as we believe it is

probable of recovery through customer rates based on rate orders received in our jurisdictions Our

funding policy is to contribute annually an amount at least equal to the actuarial cost of postretirement

benefits We expect to be required to fund approximately $4.9 million in 2011

Estimated benefit payments are as follows in millions

Expected Federal Payments from
\Łar Payments from Trust Subsidy Company Funds

2011 2.4 $0.3 $0.1

2012 2.7 0.3 0.1

2013 3.1 0.4 0.1

2014 3.4 0.4 0.2

2015 3.7 0.5 0.2

2016 2020 $23.4 $3.2 $0.9

108



THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

The following tables set forth the Companys benefit plans projected benefit obligations the fair

value of the plans assets and the funded status in thousands

Reconciliation of Projected Benefit Obligations

Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets

Actual return on plan assets

gainloss

Employer contribution

Benefits paid

Plan participants contribution

Federal subsidy

Fair value of plan assets at end of
year

Pension

2010 2009

$169055 $154377

4887 4612

10115 9876

10946 8092

8163 7902

$186840 $169055

SERP

2010 2009

4825

3681

2845
917

116

$56730

2009

$61950

1830

3907

3881

832

2885
396

$69911

6799

2333

2753
803

371

$50036

Reconciliation of Funded Status

Benefit
obligation

at beginning of year

Service cost

Interest cost

Net actuarial gain/loss

Plan participants contribution

Benefits and expenses paid

Federal subsidy

Benefit obligation at end of year

OPEBSERP

2010 2009

$2575 $2337

70 61

153 148

160 92

2010

$69911

2138

4329

6454

949

63 63 2966
123

$2895 $2575 $80938

OPEB

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of

year

Pension

2010 2009

$107076 92730

2010 2009

$50036 $42483

11740

9700

8163

19748

2500

7902

$120353 $107076

Fair value of plan assets

Projected benefit obligations

Funded statUs

Pension SERP

2010 2009 2010 2009

120353 107076

186840 169055 2895 2575

66487 61979 $2895 $2575

OPEB

2010

56730

80938

$24208

2009

50036

69911

$19875

The
eriployee pension plan accumulated benefit obligation at December 31

presented in the following table in thousands

Pension Benefits

2010 2009

Accumulated benefit obligation $164340 $146826

2010 and 2009 is

SERP

2010 2009

$2431 $1864
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Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of in thousands

Pension SERP OPEB

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Other current liabilities 64 62 121 127

Pension and other postretirement benefit

obligation $66487 $61979 $2831 $2513 $24087 $19748

Net periodic benefit pension cost for 2010 2009 and 2008 some of which is capitalized as

component of labor cost and some of which is deferred as regulatory asset see Note is comprised of

the following components in thousands

Net Periodic Pension Benefit Cost

Pension OPEB

2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008

Service cost 4887 4612 3568 2138 $1830 $1651

Interest cost 10115 9876 9048 4329 3907 3617

Expected return on plan assets 9847 10379 10729 3844 3843 3750
Amortization of prior service cost 531 604 744 1011 1011 1011
Amortization of actuarial loss1 3996 3182 1693 1499 869 511

Net periodic benefit cost 9682 7895 4324 3111 $1752 $1018

Net Periodic Pension Benefit Cost

SERP

2010 2009 2008

Service cost 70 61 57

Interest cost 153 148 137

Expected return on plan assets

Amortization of prior service cost1

Amortization of actuarial loss1 96 103 132

Net periodic benefit cost $311 $304 $318

Amounts are amortized from our regulatory asset originally recorded upon recognizing our net

pension liability on the balance sheet

The tables below
present

the activity in the regulatory asset accounts for the year in thousands

Amount Recognized

Amortization

Beginning Current Year Amortization of Prior Ending
Balance Actuarial of Actuarial Service Balance

Regulatory Assets 12/31/09 Gain/Loss Loss Cost/Credit 12/31/10

Pension $62524 9053 3996 531 $67050

SERP $1218 161 96 $1291
OPEB $11046 5473 1499 1011 $16031

110



THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

The following table presents the amount of net actuarial gains losses transition obligations assets

and prior period service costs in regulatory assets riot yet recognized as component of net periodic

benefit cost It also shows the amounts expected to be recognized in the subsequent year The following

table presents those items for the employee pension plan and other benefits plan at December 31 2010

and the subsequent twelve-month period in thousands

Pension Benefits SERP OPEB

Subsequent Subsequent Subsequent

2010 Period 2010 Period 2010 Period

Net actuarial loss $64005 $5411 $1338 $134 $22658 2001

Prior service cost benefit 3045 532 47 6627 1011

Total $67050 $5943 $1291 $126 $16031 990

The measurement date used to determine the pension and other postretirement benefits is

December 31 The assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation and the periodic costs are as

follows

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation as of December 31

Pension Benefits OPEB

2010 2009 2010 2009

Discount rate 5.50% 6.00% 5.50% 6.00%

Rate of compensation increase 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50%

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine the net benefit cost income as of January

Pension Benefits OPEB

2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008

Discount rate 6.00% 6.30% 6.40% 6.00% 6.30% 6.40%

Expected return on plan assets 8.00% 8.50% 8.50% 8.00% 7.45% 7.45%

Rate of compensation increase 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50%

The expected long-term rate of return assumption was based on historical return and adjusted to

estimate the potential range of returns for the current asset allocation

The assumed 2010 cost trend rate used to measure the expected cost of healthcare benefits and

benefit obligation is 8.0% Each trend rate decreases 0.50% through 2015 to an ultimate rate of 5.0% in

2015 and subsequent years

The healthcare cost trend rate affects projected benefit obligations 1% change in assumed

healthcare cost growth rates would have the following effects in thousands

1% Increase 1% Decrease

Effect on total of service and interest cost 1167 925
Effect on post-retirement benefit obligation $11838 $9617
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Fair value measurements of plan assets

See Note 15 1or discussion of fair value measurements The Company believes that it is appropriate

for the pension fund to assume moderate degree of investment risk with diversification of fund assets

among different classes or types of investments as appropriate as means of reducing risk Although the

pension fund can and will tolerate some variability in market value and rates of return in order to achieve

greater long-term rate of return primary emphasis is placed on preserving the pension funds principal

Full discretion is delegated to the investment managers to carry out investment policy within stated

guidelines The guidelines and performance of the managers are monitored by the Companys Investment

Committee

Pension

We utilize fair value in determining the market-related values for the different classes of our pension

plan assets The market-related value is determined based on smoothing actual asset returns in excess of

or less than expected return on assets over 5-year period

The Companys primary investment goals for pension fund assets are based around four basic

elements

Preserve capital

Maintain minimum level of return equal to the actuarial interest rate assumption

Maintain high degree of flexibility and low degree of volatility and

Maximize the rate of return while operating within the confines of prudence and safety

The target allocations for plan assets are 60% 80% equity securities 20% 40% debt securities and

0% 15% in all other
types

of investments

The following fair value hierarchy table
presents

information about the pension fund assets measured

at fair value as of December 31 2010 in thousands

Fair Value Measurements as of December 31 2010

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable Percentage

Assets Inputs Inputs of Plan

Level Level Level Total Assets

Short term investments $1387 1387 1.1%

Equity securities

U.S equity 47797 47797 39.7%

International equity 15876 15876 13.2%

Fixed income 32955 32955 27.4%

Other types of investments

Equity long/short hedge funds 22338 22338 18.6%

$63673 $34342 $22338 $120353 100.0%
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Fair Value Measurements as of December 31 2009

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant

Markets for Other

Identical Observable

Assets Inputs

Level Level

965

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservable Inputs Level December 31

Beginning Balance January

Actual return on plan assets

Relating to assets still held at the reporting date

Relating to assets sold during the period

Purchases sales and settlements net

Transfers into and out of Level

Ending Balance December 31

2010

Equity long/short

hedge funds

$23515

1177

$22338

2009

Equity long/short

hedge funds

$16169

2346

5000

$23515

Permissible Investments

Listed below are the investment vehicles specifically permitted

Permissible Investments

Equity Oriented

Common Stocks

Preferred Stocks

Convertible Preferred Stocks

Convertible Bonds

Covered Options

Hedged Equity Funds of Funds

Fixed Income Oriented and Real Estate

Bonds

GICs BICs

Corporate Bonds minimum quality rating

of Baa or BBB
Cash-Equivalent Securities e.g U.S

T-Bills Commercial Paper etc
Certificates of Deposit in institutions with

FDIC/FSLIC protection

Money Market Funds Bank STIF Funds

Real Estate Publicly Traded

The above assets can be held in commingled mutual funds as well as privately managed separate

accounts

Short term investments

Equity securities

U.S equity

International equity

Fixed income

Other types of investments

Equity loig/short
hedge funds

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level

Percentage

of Plan

Total Assets

965 0.9%

40069

13053

29474

$53122 $30439

40069

13053

29474

23515

$23515

37.4%

12.2%

27.5%

22.0%

100.0%

23515

$107076
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Those investments prohibited by the Investment Committee without prior approval are

Prohibited Investments Requiring Pre-approval

Privately Placed Securities

Commodities Futures

Securities of Empire District

Derivatives

OPEB

Warrants

Short Sales

Index Options

The Compartys primary investment goals for the component of the OPEB fund used to pay current

benefits are liquidity and safety The primary investment goals for the component of the OPEB fund used

to accumulate funds to provide for payment of benefits after the retirement of plan participants are

preservation of the fund with reasonable rate of return The target allocations for plan assets are

0% 10% cash and cash equivalents 40% 60% fixed income securities and 40% 60% in equity The

following fair value hierarchy table presents

value as of December 31 2010

Fair Value Measurements as of December 31 2010

Significant

Other
Observable

Inputs

Level

4091

15156

1496

420

17592

1274

12556

36904 19667

4091

15156

420

1496

17592

1274

12556

56571

248

$56819

Percentage

of Plan

Assets

7.0%

7.2%

26.7%

0.7%

2.6%

31.0%

2.2%

22.1%

information about the OPEB fund assets measured at fair

Quoted Prices

in Active

Markets for

Identical

Assets

Level

3986

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level

Cash equivalents

Fixed income

U.S governmertt issues

U.S corporate issues

Foreign issues

Mutual funds fixed income

Equity securities

U.S common stocks

Foreign Stocks

Mutual funds --- equity

Accrued interest dividends

Total

3986

0.5%

100%
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Fair Value Measurements as of December 31 2009

Equity

Common Stocks

Preferred Stocks

Fixed Income

Cash-Equivalent Securities with maturity

of one-year or less

Bonds

Money Market Funds Bank STIF Funds

Certificates of Deposit in institutions with

FDIC protection

Corporate Bonds minimum quality rating

of

The above assets can be held in commingled mutual funds as well as privately managed separate

accounts

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable

Assets Inputs Inputs

Level Level Level

$1179Cash equivalents

Fixed income

U.S government issues

U.S corporate issues

Foreign issues

Mutual funds fixed income

Equity securities

U.S common stocks

Foreign Stocks

Mutual fuids equity

Accrued interest dividends

Total

$1179

9307

12969

429

145

15243

335

10170
_______

27072
_______

Percentage

of Plan

Assets

2.4%

18.6%

25.9%

0.9%

0.3%

30.5%

0.7%

20.3%

0.4%

100%

9307

12969

429

145

15243

335

10170

49777

259

$50036

_______
22705

The Companys guideline in the management of this fund is to endorse long-term approach but not

expose the fund to levels of volatility that might adversely affect the value of the assets Full discretion is

delegated to the investment managers to carry out investment policy within stated guidelines The

guidelines and performance of the managers are monitored by the Companys Investment Committee

Permissible Investments

Listed below are the investment vehicles specifically permitted

Permissible Investments
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Listed below are those investments prohibited by the Investment Committee

Prohibited Investments

Privately Placed Securities

Commodities Futures

Securities of Empire District

Derivatives

Instrumertalities in violation of the

Prohibited Transactions Standards of

ERISA

Income Taxes

Margin Transactions

Short Sales

Index Options

Real Estate and Real Property

Restricted Stock

Income tax expense components for the years ended December 31 are as follows in thousands

Current income taxes

2010 2009 2008

Federal 7713 3987 $12067

State 1057 572 1667

TOTAL 8770 4559 13734

Deferred income taxes

Federal 17942 13854 5179

State 4349 1973 738

TOTAL 22291 15827 5917

Investment tax credit amortization 528 504 525

TOTAL INCOME TAX EXPENSE $30533 $19882 $19126

Deferred Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected on our consolidated balance sheet as follows in

thousands

December 31

Deferred Income Taxes 2010

Non-cu.rrent deferred tax liabilities net 212003
________

NET DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES $212003
_____

2009

194315

$194315
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Temporary differences related to deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are summarized as

follows in thousands

December 31

Temporary Differences 2010 2009

Deferred tax assets

Disallowed plant costs 1127 1217

Gains on hedging transactions 1518 1583

Plant related basis differences 21105 19130

Regulated liabilities related to income taxes 13702 14297

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits 1588 14558

Carry forward of income tax credit 12596

Income received- deferred 10044

Other 2262 2301

Total deferred tax assets 63942 53086

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation amortization and other plant related

differences $216685 $191930

Regulated assets related to income 41107 38327

Loss on reacquired debt 3996 4496

iccumulated comprehensive income 929

Deferred ice storm expenses 2957 4448

Deferred fuel costs 1965

Amortization of intangibles 4850 3773

Other 4385 3498

Total deferred tax liabilities 275945 247401

NET DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES $212003 $194315

Effective Income Tax Rates

The difference between income taxes and amounts calculated by applying the federal legal rate to

income tax expense for continuing operations were as follows

Effective Income Tax Rates 2010 2009 2008

Federal statltory income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

Increase in income tax rate resulting from

State income tax net of federal benefit 3.1 3.1 3.1

Investmert tax credit amortization 0.7 0.8 0.9
Effect of ratemaking on property related differences 0.8 3.6 3.5
Effect of Medicare part changes 2.7

Other 1.2 1.2

Effective income tax rate 39.2% 32.5% 32.5%
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Unrecognized Tax Benefits 2010 2009 2008

Unrecognized tax benefits January 906000 2176000 328000

The gross amounts of increases in unrecognized tax benefits

taken during prior periods 1957000

The gross amounts of decreases in unrecognized tax benefits

taken during the period relating to positions accepted by

taxing authorities 109000
Reductions to unrecognized tax benefits as result of lapse of

the applicable statute of limitations 547000 1270000

Unrecognized tax benefits December 31 359000 906000 $2176000

If unrecognized tax benefits are recognized the effective tax rate would change from 39.2% to 39.0%

based on recognizing approximately $0.1 million of unrecognized benefits The Company recognized

interest or penalties of $0.1 million and $0.1 million during 2010 and 2009 respectively related to

unrecognized tax benefits in other expenses and on the balance sheet The Company does not expect any

significant changes to our unrecognized tax benefits over the next twelve months

December 2009 award from an arbitration panel ordered KCPL to renegotiate with the IRS

previous $125 muLlion advanced coal investment tax credit granted to our latan plant The IRS executed

revised memorandum of understanding MOU on September 2010 which granted us our share

$17.7 millionof advanced coal investment tax credits in accordance with the arbitration panels order We

utilized $5.1 milliLon of these credits to reduce our 2010 tax payments and 2010 tax liability and these are

reflected as part
of an income tax receivable in accounts receivable other The tax credit will have no

significant income statement impact as the credits will flow to our customers as we amortize the tax credits

over the life of the plant

Note describes $26.6 million payment received from the SWPA see Other Noncurrent Liabilities

of Note which has been deferred for book purposes and treated as noncurrent liability We have

increased our current tax liability by $10.0 million in recognition that the $26.6 million payment may be

considered taxable income in 2010 We may defer recognition of the income for tax purposes if we

determine the internal revenue code allows such treatment based on the facts and circumstances of the

transaction

On March 23 2010 the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act was enacted This legislation

includes provision that reduces the deductibility for income tax purposes of retiree healthcare costs to

the extent an employer receives federal subsidies Companies receive the subsidy when they provide retiree

prescription
benefits at least equivalent to Medicare Part coverage in their postretirement healthcare

plan Although the elimination of this tax benefit does not take effect until 2013 this change required us to

recognize the full accounting impact in our financial statements in the period in which the legislation was

enacted As result in the first quarter of 2010 we recorded one-time non-cash charge of approximately

$2.1 million to provision
for income taxes to reflect the impact of this change Our 2010 effective tax rate

increased as noted in the statutory rate reconciliation above based on the change

10 Commonly Owned Facilities

We own 12% undivided interest in the coal-fired Units No and No at the latan Generating

Station located near Weston Missouri 35 miles northwest of Kansas City Missouri as well as 3%

118



THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

interest in the site and 12% interest in certain common facilities At December 31 2010 and 2009 our

property plant and equipment accounts included the amounts in the following chart in millions

latan 2010 2009

Cost of ownership in plant in service $353.9 $134.6

Accumulated Depreciation 70.6 36.6

Expenditures1 $18.2 9.9

Operating maintenance and fuel expenditures excluding depreciation expense

We are entitled to 12% of each units available capacity and are obligated to pay for that percentage of

the operating costs of the units KCPL and KCPL Greater Missouri Operations Co formerly Aquila

own 70% and 18% respectively of Unit and 54% and 18% respectively of Unit KCPL operates
the

units for the joint owners In 2010 we added $0.1 million to plant in service associated with latan

environmental upgrades latan met its in-service criteria on August 26 2010 and entered commercial

operation on December 31 2010 We added $212.2 million to plant
in service associated with latan

During 2010 we also placed in service approximately $2.9 million of common property expenditures

associated with this construction project

We and Westar Generating mc WGI subsidiary of Westar Energy Inc share joint ownership

of 500-megawatt combined cycle unit at the State Line Power Plant the State Line Combined Cycle

Unit We are responsible for the operation and maintenance of the State Line Combined Cycle Unit and

are entitled to 60% of the available capacity and are responsible for approximately 60% of its costs At

December 31 2010 and 2009 our property plant and equipment accounts include the amounts in the

following chart in millions

State Line Combined Cycle Unit 2010 2009

Cost of ownership in plant in service $164.1 $164.0

Accumulated Depreciation 44.9 40.1

Expenditures 59.6 41.9

Operating maintenance and fuel expenditures excluding depreciation expense

We own 7.52% undivided interest in the coal-fired Plum Point Energy Station located near Osceola

Arkansas We are entitled to 7.52% of the stations capacity and are obligated to pay for that percentage

of the statiotis operating costs The Plum Point Energy Station met its in-service criteria on August 13

2010 and entered commercial operation on September 2010 At December 31 2010 and 2009 our

property plant and equipment accounts included the amounts in the following chart in millions

Plum Point Energy Station 2010 2009

Cot of ownership in plant in service $110.2

AcØumulated Depreciation 0.7

Expenditures1 3.4

Operating maintenance and fuel expenditures excluding depreciation expense

All of the dollar amounts listed above represent our ownership share of costs Each participant must

provide their own financing
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11 Commitments and Contingencies

We are party to various claims and legal proceedings arising out of the normal course of our

business Management regularly analyzes this information and has provided accruals for any liabilities in

accordance with the guidelines presented in the ASC on accounting for contingencies In the opinion of

management it is not probable given the companys defenses that the ultimate outcome of these claims

and lawsuits will have material adverse effect upon our financial condition or results of operations or

cash flows

On May 22 2009 suit was filed in the Circuit Court of Platte County Missouri by several individuals

and Class Representatives alleging damages to land structures equipment and devastation of Plaintiff

crops due to inappropriate management of the levee system around latan of which we are 12% owner

No procedural schedule has been established and we are unable to predict the outcome of the law suit

Coal Natural Gas and fransportation Contracts

Firm physical gas Coal and coal

and transportation transportation

contracts contracts

in millions

January 2011 through December 31 2011 $38.3 $40.1

January 2012 through December 31 2013 56.9 53.4

January 2014 through December 31 2015 29.4 33.5

January 2016 and beyond 25.8 14.2

We have entered into long and short-term agreements to purchase coal and natural gas for our energy

supply and natural gas operations Under these contracts the natural gas supplies are divided into firm

physical commitments and derivatives that are used to hedge future purchases In the event that this gas

cannot be used at our plants the gas would be liquidated at market price The firm physical gas and

transportation commitments are detailed in the table above

We have coal supply agreements and transportation contracts in place to provide for the delivery of

coal to the plants These contracts are written with Force Majeure clauses that enable us to reduce

tonnages or cease shipments under certain circumstances or events These include mechanical or electrical

maintenance items acts of God war or insurrection strikes weather and other disrupting events This

reduces the risk we have for not taking the minimum requirements of fuel under the contracts Due to

damage incurred in March 2009 to our Asbury rail car unloading facility we issued Force Majeure notices

to our western coal suppliers and to the railroads suspending western coal shipments This relieved us of

our contractual obligations to receive shipments of coal until the railroad unloading facility was repaired

and put back in service May 13 2009 We entered into contract in the second quarter of 2010 to transport

coal beginning June 30 2010 which replaced contract that expired June 29 2010 The contract term is

for six and one-half years and includes minimum payments totaling approximately $91.9 million The

minimum requirements for our coal and coal transportation contracts are detailed in the table above

Purchased Power

We currently supplement our on-system generating capacity with purchases of capacity and energy

from other utilities in order to meet the demands of our customers and the capacity margins applicable to

us under current pooling agreements and National Electric Reliability Council NERC rules
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Our long-term contract with Westar Energy for the purchase of capacity and energy expired on

May 31 2010

We have long term 30 year agreement for the purchase of capacity
from the Plum Point Energy

Station new 665-megawatt coal-fired generating facility built by Plum Point Energy Associates PPEA

near Osceola Arkansas The Plum Point Energy Station met its in-service criteria on August 13 2010 and

we began receiving purchased power on September 2010 We have the option to purchase an undivided

ownership interest in the 50 megawatts covered by the purchased power agreement in 2015 Commitments

under this cOntract total approximately $45.0 million through August 30 2015

On June 25 2007 we entered into 20-year purchased power agreement with Cloud County

Windfarm LLC owned by Horizon Wind Energy Houston Texas Pursuant to the terms of the agreement

we will purchase all of the output from the approximately 105-megawatt Phase Meridian Way Wind Farm

located in Cloud County Kansas We do not own any portion of the windfarm Annual payments are

contingent upon output of the facility and can range from zero to maximum of approximately

$14.6 million based on 20-year average cost

On December 10 2004 we entered into 20-year contract with Elk River Windfarm LLC to purchase

all of the energy generated at the 150-megawatt Elk River Windfarm located in Butler County Kansas We

do not own any portion of the windfarm Payments for wind energy from the Elk River Windfarm are

contingent upon output of the facility Annual payments can run from zero to maximum of approximately

$16.9 million based on 20-year average cost

Payments for these agreements are recorded as purchased power expenses and because of the

contingent nature of these payments are not included in the operating lease obligations shown below

New Construction

On March 14 2006 we entered into contracts to purchase 50 megawatt 7.52% undivided interest in

the Plum Point Energy Station described above The estimated cost was approximately $88.0 million

excluding allowance for funds used during construction AFUDC which totaled $16.5 million Our share

of the Plum Point costs through December 31 2010 was $86.9 million plus AFUDC of $16.5 million The

Plum Point Energy Station met its in-service criteria on August 13 2010 Plum Point entered commercial

operation on September 2010

We also purchased an undivided ownership interest in the coal-fired latan generating facility

operated by Kansas City Power Light Company KCPL and located at the site of the existing latan

Generating Station latan near Weston Missouri We own 12% or approximately 102 megawatts of the

850-megawatt unit which met its in-service criteria on August 26 2010 as reported by KCPL and

entered commercial operation on December 31 2010 Our share of the latan construction costs are

expected to be in range of approximately $237 million to $240 million excluding AFUDC which totaled

$19.1 million Our share of the latan costs through December 31 2010 was $228.9 million plus AFUDC

of $19.1 million Current projections estimate $11.1 million being spent
in 2011 for our share of expected

expenditures for latan

Recovery of construction costs

We filed several rate cases primarily to recover the costs of the completed plants described above

These are described below

stipulated agreement in our 2009 Missouri electric rate case was filed on May 12 2010 calling for

an annual increase of $46.8 million provided the Plum Point Generating Station met its in-service criteria
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by August 15 2010 The Plum Point Generating Station completed its in-service criteria testing on

August 12 2010 with an in-service date of August 13 2010 Rates went into effect on September 10 2010

On September 28 2010 we filed rate increase request with the MPSC for an annual increase in base

rates for our Missouri electric customers in the amount of $36.5 million or 9.2% to recover the latan

costs and other cost of service items not included in the recently-completed Missouri rate case latan was

placed in-service on August 26 2010

These construction costs from these facilities will be subject to prudency reviews by our regulators

stipulated agreement in our current Kansas rate case was filed on May 2010 and approved by the

KCC on June 25 2010 calling for $2.8 million or 12.4% increase in base rates effective July 2010

On August 30 2010 we were granted two-phase Capital Reliability Rider CRR by the Oklahoma

Corporation Commission 0CC with the first phase effective September 2010 In total the CRR
revenue has been specifically limited by the 0CC to an overall annual revenue increase of $2.6 million or

27.67% increase We will file general rate case within six months of the commercial operation date of

latan to replace the CRR with permanent rates

On August 2010 we filed rate increase request with the Arkansas Public Service Commission

APSC for an annual increase in base rates for our Arkansas electric customers in the amount of

$3.2 million or 27.3%

Leases

We have purchased power agreements with Cloud County Wind Farm and Elk River Wind Farm
which are considered operating leases for GAAP purposes Details of these agreements are disclosed in

the Purchased Power section of this note

We also currently have short-term operating leases for two unit trains to meet coal delivery demands
for garage and office facilities for our electric segment and for six service center properties related to our

gas segment As of December 31 2010 EDG purchased these six service center properties In addition we
have capital leases for certain office equipment and 108 railcars to provide coal delivery for our ownership

and purchased power agreement shares of the Plum Point generating facility

The gross amount of assets recorded under capital leases total $6.9 million at December 31 2010

Our lease obligations over the next five years are as follows in thousands

Capital Operating
Capital Leases Leases Leases

2011 596 984

2012 589 992

2013 589 752

2014 547 720

2015 546 720

Thereafter 5193 2533

Total minimum payments 8060 6701
Less amount representing interest 2798

Present value of net minimum lease payments $5262 $6701
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Expenses incurred related to operating leases were $0.8 million $1.4 million and $1.5 million for 2010

2009 and 2008 respectively excluding payments for wind generated purchased power agreements The

accumulated amount of amortization for our capital leases was $0.6 million and $0.4 million at

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Environmental Matters

We are subject to various federal state and local laws and regulations with respect to air and water

quality and with respect to hazardous and toxic materials and hazardous and other wastes including their

identification transportation disposal record-keeping and reporting as well as remediation of

contaminated sites and other environmental matters We believe that our operations are in material

compliance with present environmental laws and regulations Environmental requirements have changed

frequently and become more stringent over time We expect
this trend to continue While we are not in

position to accurately estimate compliance costs for any new requirements we expect any such costs to be

material althpugh recoverable in rates

Electric Segment

Air

The Federal Clean Air Act CAA and comparable state laws regulate air emissions from stationary

sources such as electric power plants through permitting and/or emission control and related requirements

These requirements include maximum emission limits on our facilities for sulfur dioxide SO2 particulate

matter and nitrogen oxides NOx In the future they are also likely to include limits on emissions of

mercury other hazardous air pollutants HAPs and so-called greenhouse gases GHG such as carbon

dioxide C02 and methane

Permits

Under the CAA we have obtained and renewed as necessary site operating permits which are valid

for five years for each of our plants

SO Emissions

The CAA regulates the amount of SO2 an affected unit can emit through among other things cap

and trade program Each existing affected unit has been allocated specific number of emission

allowances by the U.S Environmental Protection Agency EPA each of which allows the holder to emit

one ton of SO2 Covered utilities such as Empire must have emission allowances equal to the number of

tons of SO2 emitted during given year by each of their affected units Allowances in excess of the annual

emissions are banked for future use

In 2010 our SO2 emissions exceeded the annual allocations This deficit was covered by our banked

allowances When our SO2 allowance bank is exhausted currently estimated to be early 2012 we will need

to purchase additional SO2 allowances or build Flue Gas Desulphurization FGD scrubber system at our

Asbury Plant Based on current and projected SO2 allowance prices and high-level estimated FGD

scrubber construction costs discussed below and absent other more stringent regulatory requirements

such as the proposed Clean Air Transport Rule CATR and Mercury and Electric Steam Generating Unit

EGU Maximum Achievable Control Technology MACT discussed below it will likely be more

economical for us to purchase SO2 allowances than to build scrubber at the Asbury Plant If we were to

purchase SO2 allowances we would expect their cost to be fully recoverable in our rates
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NOx Emissions

The CAA regulates the amount of NOx an affected unit can emit Each of our affected units is in

compliance with the NOx limits applicable to it as currently operated

Ozone also called ground level smog is formed by the mixing of NOx and Volatile Organic

Compounds in the presence of sunlight On Januaiy 2010 the EPA proposed to lower the primary
National Ambient Air Quality Standard NAAQS for ozone designed to protect public health and to set

secondary NAAQS for ozone designed to protect sensitive vegetation and ecosystems The EPA is

expected to issue final standards by July 31 2011 Once final standards are set states will be required to

develop State Implementation Plans SIPs which reflect these standards

Clean Air Interstate Rule CAIR and Clean Air Transport Rule CATR

In 2005 the EPA promulgated CAIR under the CAA AJR generally calls for fossil-fueled power

plants greater than 25 megawatts to reduce emission levels of SO2 and NOx in 28 states including

Missouri where our Asbury Energy Center State Line and Jatan Units No and No are located and

Arkansas where the Plum Point Energy Station is located Kansas was not included in CAIR and our

Riverton Plant was not affected

In 2008 the U.S Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia vacated CAIR and remanded it back

to EPA for further consideration but also stayed its vacatur As result CAIR became effective for NOx
on January 2009 and for SO2 on January 2010

The CAIR requires covered states including Missouri and Arkansas to develop SIPs to comply with

specific NOx and SO2 state-wide annual budgets Missouri and Arkansas have approved SIPs and based on

these SIPs we believe we will have excess NOx allowances for 2010 which will be banked for future use

However SO2 allowances must be utilized at 21 ratio for our Missouri units as compared to our

non-AIR Kansas units beginning in 2010 As result based on current SO2 allowance usage projections

we expect to exhaust our banked allowances by early 2012 and as discussed above will need to purchase

additional SO2 allowances or build scrubber at our Asbuiy Plant

In order to meet CAIR requirements and as requirement for the air permit for latan Selective

Catalytic Reduction system SCR FGD scrubber system and baghouse were installed at our joint-owner

latan plant and an SCR was installed at our Asbury plant in 2008

On July 2010 the EPA published proposed CAIR replacement rule entitled the Clean Air

Transport Rule ICATR As proposed the CATR would include Kansas under the annual and ozone

season NOx and the SO2 programs Missouri would be dropped from the ozone season NOx program while

Arkansas would remain in the ozone season NOx program The beginning date of regulation for the

proposed CATR is 2012 The final CATR is expected to be issued by the EPA in July 2011 The proposed

rule requires 71% reduction in SO2 and 52% reduction in NOx from 2005 levels by 2014 We do not

expect significant impacts on our operations because of new NOx requirements in CATR We cannot

accurately estimate the cost of any final regulation or predict its precise timing and its impact on our

operations at this time To address SO2 compliance plans range from purchasing additional emission

allowances to installing FGD scrubber at our Asbury facility see estimated construction costs below and

potential forced retirement or conversion to natural gas of our coal-fired Riverton assets We expect

compliance costs to be recoverable in our rates
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Mercur and electric Steam Generating Unit EGU Maximum Achievable Control Technology MA CT

In 2005 the EPA issued the Clean Air Mercuiy Rule CAMR under the CAA It set limits on

mercury emisions by power plants and created market-based cap and trade system expected to reduce

nationwide mercury emissions in two phases New mercury emission limits for Phase were to go into

effect January 2010 On February 2008 the U.S Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia

vacated CAMR This decision was appealed to the U.S Supreme Court which denied the appeal on

February 23 2009

Based on CAMR we installed mercury analyzer at Asbury and installed two mercury analyzers at

Riverton in 008 We continue to operate the mercury analyzers at Riverton in accordance with the

appropriate state environmental regulators guidance

The EPA issued an Information Collection Request ICR for national emission standards for HAP5

including mercury
for coal and oil-fired electric steam generating units on December 24 2009 This ICR

included our latan Asbury and Riverton plants We completed the ICR for Asbury and Riverton and

submitted thm to the EPA on March 31 2010 KCPL completed and submitted the latan ICR The EPA

ICR is intended for use in developing regulations under Section 112r of the CAA maximum achievable

emission standards for the control of the emission of HAPs including mercury The EPA is under court

order to issue proposed EGU MACT regulation by March 16 2011 and to finalize that regulation by

November 16 2011 Absent successful legal challenge or changes to applicable legislation we expect

EGU MACT regulation of HAPS to ultimately require scrubber baghouse and powder activated carbon

injection system to be added to our Asbury facility at cost ranging from $120 million to $180 million and

to force retirement of our Riverton coal-fired assets or conversion to natural gas We expect compliance

costs to be recoverable in our rates

Green House Gases

Our coal and gas plants vehicles and other facilities including EDG our gas segment emit CO2

and/or other GHGs which are measured in Carbon Dioxide Equivalents CO2e

On September 22 2009 the EPA issued the final Mandatory Reporting of Greenhouse Gases Rule

under the CAA which requires power generating and certain other facilities including EDG that equal or

exceed an emission threshold of 25000 metric tons of CO2e to report GHGs to the EPA annually

commencing in March 2011 We will report our GHG emissions as required to the EPA in 2011 for EDE

EDG is not required to submit its GHG emissions until 2012

On December 2009 responding to 2007 US Supreme Court decision that determined that GHGs

constitute air pollutants under the CAA the EPA issued its final finding that GHGs threaten both the

public health and the public welfare This endangerment finding does not itself trigger any EPA

regulations but is necessary predicate for the EPA to proceed with regulations to control GHGs On

May 13 2010 the EPA issued under the CAA its final Prevention of Significant Deterioration and Title

Greenhouse Gas Tailoring Rule to address GHG emissions from stationary sources which became

effective January 2011 The rule sets thresholds for GHG emissions that determine when permits will be

required under the New Source Review Prevention of Significant Deterioration PSD and title

Operating Prmit programs applicable to new and existing power plants and other covered sources Under

the PSD program required controls for GHG emissions would be determined based on Best Available

Control Technology BACT EPA issued BACT permitting guidance document on November 11 2010

Missouri and Kansas have been delegated GHG permitting authority by EPA Several parties
have filed

petitions with the EPA and lawsuits challenging the EPAs Endangerment Finding and the Tailoring Rule
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In addition on December 23 2010 the EPA entered into an agreement with number of state and

environmental petitioners to settle litigation pending in the U.S Court of Appeals for the District of

Columbia Circuit that requires EPA to propose New Source Performance Standards NSPS for GHGs for

fossil-fuel fired steam generating units by July 26 2011 and to issue final GHG NSPS standards by May 26
2012

Litigation aimed at controlling GHG emissions has also increased For example recently the U.S
Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit has ruled that certain public and private parties can pursue claims

that GHG emissions constitute public nuisance and can seek to recover alleged related damages The
U.S Supreme Court has agreed to review this decision in the spring of 2011 In contrast in May 2010 the

full U.S Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit took action which left standing the lower courts dismissal

of nuisance claim similar to those upheld by the Second Circuit which as noted above is now before the

U.S Supreme Court

variety of proposals have been and are likely to continue to be considered by Congress to reduce

GHGs Proposals are also being considered in the House and Senate that would delay limit or eliminate

EPAs authority to regulate GHGs At this time it is not possible to predict what legislation if any will

ultimately emerge from Congress regarding control of GHGs

Certain states have taken steps to develop cap and trade programs and/or other regulatory systems

which may be more stringent than federal requirements For example Kansas is participating member of

the Midwestern Greenhouse Gas Reduction Accord MGGRA one purpose of which is to develop
market-based cap and trade mechanism to reduce GHG emissions The MGGRA has announced
however that it will not issue C02e regulatory system pending federal legislative developments Missouri

is not participant in the MGGRA

The ultimate cost of any GHG regulations cannot be determined at this time However we would

expect the cost of complying with any such regulations to be recoverable in our rates

Water Discharges

We operate under the Kansas and Missouri Water Pollution Plans that were implemented in response
to the Federal Clean Water Act CWA Our plants are in material compliance with applicable regulations

and have received necessary discharge permits

The Riverton Plant is affected by regulations for Cooling Water Intake Structures issued by the EPA
under the CWA Section 316b Phase II The regulations became final on February 16 2004 In

accordance with these regulations we submit sampling and summary reports to the Kansas Department of

Health and Environment KDHE which indicate that the effect of the cooling water intake structure on

Empire Lakes aquatic life is insignificant In 2007 the United States Court of Appeals for the Second

Circuit remanded key sections of these CWA regulations to the EPA As result the EPA suspended the

regulations and is expected to revise and re-propose the regulations by March 2011 and to finalize them by
November 2011

Surface Impoundments

We own and maintain coal ash impoundments located at our Riverton and Asbuty Power Plants

Additionally we own 12 percent interest in coal ash impoundment at the latan Generating Station The
EPA has announced its intention to revise its wastewater effluent limitation guidelines under the CWA for

coal-fired power plants before 2012 Once the new guidelines are issued the EPA and states would

incorporate the new standards into wastewater discharge permits including permits for coal ash
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impoundments We do not have sufficient information at this time to estimate additional costs that might

result from any new standards All of the coal ash impoundments are compliant with existing state and

federal regulations

On June 21 2010 the EPA proposed new regulation pursuant to the Federal Resource Conservation

and Recovery Act RCRA governing the management and storage of Coal Combustion Residuals CCR
In the propsal the EPA presents two options regulation

of CCR under RCRA subtitle as

hazardous waste and regulation of CCR under RCRA subtitle as non-hazardous waste It is

anticipated that the final regulation will be published in 2011 We expect compliance with either option as

proposed to result in the need to construct new landfill and the conversion of existing ash handling from

wet to dry systems at potential cost of up to $15 million This preliminary estimate will likely change

based on the final CCR rule and design requirements reach final forms We expect resulting costs to be

recoverable in our rates

On September 23 2010 and on November 2010 representatives from GET Consultants on behalf of

the EPA conducted on-site inspections of our Riverton and Asbury coal ash impoundments respectively

The consultants performed visual inspection of the impoundments to assess the structural integrity of the

berms surrounding the impoundments requested documentation related to construction of the

impoundments and reviewed recently completed engineering evaluations of the impoundments and their

structural integrity We have received preliminary
draft reports on the Asbury and the Riverton

impoundments The reports are currently under final review by the EPA and our comments have been

requested We are not currently in position to estimate what additional actions if any will result from the

EPAs inspections

Renewable Energy

We currently purchase more than 15% of our energy through long-term Purchased Power Agreements

PPAs with Elk River Windfarm LLC and Cloud County Windfarm LLC Through these PPAs we

generate about 900000 renewable energy certificates RECs each year REC represents one

megawatt-hour of renewable energy that has been delivered into the bulk power grid and unbundles the

renewable attributes from the associated energy This unbundling is important because it cannot be

determined where the renewable energy is ultimately delivered once it enters the bulk power grid As

result RECs provide an avenue for renewable energy tracking and compliance purposes

On November 2008 Missouri voters approved the Clean Energy Initiative Proposition This

initiative requires us and other investor-owned utilities in Missouri to generate or purchase electricity from

renewable energy sources such as solar wind biomass and hydro power at the rate of at least 2% of retail

sales by 2011 increasing to at least 15% by 2021 Two percent of this amount must be solar We believe we

are exempted from the solar requirement challenge to our exemption brought by two of our customers

and Power Source Solar Inc is pending in the Missouri Western District Court of Appeals In July 2010

the MPSC submitted to the Missouri secretary
of states office its rule for the renewable energy mandate

We are awaiting action from the Missouri secretary
of state but believe we are in compliance with the law

Kansas established renewable portfolio standard RPS in May 2009 which was approved October 27

2010 effective November 19 2010 Its final rulemaking was released in November 2010 It requires 10% of

our Kansas retail customer peak capacity requirements to be sourced from renewables by 2011 15% by

2016 and 20% by 2020 In addition there are several proposals currently before the U.S Congress to

adopt nationwide RPS

We have been selling the majority of our RECs and plan to continue to sell all or portion of them

moving forward As result of these REC sales we cannot claim the underlying energy is renewable Once
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REC has been claimed or retired it cannot be used for any other purpose Over time we expect to retain

sufficient amount of RECs to meet any current or future RPS

Gas Segment

The acquisition of our natural gas distribution assets in June 2006 involved the potential future

remediation of two former manufactured gas plant FMGP sites FMGP Site in Chillicothe Missouri

is listed in the MDNR Registry of Confirmed Abandoned or Uncontrolled Hazardous Waste Disposal

Sites in Missouri No remediation of this site is expected to be required in the near term We have received

letter stating no further action is required from the MDNR with respect to FMPG Site in Marshall

Missouri We have incurred $0.2 million in remediation costs and estimate further remediation costs at

these two sites to be minimal

12 Segment Information

We operate our business as three segments electric gas and other As part of our electric segment we
also provide water service to three towns in Missouri The Empire District Gas Company is our wholly
owned subsidiary formed to provide gas distribution service in Missouri The other segment consists of our

non-regulated businesses subsidiary for our fiber optics business

The tables below present statement of income information balance sheet information and capital

expenditures of our business segments

For the year ended December 31

2010

Electric Gas Other Eliminations Total

Statement of Income Information

Revenues $484715 $50885 $6268 $592 $541276

Depreciation and amortization 53983 3032 1641 58656
Federal and state income taxes 27925 1620 988 30533
Operating income 72528 6327 1640 80495
Interest income 198 403 425 176

Interest expense 38798 3941 33 425 42347
Income from AFUDC debt and equity 10155 19 10174

Income from continuing operations 43187 2602 $1607 47396

Capital Expenditures $100146 5242 $2769 $108157
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December 31 2009

Electric Gas1 Other Eliminations

Balance Sheet Information

Total assets $1759415 $134355 $21907 $75831

Includes goodwill of $39492 at December 31 2010 and 2009

2009

Electric Gas Other Eliminations Total

$434897 $57314 $5562 $605 $497168

48036 2015 1443 51494

18484 572 826 19882

68414 4634 1447 74495

225 403 411 217

43173 3959 57 411 46778

14131 14133

39078 874 $1344 41296

$145287 2256 $1261 $148804

Statement of Income Information

Revenues

Depreciation and amortization

Federal and state income taxes

Operating income

Interest income

Interest expense

Income from AFUDC debt and equity

Income from continuing operations

Capital Expenditures

Statement of Income Information

Revenues

Depreciation and amortization

Federal and state income taxes

Operating income

Interest income

Interest expense

Income from AFUDC debt and equity

Income from continuing operations

Capital Expenditures

Balance Sheet Information

Total assets

2008

Electric Gas Other Eliminations Total

$448248 $65438 $5005 $528 $518163

50305 1940 1317 53562

17764 987 375 19126

64426 5420 1166 71012

1162 390 495 1057

39627 3962 204 495 43298

12508 10 12518

37436 1677 609 39722

$202295 2139 $1952 $206386

December 31 2010

Electric Gas Other Eliminations Total

$1837910 $139532 $23163 $79294 $1921311

Total

$1839846
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13 Selected Quarterly Information Unaudited

The following is summary of quarterly
results for 2010 and 2009 dollars in thousands except per

share amounts

Quarterly Results for 2010
_________ _________ _________ _________

Operating revenues

Operating income _______ _______ _______

Net Income _______ _______ _______ _______

Basic Earning Per Share
________ ________

Diluted Earnings Per Share
________ ________ ________ ________

Quarterly Results for 2009
_________ _________ _________ _________

Operating revenues

Operating income _______ _______ _______ _______

Net Income _______ _______ _______ _______

Basic Earning Per Share _______ _______ _______ _______

Diluted Earnings Per Share
________ ________ ________ ________

Quarters

First Second Third Fourth

$139893 $114482 $154086 $132815

16078 14279 31873 18265

8586 7369 22981 8460

0.22 0.18 0.56 0.20

0.22 0.18 0.55 0.20

Quarters

First Second Third Fourth

$136015 $112230 $128053 $120870

$18655 $16027 23677 $16136

$10913 7627 $14829 7927

0.32 0.22 0.43 0.22

0.32 0.22 0.43 0.22

The sum of the quarterly earnings per share of common stock may not equal the earnings per share of

common stock as computed on an annual basis due to rounding

Earnings for the fourth quarter of 2010 were $8.5 million or $0.20 per share as compared to

$7.9 million or $0.22 per share in the fourth quarter
2009 Total revenues increased approximately

$11.9 million 9.9% for the fourth quarter of 2010 as compared to the fourth quarter of 2009 primarily

due to rate increases which became effective in 2010 Partially offsetting the increase in revenues were

increases in operations and maintenance expenses and depreciation and amortization

14 Risk Management and Derivative Financial Instruments

We currently engage in hedging activities in an effort to minimize our risk from volatile natural gas

prices We enter into contracts with counterparties relating to our future natural
gas requirements that lock

in prices with respect to range of predetermined percentages of our expected future natural gas needs

in an attempt to lessen the volatility in our fuel expense and gain predictability and do not engage in

speculative activities We recognize that if risk is not timely and adequately balanced or if counterparties

fail to perform contractual obligations actual results could differ materially from intended results

All derivative instruments are recognized at fair value on the balance sheet Effective September

2008 in conjunction with the implementation of the Missouri fuel adjustment clause the unrealized losses

or gains from new derivatives used to hedge our fuel costs in our electric segment are recorded in

regulatory assets or liabilities All gains and losses from derivatives related to the
gas segment are recorded

in regulatory assets or liabilities This is in accordance with the ASC guidance on regulated operations

given that those regulatory assets and liabilities are probable of recovery through our fuel adjustment

mechanism Unrealized gains and losses from derivatives related to our electric segment entered into

prior to Septeniber 2008 were being deferred in other comprehensive income however effective
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December 2010 all remaining cash flow hedges entered into prior to September 2008 were

de-designated and given that upon settlement the gain or loss would be recorded as fuel expense subject

to the fuel recovery clause the unrealized loss of $1.0 million was transferred from other comprehensive

income to regulatory asset

As of December 31 2010 and 2009 we have recorded the following assets and liabilities representing

the fair value of derivative financial instruments held as of December 31 in thousands

ASSET DERIVATIVES

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
2010 2009

Fair Fair

Balance Sheet Classification Value Value

Natural gas contracts electric segment Current assets $2233

Non-current assets and deferred charges 2438

Non-designated hedging instruments due to regulatory accounting

Natural gas contracts gas segment Current assets 39 410

Non-current assets and deferred charges 117

Natural gas contracts electric segment Current assets 139

Non-current assets and deferred charges 77 87

Total derivatives assets $233 $5307

LIABILITY DERIVATiVES

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
2010 2009

Fair Fair

Balance Sheet Classification Value Value

Natural gas contracts electric segment Current liabilities $4123

Non-current liabilities and deferred

credits

Non-designated as hedging instruments due to regulatory accounting

Natural gas ontracts gas segment Current liabilities 252 214

Non-current liabilities and deferred

credits

Natural gas contracts electric segment Current liabilities 508

Non-current liabilities and deferred

credits 3562 426

Total derivatives liabilities $4324 $4763
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Electric

At December 31 2010 approximately $0.5 million of unrealized losses are applicable to financial

instruments which will settle within the next twelve months Effective September 2008 in conjunction

with the implementation of the Missouri fuel adjustment clause in the July 2008 MPSC rate order new

hedges are non-designated and the unrealized losses or gains are recorded in regulatory assets or liabilities

This is in accoi dance with ASC guidance on accounting for regulated operations given that those

regulatory assets and liabilities are probable of
recovery through our fuel adjustment mechanism Effective

December 2010 all remaining cash flow hedges entered into prior to September 2008 were de-designated

with the unrealized gains or losses recognized in OCT In the future unrealized gains and losses will now be

recorded in regulatory assets or liabilities in accordance with the ASC guidance mentioned

The following tables set forth the actual pre-tax gains/losses and the mark to market effect of

unsettled positions from the qualified portion of our hedging activities for settled contracts for the electric

segment for each of the years ended December 31 in thousands

Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships Electric Segment

Amount of Gain/Loss
Reclassed from OCI

into Income

Effective Portion
Income Statement Classification ______________________
of Gain/Loss on Derivative 2010 2009

Commodity contracts Fuel and purchased power expense $5814 $13568

Total Effective Electric Segment $5814 $13568

Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships Electric Segment

Amount of Gain/Loss

Recognized in OCI

on Derivative

Effective Portion

Statement of Comprehensive Income 2010 2009

Commodity contracts Fuel and purchased power expense $6362 $9576

Total Effective Electric Segment $6362 $9576

There were no mark-to-market pre-tax gains/losses from ineffective portions of our hedging

activities for the electric segment for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

In accordance with the Missouri fuel adjustment clause discussed above the recoverable portion of

any gain or loss is recorded in regulatory asset or liability account The following tables set forth
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mark-to-market pre-tax gains/losses from non-designated derivative instruments for the electric

segment for each of the years ended December 31 in thousands

Non-Designated Hedging Instruments Due to Regulatory Accounting Electric Segment

Amount of Gain/Loss

Recognized on

Balance Sheet Classification

Balance Sheet

of Gain/Loss on Derivative 2010 2009

Commodity contracts electric Regulatory assets/liabilities

segment
$2669 $1192

Total Electric Segment
$2669 $1192

Non-Designated Hedging Instruments Due to Regulatory Accounting Electric Segment

Amount of Gain/Loss

Recognized in Income

Statement of Operations Classification
on Derivative

of GainlLoss on Derivative 2010 2009

Commodity contracts Fuel and purchased power expense $752 $2249

Total Ekctric Segment
$752 $2249

We also enter into fixed-price
forward physical contracts for the purchase of natural gas coal and

purchased power These contracts are not subject to fair value accounting because they qualify for the

normal purciase normal sale exemption We have process
in place to determine if any future executed

contracts that otherwise qualify for the normal purchase normal sale exception contain price adjustment

feature and will account for these contracts accordingly

As of February 2011 88% of our anticipated volume of natural gas usage for our electric operations

for the year 2011 is hedged either through physical 2.0 million Dths or financial contracts 3.0 million

Dths at an average price of $5.774 per Dekatherm Dth In addition the following volumes and

percentages of our anticipated volume of natural gas usage for our electric operations
for the next three

years are hedged at the following average prices per Dth

Hedged Dth Hedged Average Price

20121 60% 3745000 $6.618

20131 41% 3460000 $6.079

2014 20% 1580000 $5.607

2015 4% 400000 $5.500

1.4 million Dth and 1.4 million Dth of the anticipated volume of natural gas usage for 2012

and 2013 respectively are hedged through financial derivative contracts

We utiljze the following procurement guidelines
for our electric segment allowing the flexibility to

hedge up to 100% of the current years and 80% of any future years expected requirements while being

cognizant of volume risk The 80% guideline is an annual target and volumes up to 100% can be hedged in
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any given month For
years beyond year four additional factors of long term uncertainty including with

respect to required volumes and counterparty credit are also considered

Year Minimum Hedged

Current Up to 100%
First 60%
Second 40%
Third 20%
Fourth 10%

Gas

We attempt to mitigate our natural
gas price risk for our gas segment by combination of injecting

natural
gas into storage during the off-heating season months purchasing physical forward contracts

and purchasing financial derivative contracts As of February 2011 we have 100% of our expected

remaining winter heating season usage through March 2011 hedged with physical storage physical

forward contracts and financial derivative contracts The average price of these hedges is $4.861 per Dth
We target to have 95% of our storage capacity full by November for the upcoming winter heating season

As the winter progresses gas is withdrawn from storage to serve our customers As of February 2011 we
had 0.6 million Dths in storage on the three pipelines that serve our customers This represents 28% of our

storage capacity We have an additional 0.7 million Dth hedged through financial derivatives and physical

contracts Our long-term hedge strategy is to mitigate price volatility for our customers by hedging
minimum of 50% of current year up to 50% of second year and up to 20% of third year expected gas usage
by the beginning of the Actual Cost Adjustment ACA year at September Purchased Gas Adjustment

PGA clause is included in our rates for our gas segment operations therefore we mark to market any
unrealized gains or losses and any realized gains or losses relating to financial derivative contracts to

regulatory asset or regulatory liability account on our balance sheet

The following table sets forth mark-to-market
pre-tax gains losses from derivatives not

designated as hedging instruments for the gas segment for the years ended December 31 in thousands

Non-Designated Hedging Instruments Due to Regulatory Accounting Gas Segment

Amount of Gain/Loss

Recognized on

Balance Sheet Classification
Balance Sheet

of Gain or Loss on Derivative 2010 2009

Commodity contracts Regulatory assets/liabilities $626 $671

Total Gas Segment $626 $671

Contingent Features

Certain of our derivative instruments contain provisions that
require our senior unsecured debt to

maintain an investment grade credit rating with any relevant credit rating agency If our debt were to fall

below investment grade it would be in violation of these provisions and the counterparties to the

derivative instruments could request increased collateralization on derivative instruments in net liability

positions The aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with the credit-risk-related contingent

features that are in liability position on December 31 2010 is $0.5 million for which we have posted no

collateral in the normal course of business If the credit-risk-related contingent features underlying these
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agreements were triggered on December 31 2010 we would have been required to post $0.5 million of

collateral with one of our counterparties On December 31 2010 we had no collateral posted with this

counterparty

15 Fair Value Measurements

The accounting guidance on fair value measurements establishes three-tier fair value hierarchy

which prioritizes the inputs
used in measuring fair value These tiers include Level defined as quoted

prices in active markets for identical instruments ii Level defined as inputs other than quoted prices in

active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable and iii Level defined as unobservable

inputs in which little or no market data exists therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions

Our Level fair value measurements consist of both quoted price inputs and inputs provided by third

party
that are derived principally

from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation Our

Level fair value measurements consist of both quoted price inputs and unobservable quoted inputs

provided by third party

The guidance also requires
that the fair value measurement of assets and liabilities reflect the

nonperformance risk of counterparties and the reporting entity as applicable Therefore using credit

default spreads we factored the impact of our own credit standing and the credit standing of our

counterparties as well as any potential credit enhancements e.g collateral into the consideration of

nonperformance risk for both derivative assets and liabilities The results of this analysis were not material

to the financial statements

The following fair value hierarchy table presents
information about our commodity contracts

measured at fair value using the market value approach on recurring basis as of December 31 2010

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant

Markets Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable

in 000s Assets/Liabilities Assets Inputs Inputs

Description
at Fair Value Level Level Level

December 31 2010

Net derivative assets/liabilities $4091 $4091

December 31 2009

Net derivative assets/liabilities
544 544

The ony recurring measurements are derivative related and assets and liabilities are netted together

in the table above
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The following tables present the net fair value on recurring basis using significant unobservable

inputs Level during the twelve months ended December 31 2010 and 2009 in thousands

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservable Inputs Level

2010 2009 2008
Net Net Net

in 000s
Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives

Beginning Balance January 6208 $11961
Total gains or losses realized/unrealized

Included in earnings or changes in net assets

Included in comprehensive income 1738 5753
Purchases issuances and settlements net

Transfers in and/or out of Level 4470

Ending Balance December 31 6208

Changes in unrealized Gains relating to assets still held at

reporting date $1738 5753

Net derivatives at December 31 2010 and 2009 included no derivative assets and no derivative

liabilities respectively Net derivatives at December 31 2008 included assets of $6.2 million and no
derivative liabilities

16 Accounts Receivable Other

The following table sets forth the major components comprising accounts receivable other on

our consolidated balance sheet in thousands

December 31

2010 2009

Accounts receivable for plant reimbursements line extensions

highway projects etc 5322 2812
Taxes receivable overpayment of estimated income taxes 10807 3191
Accounts receivable for energy trading margin deposit2 3878 2914
Accounts receivable for true-up on maintenance contracts3 1512 1831
Accounts receivable for insurance proceeds for SLCC generator failure4 2596 9270
Accounts receivable from Westar Generating Inc for commonly-owned facility 636 817
Accounts receivable for gas segment 27 37
Accounts receivable for non-regulated subsidiary companies 602 454
Other

65 91

Total Accounts Receivable Other $25445 $21417

Primarily due to the effects of Investment Tax Credits and bonus depreciation net of the payment
received from SWPA See note for further detail

The accounts receivable for energy trading margin deposit represents the balance in our brokerage
account NYMEX futures contracts are used in our hedging program of natural gas which require

posting of margin
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THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Represents quarterly estimated credits due from Siemens Westinghouse related to our maintenance

contract for State Line Combined Cycle Unit SLCC Forty percent of this credit belongs to Westar

Generating Inc the owner of 40% of the SLCC and has been recorded in accounts payable

Represents the insurance proceeds for the failure of the State Line Combined Cycle Unit 2-1

generator Forty percent of these proceeds belong to Westar Generating Inc and is recorded in

accounts payable

17 Regulated Operating Expense

The following table sets forth the major components comprising regulated operating expenses

under Operating Revenue Deductions on our consolidated statements of income for the years
ended in

thousands

December 31

2010 2009 2008

Electric transmission and distribution expense $12996 $11063 $10891

Natural gas ransmission and distribution expense 2194 2161 1995

Power operation expense other than fuel 11356 12315 11671

Customer accounts assistance expense 11618 10597 10166

Employee pension expense1 5899 5557 5892

Employee healthcare plan1 6930 5908 7136

General office supplies and expense 11584 10070 9330

Administrative and general expense 12896 12211 11728

Bad debt expense
3651 3125 2944

Miscellaneous expense
168 79 165

Total $79292 $73086 $71918

Does not include the capitalized portion
of actuarially calculated costs but reflects the GAAP

expensed portion of these costs plus or minus costs deferred to regulatory asset or recognized as

regulatory liability for Missouri and Kansas jurisdictions
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ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report an evaluation was carried out under the

supervision and with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive Officer and

Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and

procedures as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15e of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Based upon
that evaluation the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure

controls and procedures were effective as of December 31 2010

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over

financial reporting as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15f Under the supervision and

with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting

based on the framework in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on this evaluation our management
concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31 2010

Audit of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 has been

audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in

their
report which appears herein

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

fourth quarter of 2010 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our

internal control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Except as set forth below the information required by this Item may be found in our proxy statement

for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held April 28 2011 which is incorporated
herein by

reference

Pursuant to instruction of paragraph of Item 401 of Regulation S-K the information required by

this Item with respect to executive officers is set forth in Item of Part of this Form 10-K under

Executive Officers and Other Officers of Empire

We have adopted Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers

copy of the code is available on our website at www.empiredistrict.com Any future amendments or waivers

to the code will be posted on our website at www.empiredistrict.com

ITEM 11 EXECUTiVE COMPENSATION

Information required by this item may be found in our proxy statement for our Annual Meeting of

Stockholders to be held April 28 2011 which is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Except as set forth below information required by this item may be found in our proxy statement for

our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held April 28 2011 which is incorporated herein by reference

There are no arrangements the operation of which may at subsequent date result in change in

control of Empire

Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

We have four equity compensation plans all of which have been approved by shareholders the 1996

Stock Incentive Plan the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan the Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP and the

Stock Unit Plan for Directors

The following table summarizes information about our equity compensation plans as of December 31

2010

Number of securities

remaining available

Number of securities Weighted-average for future issuance

to be issued upon exercise exercise price under equity compensation

of outstanding options of outstanding options plans excluding securities

Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights1 reflected in column

Equity compensation plans

approved by security holders 573638 $20.51 1164690

Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders _____

TOTAL 573638 $20.51 1164690

The weighted average exercise price of $20.51 relates to 39100 and 4200 options granted to executive

officers in 2005 and 2004 respectively
under the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan 34800 27000 56400

64200 and 41700 options granted to executive officers in 2010 2009 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively under the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan and 71326 subscriptions outstanding for our ESPP

The two stock incentive plans had weighted average exercise price of $21.69 and the ESPP had an

exercise price of $16.06 There is no exercise price for 95000 performance-based stock awards

awarded under the 2006 Stock Incentive Plans or for 139912 units awarded under the Stock Unit Plan

for Directors
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ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The informal ion required by this Item may be found in our proxy statement for our Annual Meeting

of Stockholders to be held April 28 2011 which is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item may be found in our proxy statement for our Annual Meeting

of Stockholders to be held April 28 2011 which is incorporated herein by reference
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule Covered by Report of

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated balance sheets at December 31 2010 and 2009 66

Consolidated statements of income for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31

2010 68

Consolidated statements of comprehensive income for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31 2010 69

Consolidated statements of common stockholders equity for each of the three years in the

period ended December 31 2010 70

Consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31 2010 71

Notes to consolidated financial statements 73

Schedule for the years
ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Schedule II Valuation and qualifying accounts 145

All other schedules are omitted as the required information is either not present is not present
in

sufficient amounts or the information required therein is included in the financial statements or notes

thereto

List of Exhibits

3a The Restated Articles of Incorporation of Empire Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4a
to Registration Statement No 33-54539 on Form S-3

By-laws of Empire as amended October 31 2002 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4b
to Annual Report on Form 10-K for year ended December 31 2002 File No 1-3368

4a Iiidenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of September 1944 and First

Supplemental Indenture thereto among Empire The Bank of New York Mellon Trust

Company N.A and UMB Bank N.A Incorporated by reference to Exhibits B1 and B2
to Form 10 File No 1-3368

Third Supplemental Indenture to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 2c to Form S-7 File No 2-59924

Sixth through Eighth Supplemental Indentures to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2c to Form S-7 File No 2-59924

Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4f to Registration Statement No 33-56635 on

Form S-3

Iwenty-Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 1993 to Indenture of

Mortgage and Deed of Trust Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4k to Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1993 File No 1-3368

Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 1993 to Indenture of

Mortgage and Deed of Trust Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 41 to Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31 1993 File No 1-3368
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Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 1994 to Indenture of Mortgage

and Deed of Trust Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4m to Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1993 File No 1-3368

lWenty-Eighth Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 1996 to Indenture of

Mortgage and Deed of Trust Incorporated by reference to Exhibit to Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1996 File No 1-3368

Thirty-First Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 26 2007 to Indenture of Mortgage

and Deed of Trust Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K

dated March 26 2007 and filed March 28 2007 File No 1-3368

Thirty-Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 11 2008 to Indenture of Mortgage

and Deed of Trust Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on

Form 8-K dated March 11 2008 and filed March 12 2008 File No 1-3368

Thirtyrhird Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 16 2008 to Indenture of Mortgage

and Deed of Trust Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K

dated May 16 2008 and filed May 16 2008 File No 1-3368

Thirty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 27 2009 to Indenture of

Mortgage and Deed of Trust Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on

Form 8-K dated March 27 2009 and filed March 30 2009 File No 1-3368

Thirty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 28 2010 to Indenture of Mortgage

and Deed of Trust Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K

dated May 28 2010 and filed May 28 2010 File No 1-3368

Thirty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture dated as of August 25 2010 to Indenture of Mortgage

and Deed of Trust Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K

dated August 25 2010 and filed August 26 2010 File No 1-3368

Indenture for Unsecured Debt Securities dated as of September 10 1999 between Empire

and Wells Fargo Bank National Association Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4v to

Registration Statement No 333-87015 on Form S-3

Securities Resolution No dated as of June 10 2003 of Empire under the Indenture for

Unsecured Debt Securities Incorporated by reference to Exhibit to Current Report on

Form 8-K dated June 10 2003 and filed July 29 2003 File No 1-3368

Securities Resolution No dated as of October 29 2003 of Empire under the Indenture

for Unsecured Debt Securities Incorporated by reference to Exhibit to Quarterly Report

on Form 10-0 for quarter ended September 30 2003 File No 1-3368

Securities Resolution No dated as of June 27 2005 of Empire under the Indenture for

Unsecured Debt Securities Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on

Form 8-K dated June 27 2005 and filed June 28 2005 File No 1-3368

Bond Purchase Agreement dated June 2006 among The Empire District Gas Company
and the purchasers party thereto Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report

on Form 8-K dated June 2006 and filed June 2006 File No 1-3368

Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of June 2006 by The Empire District

Gas Company as Grantor to Spencer Thomson Deed of Trust Trustee for the Benefit of

The Bank of New York Trust Company N.A Bond Trustee as Grantee Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 2006 and filed June

2006 File No 1-3368
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First Supplemental Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of June 2006 by

The Empire District Gas Company as Grantor to Spencer Thomson Deed of Trust

Trustee for the Benefit of The Bank of New York Trust Company N.A Bond Trustee as

Grantee Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated

June 2006 and filed June 2006 File No 1-3368

10a 1996 Stock Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-8 File

No 33-64639.t

Ffrst Amendment to 1996 Stock Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10b
to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

year
ended December 31 2007 File No 1-3368.t

2006 Stock Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4u to Form S-8 File

No 333-130075.t

First Amendment to 2006 Stock Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10d
tO Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007 File No 1-3368.t

Second Amendment to 2006 Stock Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10e to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 File

No 1-3368.t

Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors as amended and restated effective January

2008 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10e to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

year ended December 31 2007.t

The Empire District Electric Company Change in Control Severance Pay Plan as amended

and restated effective January 2008 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10f to Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31 2007 File No 1-3368.t

Form of Severance Pay Agreement under The Empire District Electric Company Change in

Control Severance Pay Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10g to Annual Report

on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007 File No 1-3368.t

The Empire District Electric Company Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan as amended

and restated effective January 2008 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10h to Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007 File No 1-3368.t

Retirement Plan for Directors as amended August 1998 Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10a to Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30 1998 File No 1-3368.t

Stock Unit Plan for Directors of The Empire District Electric Company Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10i to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

2005 File No 1-3368.t

First Amendment to Stock Unit Plan for Directors Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10k to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007 File

No 1-3368.t

Summary of Annual Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 101 to Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007 File No 1-3368.t

Form of Notice of Award of Dividend Equivalents Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10n to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31 2008 File

No 1-3368t
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Form of Notice of Award of Non-Qualified Stock Options Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10o to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31 2008 File

No 1-3368.t

Form of Notice of Award of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Incorporated by reference

to Exhthit 10p to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008

File No 1-3368.t

Form of Notice of Award of Time-Based Restricted Stock

Summary of Compensation of Non-Employee Directors Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10q to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 File

No 1-3368.t

Form of Indemnity Agreement Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report

on Form 8-K dated February 2009 and filed February 10 2009 File No 1-3368.t

Equity Distribution Agreement dated February 25 2009 between The Empire District

Electric Company and UBS Securities LLC Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 25 2009 and filed February 26 2009 File

No 1-3368

Amendment No dated October 22 2009 to the Equity Distribution Agreement dated

February 25 2009 between The Empire District Electric Company and UBS Securities LLC

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated

October 22 2009 and filed October 22 2009 File No 1-3368

Second Amended and Restated Unsecured Credit Agreement dated as of January 26 2010

among The Empire District Electric Company UMB Bank N.A as administrative agent

Bank of America N.A as syndication agent Wells Fargo Bank N.A as documentation

agent and the lenders named therein Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current

Report on Form 8-K dated January 26 2010 and filed January 27 2010 File No 1-3368

12 Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges

21 Subsidiaries of Empire

23 Consent of Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP

24 Powers of Attorney

31a Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

31b Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

32a Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32b Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

This exhibit is compensatory plan or arrangement as contemplated by Item 15a3 of Form 10-K

Filed herewith

This certification accompanies this Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

and shall not be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 or any other provision of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended
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SCHEDULE II

Valuation ad Qualifring Accounts

Years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Deductions From

Additions Reserve

Charged to Other Accounts

Balance At Balance At

Beginning Charged
Close of

Of Period To Income Description Amount Description Amount Penod

Year ended December 31 2010

Reserve deducted from assets Recovery of

accumulated provision for amounts previously Accounts

uncollectible accounts $1086853 $3607066 written off 833113 written off $4661796 865236

Year ended December 31 2009

Reserve deducted from assets Recovery of

accumulated provision for amounts previously Accounts

uncollectible accounts $1265421 $3109679 written off $1531820 written off $4820067 $1086853

Year ended December 31 2008

Reserve deducted from assets Recovery of

accumulated provision for amounts previously Accounts

uncollectible accounts $1140955 $2903922 written off $1877576 written off $4657032 $1265421

145



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the

registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized

THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY

Date February 17 2011 By Is WILLIAM GIPSON

William Gipson President and

Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed

below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated

Is WILLIAM GIPSON Date February 17 2011

William Gipson President

Chief Executive Officer Director

Principal Executive Officer

Is GREGORY KNAPP

Gregory Knapp Vice President-Finance

Principal Financial Officer

Is LAURIE DELANO

Laurie Delano Controller Assistant

Secretary and Assistant Treasurer

Princiçal Accounting Officer

Is R.ANDY LANEY

Randy Laney Director

Is KENNETH ALLEN

Kenneth Allen Director

Is PAUL PORTNEY

Paul Portney Director

Is ROSS HARTLEY

Ross Hartley Director

Is HERBERT SCHMIDT

Herbert Schmidt Director

Is BILL HELTON
Bill ID Helton Director

Is THOMAS MUELLER

Thomas Mueller Director

Is JAMES SULLIVAN

James Sullivan Director

Is BONNIE LIND

Bonnie Lind Director

Is GREGORY KNAPP

By Gregory Knapp As attorney in fact for

each of the persons indicated
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EXHIBIT 12

Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Year ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Income before provision for

income takes and fixed

charges Note $125706453 $114457760 $108185260 $91690922 $99409515

Fixed Charges

Interest on long-term debt 41958541 42084023 36040957 $31120122 $25947191

Interest on short-term debt 630913 1124883 1853682 2940317 2275939

Interest on trust preferred

securities 2089583 4250000 4250000 4250000 4250000

Other interest 2332530 680863 1152588 1069206 1029135

Rental expense

representative of an

interest factor Note 5430863 6501484 6040062 4686748 4798490

Total fixed charges 47777370 53279527 49337289 $44066393 $38300755

Ratio of earnings to fixed

charges 2.63 2.15 2.19 2.08 2.60

NOTE For the purpose of determining earnings in the calculation of the ratio net income has been

increased by the provision for income taxes non-operating income taxes and by the sum of fixed charges as

shown above

NOTE One-third of rental expense which approximates the interest factor



EXHIBIT 31a

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTiVE OFFICER

PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

William Gipson certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Empire District Electric Company

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or

omit to state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under

which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of

the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the

registrant and we have

designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information

relating to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by

others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being

prepared

designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and

presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls

and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation

and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal

quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to

materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent

evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee

of the registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the

registrants ability to record process summarize and report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 17 2011

By Is William Gipson

Name William Gipson

Title President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31b

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Gregory Knapp certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Empire District Electric Company

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or

omit to state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under

which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of

the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the

registrant and we have

designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information

relating to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by

others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being

prepared

designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and

presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls

and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation

and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal

quarter
in the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to

materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent

evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee

of the registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the

registrants ability to record process summarize and report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 17 2011

By Is Gregory Knapp

Name Gregory Knapp
Title Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32a

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350

As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of The Empire District Electric Company the Company on

Form 10-K for ihe period ending December 31 2010 as filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on the date hereof the Report William Gipson as Chief Executive Officer of the

Company certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13a of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material
respects

the financial

condition and result of operations of the Company

By Is William Gipson

Name William Gipson

Title President and Chief Executive Officer

Date February 17 2011

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 or other document authenticating

acknowledging or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version

of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to The Empire District Electric

Company and will be retained by The Empire District Electric Company and furnished to the Securities

and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request



EXHIBIT 32

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350

As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of The Empire District Electric Company the Company on

Form 10-K for the period ending December 31 2010 as filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on the date hereof the Report Gregory Knapp as Chief Financial Officer of the

Company certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13a of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial

condition and result of operations of the Company

By Is Gregory Knapp

Name Gregory Knapp

Title Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer

Date February 17 2011

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 or other document authenticating

acknowledging or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version

of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to The Empire District Electric

Company and will be retained by The Empire District Electric Company and furnished to the Securities

and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request
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